RICOH TotalFlow Prep



Introduction

Important

To the maximum extent permitted by applicable laws, in no event will the manufacturer be liable for any damages whatsoever arising out of failures of this product, losses of documents or data, or the use of this product and operation manuals provided with it.

Make sure that you always copy or have backups of important documents or data. Documents or data might be erased due to your operational errors or malfunctions of the machine. Also, you are responsible for taking protective measures against computer viruses, worms, and other harmful software.

In no event will the manufacturer be responsible for any documents created by you using this product or any results from the data executed by you.

Do not remove or insert any disk while operating this application.

Cautions Regarding This Guide

- Some illustrations or explanations in this guide may differ from your application due to improvement or change in the application.
- The contents of this document are subject to change without notice.
- No part of this document may be duplicated, replicated, reproduced in any form, modified or quoted without prior consent of the manufacturer.
- In the instruction manuals, the procedures use Windows 10, as an example. There might be minor differences in other versions of Windows.

Guides for This Application

The following guides are available for this application.

Instruction Manuals

These instruction manuals are included:

• RICOH TotalFlow Prep: Setup Guide (Printed/PDF)

This guide explains the setup and startup procedures, and the settings required before you can use this application.

 RICOH TotalFlow Prep: User's Guide (This guide, HTML/PDF) This guide explains the functions and basic operations of this application.

To help you better understand the basic operations of this application, this guide also includes practice lessons using sample files.

Help

Field help is available on many screens to provide information for specific tasks and settings. In this guide, this type of help is referred to as "on-screen field help".

In addition, the **[Help]** menu provides access to the HTML version of the User's Guide directly from the user interface.

Note

A web browser must be installed to view the HTML documentation. The recommended browser is the most recent version of Mozilla Firefox. A PDF reader, such as Adobe Reader, must be installed to view the PDF documentation.

How to Read the Documentation

Before Using This Application

This manual contains detailed instructions and notes on the operation and use of this application. To ensure correct operation, read this manual carefully and completely before using this application. Keep this manual in a handy place for quick reference.

How to Use the Manuals and Help

Use the instruction manuals and field help according to your needs.

To learn how to install and start this application

See the Setup Guide.

To learn about the functions and basic operations of this application

See the User's Guide.

To learn about configuring on-screen settings

See the on-screen field help.

Displaying the Instruction Manuals (Setup Guide and User's Guide)

Use this procedure to view the instruction manuals.

Displaying the Setup Guide and User's Guide in PDF Format

Note

This procedure uses Windows 10, as an example. There might be minor differences in other versions of Windows.

 Click Start → All apps → RICOH TotalFlow Prep, and then click either [Setup Guide] or [User's Guide].

Users Guide.pdf - Adobe Acrobat Reader D e Edit View Window Help	C				×
Home Tools Document	B		Q	1 / 320 51.8% • ••• 🗶 Sign	In
Bookmarks ×				RICOH TotalFlow Prep	^
 Introduction I Overview 		Operating User's Guid	Instruction de	s Overview 1	
■ □ 2 Tutorials				Tutorials 2	
				Configuration 3	
				Preparing Jobs 4	
🗉 🔲 5 Editing Jobs				Editing Jobs 5	
⊕ □ 6 Printing and Saving ↓ □				Printing and Saving Jobs 6	
	•			Working with Presets 7	
■ □ 8 Troubleshooting				a duuestooting	
🗉 🔲 9 Reference				9	
INDEX				For information not in this manual, refer to the Help System in your product.	
)	
			-	Read this manual carefully and keep it handy for future reference.	

Displaying the User's Guide in HTML Format

• The HTML version of the User's Guide is available directly from the user interface. Start the application, and then click **Help** → **TotalFlow Prep Help**.

RICOH TotalFlow Prep						Information Center
Search: Go Scope: All topics						
Contents 👜 🖬 🕅 🙀 🗖						수 수 🏠 🕸 🖻 🗖
🗉 🧇 Overview						
E 🖤 Tutorials		Funct	ions		Read	This First
E 🌑 Configuration	-	_		-		
E Separing Jobs		>>	<u>Overview</u>		>>	Guides for this Application
Editing Jobs		>>	Tutoriala		>>	How to Road the Decumentation
Verting and Saving Jobs			Tutonais			now to Read the Documentation
 Working with Presets Traublashasting 		>>	Configuration		>>	<u>Trademarks</u>
E Reference		>>	Preparing Jobs		Mainte	enance
🗄 🧇 Field Help		>>	Editing Jobs	-		
		>>	Printing and Saving Jobs		>>	<u>Reference</u>
		>>	Working with Presets		>>	Troubleshooting
		>>	Field Help			
	•		III			•

Displaying Field Help

Click the **2** button next to an item on the user interface to display the field help for that item. Click **[More in Help]** within the help box to display the related page in the HTML *User's Guide*.

RICO	H TotalFlow Prep								
File Edit	View Insert Settings Windo	w Help			Apply preset	- C	Printer 1	-	۰
r	💌 🗆 🗄 屯 🗷 🛛	I 🔽 • 🗥 •	Paper: Ad	1	- 🗆 - 🕄	- 🖴 🖌	- Copies: 1		
: ≣		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	GENERAL	η.	Iob Satur
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			UNDER			Help [Collate] Specify how to d	× collate the job:	Finishing
	2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	1 6 - A4	2 7 - A4	3 8 - A4	4 9 - A4	5 10 - A4	 Select the [box to print th job in sorted s Clear the [O box if you do in consist to b 	(Collate) check he copies of the sets. Collate] check not want the as conted	Covers
The second secon	3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		 An extension extension of a constraint of a const				You cannot spec finishing setting	cify any gs for the job if <u>More in Help</u>	Page Content
R. Berner State (State	4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	6 11 - A4	7 12 - A4	8 13 - A4	9 14 - A4	10 15 - A4	Face-down	•	Impose
	5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)					Later Description of the second seco	_		Clean Up
	6. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	11 16 - A4	12 17 - A4	13 18 - A4	14 19 - A4 🔍 🤇	15 2. <u>12%</u> , -			

Symbols

The following symbols are used in this manual to help you to identify content quickly.

Important	This symbol indicates points to pay attention to when using the application. Be sure to read these explanations.
♦ Note	This symbol indicates supplementary information that you may find helpful, but not essential to completing a task.
Reference	This symbol indicates where you can find further relevant information.
[Sample text]	This formatting indicates the names of screens, menus, settings, and buttons.

Trademarks

RICOH TotalFlow Production Manager[™] is a trademark of Ricoh Company, Ltd. in the United States, other countries, or both.

Portions of this software product are copyright © 1984-2025 Adobe Systems Incorporated and its licensors. All rights reserved.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, Acrobat, the Adobe PDF logo, Distiller, Photoshop, PostScript, and Reader are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe in the United States and/or other countries.

Google Chrome is a trademark of Google LLC.

Mozilla and Firefox are trademarks of the Mozilla Foundation in the U.S. and other countries.

Microsoft, Windows, Windows Server, Excel, PowerPoint, and Microsoft Edge are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

The EFI logo, Electronics For Imaging, Fiery, and the Fiery logo are registered trademarks of Electronics for Imaging, Inc. in the U.S. and/or certain other countries. EFI is a trademark of Electronics for Imaging, Inc. in the U.S. and/or certain other countries.

Java and all Java-based trademarks and logos are trademarks or registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates.

IBM, the IBM logo, and ibm.com are trademarks or registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies.

OpenJDK (the "Name") is a trademark of Oracle America, Inc. ("Oracle")(the "Trademark Owner"). Java and OpenJDK are trademarks or registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Copyright Oracle America, Inc.

The proper names of the Windows operating systems are as follows:

• The product names of Windows 10 are as follows:

Microsoft Windows 10 Pro

Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise

• The product names of Windows 11 are as follows:

Microsoft Windows 11 Pro

Microsoft Windows 11 Enterprise

• The product names of Windows Server 2019 are as follows:

Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Standard

- Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Essentials
- The product name of Windows Server 2022 is: Microsoft Windows Server 2022 Standard
- The product name of Windows Server 2025 is: Microsoft Windows Server 2025 Standard

Other product names used herein are for identification purposes only and might be trademarks of their respective companies. We disclaim any and all rights to those marks.

Microsoft product screen shots reprinted with permission from Microsoft Corporation.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction

Important	1
Cautions Regarding This Guide	1
Guides for This Application	1
How to Read the Documentation	2
Before Using This Application	2
How to Use the Manuals and Help	2
Trademarks	4
1 Overview	
TotalFlow Prep Overview	
Overview of the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep	14
TotalFlow Prep User Interface	
Menu Bar	15
Toolbar	16
Page List	
Workspace	
Settings Area	23
Right-Click Menu	24
What You Can Do with This Application	24
Key Points and Procedures	

2 Tutorials

Tutorial 1: Using General Functions	29
Preparation	
Procedure	
Tutorial 2: Creating a Booklet	
Preparation	
Procedure	41

3 Configuration

Registering Printers	63
Adding Printers	63
Adding Custom Printers	65
Adding Windows Printers	69
Adding Workflows from TotalFlow Production Manager	71
Editing Printer Settings	72
Deleting Printers	73

Setting the Default Printer	74			
Viewing Printer Information	74			
Refreshing Printer Information	75			
Managing the Paper Catalog				
Adding Custom Papers				
Editing Custom Papers				
Deleting Custom Papers				
Exporting Custom Papers				
Importing Custom Papers				
Setting Preferences				
4 Preparing Jobs				
Creating a New Job				
Building a New Job	86			
Building a Job from Existing Files				
Building a Job from Scanned Files				
Creating a New Blank Job				
Opening Jobs				
Switching Between Open Job Windows				
Closing Jobs				
5 Editing Jobs				
Specifying a Printer for the Job				
Specifying Job Information	96			
Changing Page Layouts				
Selecting Pages and Sheets				
Copying, Cutting, and Pasting Pages and Sheets				
Deleting Pages and Sheets				
Moving Pages				
Inserting Blank Pages and Sheets				
Inserting Pages from Existing or Scanned Files				
Creating Chapters				
Renaming Chapters				
Moving Chapters				
Canceling Chapters	112			
Using External Programs to Edit Jobs	112			
Using an External Program to Edit Image PDF Documents				

Using an External Program to Edit the PDF of an Entire Job	
Editing Original Files	115
Modifying Rulers, Grid, and Guides	115
Aligning Page Content	
Removing Noise with Despeckle	121
Straightening Skewed Pages	
Rotating Pages	
Adding a Mask	
Editing a Mask	126
Cutting, Copying, and Pasting a Mask	128
Moving a Selected Area	
Cropping a Page	
Resizing a Page	133
Adding Text	133
Editing Text	134
Cutting, Copying, and Pasting Text	136
Adding an Image	138
Editing an Image	139
Cutting, Copying, and Pasting an Image	141
Pasting Images or Text from the System Clipboard	143
Changing Object Order	143
Creating, Editing, and Applying Overlays	144
Using Advanced Editing Features	146
Specifying Paper Settings	150
Setting Long Paper Support	152
Specifying Imposition Settings	153
Setting Normal Imposition	154
Setting Booklet Imposition	154
Setting Gangup Imposition	157
Using Crop Marks for Trimming	159
Specifying Orientation Settings	161
Specifying Printing Side Settings	162
Specifying Fifth Station Settings	163
Setting Clear Toner Properties	163
Setting White Toner Properties	164
Setting Special Toner Properties	

Specifying Finishing Settings	166
Printing Collated Documents	
Stapling the Printed Document	168
Punching Holes in the Printed Document	
Perforating the Printed Documents	
Creasing the Printed Documents	
Folding the Printed Document	
Binding the Printed Document	
Trimming the Printed Document	171
Setting the Output Tray	172
Specifying How to Eject the Output	
Using Printer Features	
Adding and Editing Tabs	
Inserting Tabs	173
Converting a Page to a Tab	
Editing Tabs	
Applying, Editing, and Creating Themes for Tabs	
Adding and Editing Bleed Edge Tabs	
Managing Bleed Edge Tab Presets	
Setting Printing Side	
Setting Tabs Per Bank	
Setting Pattern Order	
Setting Length	
Setting Margins	
Setting Edge	
Setting Tab Gap	
Setting Depth	
Applying, Editing, and Creating Themes for Bleed Edge Tabs	
Adding and Editing Inserts	
Adding Inserts	
Editing Inserts	
Moving Inserts	
Cutting, Copying, and Pasting Inserts	
Deleting Inserts	
Adding Page Numbers	
Adding a Header and Footer	

Adding Page Stamps	196
Using Page Stamping for Repetitive Print Jobs	
Editing Page Stamps	199
Deleting Page Stamps	200
Adding Covers	200
Adding Front and Back Covers to a Job	201
Adding a Cover to a Booklet	202
Adding a Cover to a Perfect Bound Job	202
Adding Slip Sheets and Designation Sheets	208
Inserting Slip Sheets	209
Inserting Designation Sheets at Chapter Breaks	210
Specifying Color Settings	211
Specifying the Number of Copies to Print	212
Specifying Exception Settings	212
Specifying Paper Exceptions	213
Specifying Printing Side Exceptions	216
Specifying Color Exceptions	
Specifying Stapling Exceptions	
Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep	
Solving Job Setting Conflicts	
6 Printing and Saving Jobs	
Previewing Jobs	223
Sending Jobs to a Printer	224
Sending Jobs to TotalFlow Production Manager	224
Printing Selected Pages	225
Printing Page Ranges	226
Printing a Job with Both Color and Black and White Sheets on Separate Printers	227
Saving Jobs	227
Checking Job Progress and Results	229
Viewing and Managing Active Jobs	229
Viewing and Managing Logged Jobs	231
7 Working with Presets	
Creating Presets	235
Editing Preset Settings	237

Exporting Presets	239
Importing Presets	240
Applying a Preset to a Job	241
Building a Job with the Settings Registered in a Preset	242
Using Hot Folders with Presets	
8 Troubleshooting	
If the Application Does Not Start	247
If a Message Appears	247
If You Encounter a Problem	253
9 Reference	
Supported File Formats	255
Supported Image Formats and Image Sizes	
Limitations of Edit Functions for Document Pages	
Port Settings and Firewall Exceptions	
INDEX	

1. Overview

- TotalFlow Prep Overview
- Overview of the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep
- TotalFlow Prep User Interface
- What You Can Do with This Application
- Key Points and Procedures

TotalFlow Prep Overview

TotalFlow Prep lets you edit scanned paper documents and electronic files, and then create and output the data for printing. The main functions of this application are detailed below.



Overview of the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep

You can use the browser version of TotalFlow Prep to edit jobs from RICOH TotalFlow Production Manager[™] or from RICOH TotalFlow Print Server. After you finish editing the job, you can save it and submit it back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server.



• Note

- For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.
- Some functions of TotalFlow Prep are not available in the browser version.
- TotalFlow Production Manager must be installed on the same computer as TotalFlow Prep.

TotalFlow Prep User Interface

TotalFlow Prep provides a comprehensive and intuitive user interface for composing, editing, and preparing jobs for output.



The user interface consists of the following areas:

- 1. Menu bar with file management, configuration, job editing, presets, and printing options.
- 2. Toolbar for quick access to frequently used functions.
- 3. **Page list** for easy navigation through the pages of the job and for managing the job content and layout.
- 4. Workspace with different layout options for viewing and editing the pages and sheets in the job.
- 5. Settings area for configuring job settings, such as imposition, finishing, covers, slip sheets, designation sheets, headers and footers, page numbering, page stamping, and bleed edge tabs. You can also remove noise from scanned documents, straighten skewed pages, and align the page content.

As an option, you can view the TotalFlow Prep user interface in high contrast. High contrast makes it easier to see icons and read text. To turn on high contrast, go to **Settings** \rightarrow **Preferences** \rightarrow **Display** and select the **[Use a high contrast theme]** check box.

Menu Bar

The menu bar provides access to file management, configuration, job editing, and printing options.

🔸 File Edit View Insert Settings Window Help 🛛 Apply preset 👻 C 🎆 Printer 1 🕞 🐼 🌲

Click the menu bar items to open the list of options available in each menu.

Apply preset 👻

Use the presets menu to apply a preset to the job or to register the current job settings as a preset.

📑 Printer 1

Use the printer selection menu to select a printer for the job.

The device capabilities and the list of available papers are automatically refreshed when you switch printers.

[Refresh printer information]

Click Click click click click click click and the list of available papers for the active printer.



Click the [Print] button to send the job to the printer.

Toolbar

The toolbar provides quick access to frequently used functions for editing pages and setting job properties.



These functions are available in the toolbar:

• [Undo] and [Redo] buttons

Undo and redo changes to the job.

Select tool]

Select and interact with pages in the job.

[Mask tool], [Text tool], and [Image tool]

Insert masks, text, and images on a page.

[Move area tool]

Move a selected area to a different position on the page.

Crop tool]

Crop a page.

•



Resize a page.



Rotate a page.

🕘 🍈 [Overlays]

Apply and manage registered overlays.

Paper: Auto : A4 (210 x 297 mm)

Paper selection menu

Select the paper for the job.

Tray selection menu

Select the tray where the job paper is loaded. The list of trays depends on the printer selected for the job.

• [Printing side]

Specify on which sides of the sheet to print and the direction in which the sheets are opened.

• [Orientation]

Specify whether pages have a vertical or horizontal layout.

• 🗾 [Staple]

Specify a stapling option for the job.

Color/Black and White]

Specify whether the job is printed in black and white or in full color. The options available for this setting depend on the printer selected for the job.

• Copies: 1 - + [Copies:]

Specify the number of copies.

Page List

You can use the page list to move through the pages of the job. The page list lets you select, move, copy, insert, and delete pages. Page information is also displayed, including paper settings, chapters, tabs, inserts, covers, designation sheets, exception settings, and PDF type.



Comportant 🗋

To improve performance when you edit large jobs, you can hide the actual job content and use placeholder thumbnails. Select **[Hide Sheet Content]** on the **[View]** menu to enable this function.

To change the view for the page list, click one of the available view buttons:

• 🖽 [Thumbnail view]

Displays the pages of the job as thumbnails in a grid, scaled according to the paper size.

The thumbnails show whether the orientation is portrait or landscape.

The chapter icon 🗖 marks the first page of each chapter.

• 🔳 [List view]

Displays the pages of the job as thumbnails one under the other, scaled according to the paper size and grouped by chapter.

The thumbnails show whether the orientation is portrait or landscape. Next to each thumbnail you can see the page number, whether the page is a cover, tab, insert, or designation page, the printing side setting, the paper size, and the color setting. The exception icon <

Vote

If the imposition is set to **[Booklet]** or **[Gangup]**, the page list displays the original page thumbnails and paper size.

To make changes to the pages:

• To reorder the pages, select the page or pages that you want to move, and then drag and drop them to the new location.

• Note

You can also drag and drop pages from the page list to the workspace area on the right if the workspace is displayed in **[Sheet view]** and if the job has **[Normal]** imposition and is set to print on the front side of the sheet.

- To insert a blank page before a page in the job, hover over the page and click . the **[Insert page]** button.
- To delete a page, hover over the page and click 🛄, the **[Delete page]** button.
- To insert a tab before a page, hover over the page and click **I**, the **[Insert tab]** button.
- To create a chapter before a page, hover over the page and click , the [Create chapter] button.

You can also use the right-click menu to make changes to the pages. Select the page or pages, rightclick, and select one of the options available in the menu.

To change the size of the page list area, click the separator line and drag it to the left or to the right.

```
You can also collapse and expand the area by clicking [Collapse] or [Expand].
```

Workspace

The workspace has different layout options for viewing and editing the pages and sheets in the job. Settings are shown in real time so that you can preview the final output.

To change the layout options for the workspace, click one of the view buttons available in the lower right corner. These views are available:

[Sheet view]

Displays the sheets in the job as thumbnails in a grid, scaled according to the paper size. If the job is set to print on one side, only the front side of the sheet is displayed. If the job is set to print on both sides, the back side of the sheet is also displayed.

Comportant 🔿

To improve performance when you edit large jobs, you can hide the actual job content and use placeholder thumbnails. Select **[Hide Sheet Content]** on the **[View]** menu to enable this function.



The thumbnail shows whether the orientation is portrait or landscape. Under each thumbnail, you can see the page numbers. On top of the thumbnail, you can see the sheet number and the paper specified for the sheet. Hover over the text for more information about the paper settings, the exception settings applied to the sheet, and the pages that are placed on the sheet.

The chapter icon A marks the first page of each chapter. The exception icon <>>> is displayed for sheets that are configured as exceptions.

Use the scroll bar or the arrows on the keyboard to move through the rows of thumbnails.

To adjust the size of the thumbnails, use one of these controls:

- 🔛 [Zoom in]

Use this button to increase the size of the thumbnails.

- [Zoom out]

Use this button to decrease the size of the thumbnails.



Use this setting to adjust the size of the thumbnails according to a specific percentage. To fit the sheet thumbnail to the width of the workspace area, select **[Fit width]**.



Use **share** and **share** to switch between scaling the sheet thumbnail to the width of the workspace area and 12% scaling percentage.

To make changes to the sheets:

 To reorder the sheets, select the sheet or sheets that you want to move, and then drag and drop them to the new location.

Note

You can reorder the sheets only if the job has **[Normal]** imposition and is set to print on the front side of the sheet.

- To insert a blank sheet before a sheet in the job, hover over the sheet and click , the [Insert sheet] button.
- To insert a tab before a sheet, hover over the sheet and click 🔲, the [Insert tab] button.
- To delete a sheet, hover over the sheet and click 🛄, the [Delete sheet] button.
- To delete a tab, hover over the tab and click ¹/₁, the [Delete tab] button.
- To create a chapter before a sheet, hover over the sheet and click , the [Create chapter] button.

You can also use the right-click menu to make changes to the sheets. Select the sheet or sheets, right-click, and select one of the options available in the menu.

[Reader view]

Displays the job as a book in the center of the workspace.

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
	Introduction	
	Important	
	Cautions Regarding This Guide	
	Guides for This Application	
	How to Read the Documentation	
	Before Using This Application	2
	How to Use the Manuals and Help	
	Trademarks	4
	1 Before Setting Up	
	Setup Flow	
	Computer Requirements	
	2 Installation	
	Installing the Main Application and Related Programs	
	Installing the Main Application	
	Installing the TotalFlow PDF Driver	
	Installing the Product Ucense	
	Upgrading from a Previous Venion of the Main Application	
	Upgrading the Main Application	
	Migrating Legacy Files to TotaFlow Prep 4.0 or Later	
	Uninstallation	
	Uninstalling the Main Application	
	Uninstalling the TotalRow PDF Driver Manually	
	3 Start-up/Shutdown	
	Start-up	23
	Preparation	
	Start-up Procedure	
	Shut Down	
	INDEX	
		ľ
,	、	
<	>	21 / 64

The **[Reader view]** lets you flip through the pages of the job and preview the output. To move through the job:

- Click the outer edge of the pages.
- Use , the [Previous page] button, and , the [Next page] button.
- Hover over the current page number and enter the number of the page that you want to display.
- Select a page in the page list.
- Click , the [Bookmarks] icon, and select [Beginning], a chapter name, or [End] to go to the first page, to a specific chapter, or to the last page.

Vote

Depending on the printer, paper settings, and finishing settings, the actual output might differ from the results shown in the preview.

You can also make changes to the sheets by using the right-click menu. Right-click a sheet and select one of the options available in the menu.

When you use functions that edit the original pages, such as inserting text, images, and masks, the workspace displays a single page at a time.

Edit Mode TABLE OF CONTENTS	
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
Frieductor	
mgga cri	
Ca.tions logareing This Guide	
Guides for this Assolution	
How to Read the Documentation	
Seione Jung Fris Application	
kawte Use Fe Mensolaar di Jap	
Tra demarks 4	
1 Before Setting Jo	
Saub Low	
Como, ver Recoivernents	
2 Installation	
Installing the Alein Applicator and Soleted Programs	
into ling. Fee Main Apprication	
istaling the TorolFlow PDF Driver	
retailing the Procest Lisense	
Upgrading from a Provious Version of the Main Application	
-ograding the Main Application. 20	
Alignming Legacy Film to TataFlaw Peep 4.0 or Janet	
Uninstalization 21	
- incelling the Mein Application	
- instilling the Total law IDF Driver Atomsal v	
3 Sters-py/Shutdowe	
Stelaer 22	
ieronalo: 23	
Survey Pagarone 21	
Sh (Down) 24	
INDEX	
1000	

This edit view also opens when you right-click a page and select **[Edit page]** from the menu or when you double-click a page in the page list or in the **[Sheet view]**.

Once the edit view is active, you can switch the page that is displayed in the workspace just by clicking pages in the page list.

You can return to **[Sheet view]** by clicking <, the **[Back to All Pages]** button, located in the upper left corner in the workspace.

To adjust the size of the displayed page, use one of these controls:

• 🖳 [Zoom in]

Use this button to increase the size of the displayed page.

[Zoom out]

Use this button to decrease the size of the displayed page.



Use this setting to adjust the size of the displayed page according to a specific percentage. To fit the page to the width of the workspace area, select **[Fit width]**.



12% scaling percentage.

To display rulers, grids, and guides in the edit view, select the **[Rulers]**, **[Grid]**, and **[Guides]** options in the **[View]** menu.

For advanced page editing, the **[Light Table]** and **[Mirror Light Table]** views are also available. For more information, see Using Advanced Editing Features, p. 146.

Settings Area

You can use the options in the settings area to configure job settings, such as imposition, finishing, covers, slip sheets, designation sheets, headers and footers, page numbering, page stamping, and bleed edge tabs. You can also remove noise from scanned documents, straighten skewed pages, and align the page content.



Click the tabs to switch between panels. Click the tab for the active panel to hide the content of the panel.

Reference

For more information on the available settings, see Editing Jobs, p. 95.

Right-Click Menu

The right-click menu appears when you right-click pages and sheets in the page list or in the workspace area and when you edit the original document and interact with text, images, and masks.

The options available in the menu depend on the item you right-click and the current job settings. If you right-click a sheet, for example, you can use the options in the right-click menu to cut, copy, and delete the sheet, to configure exceptions, tabs, and chapters, to insert pages, and to select other sheets in the job based on their properties.



You can also apply the options in the right-click menu to multiple pages, sheets, or objects. Select the pages, sheets, or objects, right-click the selection, and then select one of options available in the menu.

Reference

For more information on the available job editing options, see Editing Jobs, p. 95.

What You Can Do with This Application







Key Points and Procedures

You can follow the workflow illustrated below to create, edit, and output jobs.

Content Important

Make sure that you first register a printer. For more information, see Registering Printers, p. 63.



Reference

- For more information about setting up jobs, see Preparing Jobs, p. 85.
- For more information about editing jobs, see Editing Jobs, p. 95.

- Tutorial 1: Using General Functions
- Tutorial 2: Creating a Booklet

The tutorials provide step-by-step instructions that you can follow to better understand the functions and operations of this application.

There are two tutorials:

- Tutorial 1: Using General Functions, p. 29 This tutorial lets you try the main functions of this application using sample files.
- Tutorial 2: Creating a Booklet, p. 39

This tutorial lets you create a booklet using the PDF file of the Setup Guide provided with this application.

Tutorial 1: Using General Functions

This tutorial lets you try the main functions of this application using PDF, TIFF, and JPEG sample files.



Functions used in this tutorial:

- Create a new job
- Change page layout
 - Insert new pages
 - Move page
 - Delete page
- Edit original
 - Rotate
 - Despeckle
 - Deskew
 - Move area

Preparation

Before you begin the tutorial, follow the steps below.

1. Start the application.

For details about starting this application, see the Setup Guide.

2. Prepare the sample files.

Sample files used in this tutorial:

- 1_2_A.pdf
- 3_5_4.tif
- 6.jpg

Location of sample files: Installation path of this application\samples\

Vote

If you selected the default installation path when you installed this application, the sample files are located in the following folder:

C:\Program Files\RICOH\TotalFlow Prep\

If you upgraded from an older release of TotalFlow Prep, the new version is installed in the same folder as the previous version.

Procedure

Follow the steps in this procedure to get familiar with the main functions of this application.

Vote

Leave any settings that are not identified in this procedure at their default values.

Step 1: Create a job from the sample files

In this step, you will create a job from the sample files (1_2_A.pdf, 3_5_4.tif).

1. Click [Create New Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.



If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Create New Job** to create a new job.

2. In the **[Open]** dialog box, go to the samples folder, hold down the **Ctrl** key and select both 1_ 2_A.pdf and 3_5_4.tif, and then click **[Open]**.



Reference

For more details about creating jobs, see Preparing Jobs, p. 85.

Step 2: Insert another document

In this step, you will insert another sample file (6.jpg) into the job you created.

1. In the page list, right-click the last page and select [Insert new pages] from the menu.



2. In the [Insert pages] dialog box, click [Add files].

2 Insert p ges			×
+ Add files	<mark>≥ Scan</mark> Fiery Remote Sc	an 5 * ?	
Name	Page Range	Last Update	
		CANCEL	ОК

3. In the [Open] dialog box, go to the samples folder, select the 6.jpg file, and click [Open].



4. In the [Insert pages] dialog box, click [OK].

	Scan Fiery Remote S	can 5 🔹 🤊
Name	Page Range	Last Update
📾 6.jpg	-	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM

Reference

For more details about inserting new pages into a job, see Inserting Pages from Existing or Scanned Files, p. 107.

Step 3: Delete an unnecessary page

In this step, you will remove the page with the letter "A" on it.

- 1. In the page list, go to page "A".
- 2. Hover over the page and click *the* [Delete page] button.



Reference

For more details about deleting pages or sheets, see Deleting Pages and Sheets, p. 102.

Step 4: Rearrange the pages

In this step, you will rearrange the pages so they are in the correct order.

1. Click page "4" and hold the mouse button, then drag the page after page "3" and release the mouse button.



2. Make sure that the pages are now in correct order, from "1" to "6".



Reference

For more details about moving pages, see Moving Pages, p. 104.

Step 5: Rotate a page

The orientation of page "5" is different from the orientation of the other pages. In this step, you will rotate the page so it has the same orientation as the other pages.

1. Select page "5".
2

- <complex-block>
- 2. On the toolbar, click 2, the [Rotate page tool] button, and select [Rotate page 180°].

3. Click <, the [Back to All Pages] button, in the upper-left corner of the workspace.

Reference

For more details about rotating pages, see Rotating Pages, p. 123.

Step 6: Despeckle pages with noise

There is noise (unwanted dots or marks) on pages "3" and "5". In this step, you will remove the noise from these pages.

- 1. Select pages "3" and "5" holding the **Ctrl** key.
- 2. In the settings area on the right, click [Clean Up].



3. In the [Clean Up] panel, click [Despeckle].

The [Auto] method is selected by default.

- 4. Under [Pages], select [Selected valid pages].
- 5. Under [Strength], select [Coarse].
- 6. Click [Apply].



Reference

For more details about removing noise, see Removing Noise with Despeckle, p. 121.

Step 7: Straighten a skewed page

Page "4" is skewed. In this step, you will straighten it.

- 1. Click the skewed page "4" to select it.
- 2. In the [Clean Up] panel, click [Deskew].

							2
1	File Edit	View Insert Settings Wi	ndow Help		Apply preset	- C' 🎆 Printer 1	-
	r a	× 🗆 🗄 屯 🕫	T 🗛 × 🛝 🛛 - Pag	per: Custom: A5 (148 x 210 mm)) • ∐• ᡚ• ≝•	🖉 - 🌔 - Copies: 1 - +	
	: =		1 - A5 (148 x 210 mm)	2 - A5 (148 x 210 mm)	3 - AS (148 x 210 mm)		
	1	1. Page 1-sided Color A5 (148 x 210 mm)	4	0	3	Pages Selected valid pages	Finishing
	2	2. Page 1-sided Color A5 (148 x 210 mm)	1	Z	0	Angle Auto Manu	ual Covers
	3	3. Page 1-sided Color Image A5 (148 x 210 mm)	1 4 - A5 (148 x 210 mm)	2 5 - A5 (148 x 210 mm)	3 6 - A5 (148 x 210 mm)	APPLY next page >	Page Content
	4	ge ed Color Image 48 x 210 mm)	Λ	_	0		Impose Gean Up
	Ĩ	5. Page 1-sided Color Image A5 (148 x 210 mm)	4	5	6		
		6. Page 1-sided Color Image A5 (148 x 210 mm)	4	5	Q Q 31%+		
	1						

3. Under [Pages], select [Active page].

The page is displayed in the workspace in the edit view.

You can click , the **[Zoom out]** button, or , the **[Zoom in]** button, to adjust the size of the page in the workspace.

Vote

Make sure that the [Rulers], [Grid], and [Guides] options are selected in the [View] menu.

- 4. Under [Angle], click [Manual].
- 5. Click the page and drag the cursor to draw a reference line parallel with the skewed edge of the image.
- 6. Click [Apply].



7. In the settings area on the right, click [Clean Up] to close the [Clean Up] panel.

Reference

For more details about straightening skewed pages, see Straightening Skewed Pages, p. 122.

Step 8: Select and move an area of a page

The page number on page "3" is in a different location than the page numbers on the other pages. In this step, you will move the page number to the center of the page, where it is on the other pages.

- 1. In the page list, select page "3" to display it in the workspace.
- 2. On the toolbar, click 2, the [Move area tool] button.
- Click the page and drag the cursor to create a selection area that surrounds the page number.
 You can use the anchor points to resize the selected area.



4. Right-click the selected area and select **Center** \rightarrow **Both** from the menu.



Reference

For more details about selecting and moving an area, see Moving a Selected Area, p. 129.

Tutorial 2: Creating a Booklet

This tutorial helps you practice creating a booklet from sample PDF and TIFF files.

Depending on the functions available on your printer, you can practice creating one of two booklet types, [A] or [B].



Functions used in this tutorial:

- Create a new job
- Create and rename chapters
- Edit original

- Insert text
- Insert image
- Delete image
- Paper, imposition, and finishing settings
 - Set job paper
 - Set imposition
 - Add page numbers
 - Insert tabs (booklet [A] only)
 - Finishing (staple, fold)

Selecting a booklet type

The instructions in this tutorial cover two different booklet types.

Use the information in the table to select a type of booklet according to the functions available on your printer. Follow the instructions for the type of booklet you select.

Booklet Type	Binding Method	Required Printer Functions
Booklet [A]	Regular printing (2-sided) Staple: [2 at left] Insert tab stock (optional)	Stapler An input tray where you can load tab stock
		It your printer does not have an input tray where you can load tab stock, you can proceed with the practice without inserting tab stock.
Booklet [B]	Inner binding (Staple: [2 at center])	Booklet stapler Folding unit

Reference

For information on the functions available on your printer, see the printer documentation.

Preparation

Before you begin the tutorial, follow the steps below.

1. Start the application.

For details about starting this application, see the Setup Guide.

2. Prepare the sample files.

Sample files used in this tutorial:

• Setup Guide.pdf

- For an A4-size booklet:
 - L_A4.tif
 - R_A4.tif
- For a letter-size booklet:
 - L_LT.tif
 - R_LT.tif

Location of sample files:

- Setup Guide.pdf: Installation path of this application\manual\
- .tif files: Installation path of this application\samples\

Note

If you selected the default installation path when you installed this application, the sample files are located in the following folder:

C:\Program Files\RICOH\TotalFlow Prep\

If you upgraded from an older release of TotalFlow Prep, the new version is installed in the same folder as the previous version.

3. Check your printer.

Make sure that you have registered a printer and that it is ready to use.

Reference

See Registering Printers, p. 63.

4. Prepare the printing paper.

Load the paper for the booklet in the input tray of the printer. Set the paper according to the type of booklet:

	For Booklet [A]	For Booklet [B]
Paper size	A4 (210 × 297 mm) or Letter (8.5 × 11 inches)	A4 (210 × 297 mm) or Letter (8.5 × 11 inches)
Number of sheets (per booklet)	16 booklet sheets, 3 tab stock sheets (optional)	8 booklet sheets

Reference

For details about loading the paper in the input tray, see the printer documentation.

Procedure

Follow the steps in this procedure to create a booklet using this application.

The instructions differ for booklet [A] and booklet [B]. Read the instructions for the booklet type you are creating.

Vote

Leave any settings that are not identified in this procedure at their default values.

Step 1: Create a job from the sample file

In this step, you will create a job from the sample file (Setup Guide.pdf).

1. Click [Create New Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.



↓Note

If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Create New Job** to create a new job.

2. In the [Open] dialog box, browse for the Setup Guide.pdf file, select it, and click [Open].



Reference

For more details about creating jobs, see Preparing Jobs, p. 85.

Step 2: Create chapters

In this step, you will divide the pages into different chapters. This is important for setting page numbers later in the procedure.

Set chapters according to this table:

Chapter number	Chapter name	First page of the chapter
1	Preface	Page 1
2	Chapter 1	First page of "1. Before Setting Up", page 11
3	Chapter 2	First page of "2. Installation", page 15
4	Chapter 3	First page of "3. Start-up/Shutdown", page 25

- 1. Make sure that the [List view] is active in the page list.
- 2. Hover over page 1 and click **I**, the **[Create chapter]** button.



3. Click in the chapter field, delete the default chapter name, and enter Preface.

3				
File Ec View Insert Settings V	Vindow Help		Apply preset - C	🎆 Printer 1 🔹 🏠 🏚
「 「 「 「 「 」 」<] 🚹 🖬 - 🖄 - 🔲 - Pape	r: Custom: A4 (210 x 297 mm) -	□- 10- 12- 2- \$-	Copies: 1 – +
/* =	1 - A4 (210 x 297 mm)	2 - A4 (210 x 297 mm)	3 - A4 (210 x 297 mm)	4 - A4 (210 x 297 mm)
1. Preface 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Holdsoff Here And States And And States And And And And And And And And And And	And a start of the
2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	2		A transmission and a second science and a seco	Current of the second of the s
3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		2	n na stand an an ann an	4 Page Content
4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	5 - A4 (210 x 29/ mm)	6 - 44 (210 X 29/ mm)	7 - AR (210 x 297 mm) Here and the second	8 - A4 (210 x 297 mm)
5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Contraction of the second seco	Image: State	A surf Haire (Haire March Haire (Haire) March Hair (Haire) March Haire March Hairton March Haire March Hairo March Haire March Haire March	
6. Page 1-sided Color	La der de la constante de la c	Ann rhan phononaith an an ann an Air		Q Q 24% ≠

4. Follow the previous two steps to create and rename the rest of the chapters.

Reference

For more details about creating and renaming chapters, see Creating Chapters, p. 110.

Step 3: Set the paper and the input tray

In this step, you will specify the paper that you want to use for the job.

- 1. Make sure that the printer you want to use is selected in the printers menu.
- 2. Open the paper selection menu on the toolbar and select the paper that you want to use for printing on the **[Select Paper]** screen.

The papers that are currently loaded in the printer trays are listed in the [Loaded Paper] section.



3. Open the tray selection menu on the toolbar and select the input tray where the paper is loaded.

			3	
			_1	
File Edit View Insert Settings Window	v Help		🚣 - c	📆 Printer 1 🔹 🔹 🌲
か つ 下 つ 下 つ 下 つ 日 <	🔽 - 🎿 - 🖬 - Paper:	ля (Copies: 1 -+
	1 - A4	2 - 44	ay select	4- 44
📕 1. Preface	ROOT Station True		2 Tray 2 (A5)	Job Setup
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Caracting industries Annual Annual Annua Annual Annual		3 Tray 3 (A3) 4 Tray 4 (A4) 5 Tray 5 (Letter)	Marcine Barrierie Marcine Marcine M. Records - Marcine Marci
2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Australia Standard Standa	Covers Covers
3. Page			facility could be one care a point choice for an interview of the second state of the galaxies of the course of the second state of the second sta	Page
1-sided Color 44 (210 x 297 mm)	1	2	3	4
	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 · A4	8 - A4 Impose
4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Inge and Process standarding to the program inter standarding to the program inter standarding to the program interpret to the standarding to the standarding to the standarding the standarding to the standarding to the standarding to the standarding the standarding to the standarding t	Clean Up
5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	A constraint of the second sec	Image: The second sec	- superflow the first section is a section in the section is a secti	
6. Page 1-sided Color	And the second s	Next is a drawn of the start of the STATE STATE is an increase of the start. Next is a start of the start o		Q Q 24%-

For more details about specifying paper settings, see Specifying Paper Settings, p. 150.

Step 4: Insert text on the cover sheet

In this step, you will insert the text Sample on the cover sheet.

- 1. In the page list, go to the cover page (page 1) and select it.
- - 3. Place the cursor on the page and click to insert a text box.
 - 4. Enter Sample in the text box, and then click anywhere else on the page to save the text.

Sheets Page

Impose

2	Tutorials



5. Click the text and hold the mouse button, then drag the text to the top left corner of the page and release the mouse button.

File Edit	View Insert Settings 1	Window Help				Apply preset		Printer 1			
r a	N 🗆 🗄 🖬 🖉		• 🖬 - 🔺	Arial - 12 -		x 5.55 ‡ y 12	.52 ‡				
: =			20 30 40	ndimuutarinndimuuda	e 90 Edit	00 110 120 130 t Mode	140 150 1 nilamuuluunnulu	80 170 180	200	210 220	in the section
1. Preface			1								
	1. Page 1-sided Color	Sa	àble		J	RICOH TotalFl	ow Prep				Finishing
		NU 1	-								County
П	2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	40						• • •	••		Sheets
			Operating I	nstructions	E	Before Setting Up			1		
The second second	3. Page		Setup Guide	e							Page
No.	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	-1			1	nstallation			2		
									=		Impose
far	4. Page					Start-up/Shutdown			З		
And Address of the Ad	1-sided Color										Clean Up
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)				1	For information not in	this	0			
177	5. Page					System in your produc	it.	U			
100 C	1-sided Color										
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)										
a sector	6. Page	Pages 1	K K	1 2 2				m- 0 0	100% -		
	1-sided Color										

Reference

For more details about inserting and editing text, see Adding Text, p. 133 and Editing Text, p. 134.

Step 5: Place an image on the page

5

In this step, you will place the sample image files (L_A4.tif, R_A4.tif, L_LT.tif, R_LT.tif) on the edges of the pages.

- 1. Click , the **[Zoom out]** button, until you see the entire page in the workspace.
- 2. On the toolbar, click [Mage tool] button, and then click [Choose Image...].



3. In the **[Open]** dialog box, go to the samples folder, select either the L_A4.tif or the L_LT.tif file, and click **[Open]**.

aanize 💌 New folder		8= - FN
RICOH Printer Connector TotalFlow Prep app manual PC	 Name 3.5_4.tif 6.jpg L_A4.tif L_LT.tif A 4.tif 	Type TIFF image JPG File TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image
🧯 samples 🦗 svc	 R_LT aif * * [TIFF image
File <u>n</u> ame:	L_A4.tif	Custom Files Qpen Cancel

Make sure that you select the image based on the paper that you want to use to print the job:

- L_A4.tif for A4 paper.
- L_LT.tif for Letter paper.
- 4. Select the image, click , the [Maintain proportions] button, and specify these position and size settings:
 - In the **[x]** field, enter 0 mm (0 inches).
 - In the **[y]** field, enter 0 mm (0 inches).
 - In the **[w]** field, enter 22 mm (0.86 inches).
 - In the **[h]** field, enter 297 mm (11 inches).



5. Right-click the image and select [Cut] from the menu.



6. Right-click again and select **Paste to** \rightarrow **Even pages** from the menu.



7. Click , the [Image tool] button, and then click [Choose Image...].

				7 ∎						
File	Edit	View Insert Settings	Window			Apply preset	- c 🎬	Printer 1	• 🕥	٠
r		× 🗆 🗄 屯	20 L	Paper	: A4	- 11- 🚺- I	🛯 - 🗾 - 🚺 - Co	opies: 1 - +		
	≣			A4.tif	100 120 140 150 150	200 200 200 240 3	100 1 240 1 350 1 350 1	340 300 300 400	450 440	-
1.				hoose Image						Job Setup
		1. Page 1-sided Color	and a	Sample	RICOH TotalFlow Prep					Finishing
	· _	A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Operating Instructions	Rebue Serting (Sr					
	T.	2. Page	8- -	setup dance	halan					coven
		1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	8-		Su-spharing					Sheets
					na information on the this normal, information products					
		3. Page 1-sided Color								Page Content
1	inter-	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	1							
-		4. Page		•						ençose
1001		1-sided Color								Clean Up
		A4 (210 x 297 mm)	- 1							
Ţ	1	5. Page	10.1							
1	13	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	10.1							
	_	6 Page	- 1			-	-			
		1-sided Color		iges 1 < <				<u>ା ପ୍</u> ର୍ 50%		

8. In the **[Open]** dialog box, go to the samples folder, select either the R_A4.tif or the R_LT.tif file, and click **[Open]**.

🗸 🗢 📕 « RICOH 🕨 Tot	alFlow Prep 🔸 samples	Search samples	\$
Organize 👻 New folder		庫• 🗍	0
RICOH Printer Connector TotalFlow Prep app PC Sommanual PC Sommanual Soc Uninstaller	 Name 3.5.4.tif 6.jpg L.A.4.tif L.T.tif R.A.4.tif R_LT.tif 	Type TIFF image JPG File TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image	
File <u>n</u> ame:	R_A4.tif	Custom Files	•
			el

Make sure that you select the image based on the paper that you want to use to print the job:

- R_A4.tif for A4 paper.
- R_LT.tif for Letter paper.
- 9. Select the image, click ^(a), the [Maintain proportions] button, and specify these position and size settings:
 - In the **[x]** field, enter 188 mm (7.64 inches).
 - In the **[y]** field, enter 0 mm (0 inches).
 - In the **[w]** field, enter 22 mm (0.86 inches).
 - In the **[h]** field, enter 297 mm (11 inches).



10. Right-click the image and select [Cut] from the menu.

			10	0	
File Edit View Insert Settings Windo	ow Help		Apply preset	- C 🎆 Printer 1	• 🚺 🔺
r ~ N 🗖 🖸 🗄 🗔 🛛	T 🕰 - 🖄 - 🔲 - x 18	18 \$ y 0 \$ w 22	\$ 9a h 297 \$		
II II		100, 120, 140, 140, 140, 110, dit Mode	200 200 240 240	1. 1300 1. 1220 1. 1340 1. 1250 1. 1251	400 420 440 Job Setup
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Sample Operating Instructions	RICOH TotalFlow Prep	select all		Finishing
2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Setup Guide	haalaan Sarrapõaddee Saldeeverin polin Mis Sanda de provinsion	Topy Paste Special Paste to		Covers Sheets
3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Spannik yez prosec	Delete Order Center		Page Content
4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Set to actual size Revert changes Create overlay	-	Clean Up
5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Rotate 90° clockwise Rotate 90° counterclockw	vise	
6. Page 1-sided Color	Pages 1 K <	1 Second second characteristics	ample		50%~

11. Right-click again and select **Paste to** \rightarrow **Odd pages** from the menu.



Reference

For more details about inserting and editing images, see Adding an Image, p. 138, Editing an Image, p. 139, and Cutting, Copying, and Pasting an Image, p. 141.

Step 6: Delete the images placed on the cover pages

In this step, you will delete the images placed on the front and back cover pages.

1. Right-click the image on the front cover page and select [Delete] from the menu.



- 2. In the page list, go to the back cover page and select it.
- 3. Right-click the image on the back cover page and select [Delete] from the menu.



Step 7: Set imposition

In this step, you will specify imposition settings.

- 1. Click **Line**, the **[Sheet view]** button, and adjust the zoom level to display multiple pages in the workspace.
- 2. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].



- 3. Specify imposition settings depending on the type of booklet you want to create:
 - For booklet [A]:
 - 1. Click [Normal].
 - 2. Under [Printing Side], select [Both sides (2-sided), open to left].
 - 3. Under [Scale], select [Scale to fit].



- For booklet [B]:
 - 1. Click [Booklet].
 - 2. Make sure that [Booklet] is selected under [Booklet type].
 - 3. Under [Scale], select [Scale to fit].

• Note

If the number of pages is not divisible by four, TotalFlow Prep automatically adds blank pages to the job.



4. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose] to close the [Impose] panel.

Reference

For more details about specifying imposition settings, see Specifying Imposition Settings, p. 153.

Vote

The next steps in the procedure use booklet [A] for the images provided with the instructions.

Step 8: Add page numbers

In this step, you will configure the required settings to print page numbers.

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].
- 2. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Page Numbers].



- 3. On the [Page Numbers] screen, configure these page numbering settings:
 - 1. Under [Format], select [P1, P2].
 - 2. Select [Arial] for the font type and specify 7 points for the font size.
 - Under [FRONT], select [BOTTOM] [Center] and enter 10 mm (0.39 inches) in the [From bottom] field.

By default, the **[Use settings for both sides]** option is enabled and the position settings specified for the page numbers apply to both sides of the sheet.

- Under [Chapters], enter 3 in [Start Page] and enter 1 in [Start Number] for Chapter 1. By default, the [Start Number] for each chapter is locked and the numbering continues from the previous chapter.
- 5. Under [Skip numbering on pages], enter the number of the last page in [Skip page #].
- 6. Click [OK].



4. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content] to close the [Page Content] panel.

Reference

For more details about inserting page numbers, see Adding Page Numbers, p. 193.

Step 9: Specify settings for adding tab stock

In this step, you will specify settings to insert tab stock.

Comportant 🔿

Skip this step and proceed to Step 10: Specify finishing settings, p. 58 if you do not have tab stock or if you are creating booklet [B].

- 1. In the page list, select the first page of Chapter 1, Chapter 2, and Chapter 3 holding the **Ctrl** key.
- 2. Right-click the selection and choose **Tabs** \rightarrow **Insert and edit...** from the menu.



- 3. On the [Edit Tabs] screen, configure these settings:
 - 1. Select a tab stock preset from the [Tab stock preset] list.

You can click the **[Edit]** button next to a tab stock preset to view and edit its settings in the **[Edit Tab Stock Preset]** dialog box.

If the required tab stock preset is not available, click **[New Preset]** to open the **[Add Tab Stock Preset]** dialog box and register a new tab stock preset for the type of tab stock you will use.

- 2. Under [Tab input tray], select the tray where the tab stock is loaded.
- 3. Under [Tab stock], select the tab stock paper that you want to use.
- 4. Click **[OK]**.



Reference

For more details about inserting and editing tabs, see Inserting Tabs, p. 173 and Editing Tabs, p. 176.

Note

You can also print job content on tab stock. For more information, see Converting a Page to a Tab, p. 175.

Step 10: Specify finishing settings

In this step, you will specify the required finishing settings to bind the booklet.

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the **[Finishing]** panel, specify finishing settings depending on the type of booklet you want to create:
 - For booklet [A], select [2 at left] under [Staple].
 - For booklet [B], select [2 at center] under [Staple].



3. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing] to close the [Finishing] panel.

Reference

For more details about finishing settings, see Specifying Finishing Settings, p. 166.

Step 11: Preview the output and print the document

In this step, you will preview the output to make sure that the specified settings have been correctly applied, and then you will print the document.

- 1. Click **[Reader view]** button, in the right corner of the workspace.
- 2. Click the outer edge of the pages or use , the [Previous page] button, and , the [Next page] button, to move through the job and verify the output.

Make sure that these settings are applied correctly:

- Insert text
- Insert image
- Delete image
- Imposition
- Page numbering
- Insert tab stock (for booklet [A] only)
- Finishing
- 3. Click , the [Print] button.



Reference

- For more details about previewing jobs, see Previewing Jobs, p. 223. •
- For more details about printing jobs, see Sending Jobs to a Printer, p. 224. •

Step 12: Save the job

In this step, you will save the job in an RJF format. You can edit or print saved jobs later.

- 1. On the [File] menu, select [Save As]. <u>.</u> T PA Pape 11- 1 A: network parentited by applicable losse, in no array will the sever artistig out of failures of this predict, losses of docu speculian moments pravided with R nutacturer is a lisk in the or the or data, or the use of 1.1 To the mosters domages what 1.1 Fuldhal Ŭ +-+ 3 / 36 >
 - In the [Save a File] dialog box, browse for the folder where you want to save the job and open 2. it, then follow these steps:

1 1

Γ Sheet

Impose Ø

1. Enter Setup Guide in the [File name] field.

- 2. Select [Ricoh Job Format (*.rjf)] from the [Save as type] list.
- 3. Click [Save].

~ ~		
) () • Di	•	47 Search Data
Organize - Ne folder) = - (
🔶 Favorites	Name	Туре
Desktop Downloads	Job 1.rjf	TotalFlow Prep File
Nesktop		
	iuide	
File name: Setup G	bb Format (*.rjf)	
File name: Setup G Save as type: Ricoh Jo		
File name: Setup G Save as type: Ricoh Jo	Compression r	tate: Low(quality priority)
File name: Setup C Save as type: Ricoh Jo	Compression r	ate: Low(quality priority) * Save Cancel

BReference

For more details about saving jobs, see Saving Jobs, p. 227.

- Registering Printers
- Managing the Paper Catalog
- Setting Preferences

You can register and configure the printers that you want to use with TotalFlow Prep and manage the paper catalog. To improve productivity, you can also set preferences to customize general, display, and external program settings.

Registering Printers

To print documents using this application, you must first register a printer. You can register multiple printers to handle different types of output formats.

Vote

- If you do not register a printer, you can still edit jobs using the sample printer. However, you cannot print a job using the sample printer.
- In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, printer management functions are not available. When you edit a job in the browser version, TotalFlow Prep uses the printer that was set in TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.

TotalFlow Prep can communicate with supported job ticket printers using PostScript, a combination of JDF and PDF, or Fiery API.

The PDF/JDF printer language offers a greater range of features using a pure PDF workflow and is available when you connect to TotalFlow Print Server or to an EFI Fiery print server that supports Fiery JDF. Some output options are only available when the printer language is set to **[PDF/JDF]**. For example, you can specify printer features, such as presets defined on an EFI Fiery print server, and unused tab ejection settings only for printers that use PDF/JDF. See the *Printer Connector Readme* for details about supported printers and controllers.

Fiery API provides the same features as the PDF/JDF printer language and can be used to communicate with certain EFI Fiery printers that have Fiery API version 5 or later. For the list of supported printers, see the *Printer Connector Readme*.

You can register non-RICOH printers using custom printer definition files created by regional experts. For each registered printer, you can specify the available installable options. Possible installable options include folding, binding, punching, stapling, and trimming units.

TotalFlow Prep also lets you register Windows printers that are connected to your system and use a printer driver compatible with the Windows V4 Print Subsystem.

Adding Printers

You can register new printers on the [Printer Management] screen.

Comportant 🗋

Before registering a printer, make sure that both your computer and the printer are correctly connected to the network. For details about printers that are compatible with this application, see the *Printer Connector Readme*. For details about how to connect the printer to a network, see the printer documentation.

To add a printer:

1. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.

Settings	Window	Help		
Presets.				
Paper C	atalog		F3	Ľ Ľ
Tab Sto	k Presets			
Tab The	mes			
Bleed E	dge Tab Pres	sets		
Printer I	Managemen	1t 🎍		
Update	Printer Info	rmation		
Prefere	nces			

Note

You can also open the **[Printer Management]** screen directly from the printer selection menu on the menu bar.

2. On the [Printer Management] screen, click [Add Printer].

Printer Management		×
+ Add Printer + Add Server		
Name	Connection status	
✓ Sample printer 0.0.0.0/9100/-	•	
	CLOS	E

3. On the [Add Printer] screen, follow these steps:

Add Printer	×
General SNMP	
Printer name *	?
Printer type Standard printer Windows printer (Feature Preview) Distance model	?
-Select-	Settings Send Feedback
Printer language	?
IP address *	?
Port number *	?
9100	
CANCEL	ОК

- In the [Printer name] field, enter a display name for the printer. Enter up to 32 bytes.
- 2. Under [Printer type], select [Standard printer].
- 3. Configure the rest of the printer settings in the [General] and [SNMP] tabs.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

• Note

- Make sure that SNMP is activated on the printer. See the printer documentation for more information.
- The configured SNMP settings must match the corresponding settings on the printer.
- 4. Click [OK].

Adding Custom Printers

You can register non-RICOH printers using custom printer definition files created by regional experts.

Coloritant 🗋

Before registering a printer, make sure that both your computer and the printer are correctly connected to the network. For details about how to connect the printer to a network, see the printer documentation.

To add a custom printer:

1. Go to Start \rightarrow All apps \rightarrow RICOH TotalFlow Prep and click [Custom Printer Tool].

Vote

The procedure might differ according to the operating system you are using.

The Custom Printer Tool opens in the default web browser.

- 2. Add the custom printer definition file for the custom printer that you want to register. For more information, see Importing a Custom Printer Definition File, p. 68.
- 3. In TotalFlow Prep, go to Settings → Printer Management.

Settings	Window	Help			
Presets.					
Paper Ca	atalog		F3	ᄖ ゙	
Tab Stoo	k Presets				
Tab The	mes				
Bleed Ed	dge Tab Pres	ets			
Printer I	Managemen	t 🍌			
Update	Printer Infor	mation			
Preferer	nces				

Note

You can also open the **[Printer Management]** screen directly from the printer selection menu on the menu bar.

4. On the [Printer Management] screen, click [Add Printer].

Printer Management		×
+ Add Printer + Add Server		
Name	Connection status	
 Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / - 	•	
	CLC	DSE

5. On the [Add Printer] screen, follow these steps:

Add Printer					×
General SNMP					
Printer name *					?
Printer type					?
🔵 Standard printer					
Custom printer					
Printer model *					
-Select-		-		Setting	JS
O Windows printer (Feature Preview Printer model)				
-Select-		-		Setting	JS
				Send Feed	lback
Printer language					?
PostScript					-
IP address *					?
Port number *					?
9100					
	C/	ANCE	L	OK	(

1. In the **[Printer name]** field, enter a display name for the printer.

Enter up to 32 bytes.

- 2. Under [Printer type], select [Custom printer].
- 3. Under [Printer model], select the custom printer that you want to add.

The list of printers depends on the custom printer definition files added through the Custom Printer Tool.

4. Click [Settings...] and specify the installable options available on the printer.

Note

The specified installable options determine which settings are available for jobs that use this printer.

For more information, see Using the Installable Options, p. 68.

5. Configure the rest of the printer settings in the **[General]** tab.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Note

SNMP settings are not available for custom printers.

6. Click **[OK]**.

Importing a Custom Printer Definition File

Click Import Custom Printer Definition File...
 The [Import Custom Printer Definition File...] button is located in the upper-left corner of the screen.

You see the **[Open]** dialog box.

2.

Select a .gpz file from the dialog box and click **[Open]**. The .gpz file is displayed in the table on the main page and it is automatically selected. You can now use this custom printer definition file when you create a printer object in your TotalFlow application.

You see the .gpz file in the table on the main page.

RICOH Printer Connector					?-
Click the "Import Custom Printer Definition File Click the "Import Custom Printer Definition File" to add definition files to the list of files. This will make the file available for the PrinterConnector to use in TotalFlow products.					
Custom Printer Definition File *	Printer Model	Version	Printer Manufacturer	Date Modified	
Mapping File1.gpz	Xerox DocuPrint	3.0	Xerox	Wed Feb 03 08:44:18 E	

Deleting a Custom Printer Definition File

- On the table on the main page, hover over the custom printer definition file that you want to delete and click , the [Delete] button. You see a warning message.
- 2. Click **[YES]**.

The selected custom printer definition file is deleted from Printer Connector.

Vote

After you remove the custom printer definition file, you can no longer use the deleted custom printer definition file to create new printers. However, all the printers created using that custom printer definition file will still function correctly.

Using the Installable Options

Configure the Installable Options depending on the capabilities of your printer. See the documentation for your printer for information on the device capabilities.

To configure the Installable Options:

1. Select the options that are available for your printer.

The **[Engine]** is selected by default, and it refers to the main component of a printer that performs the printing.

Examples of installable options include: puncher, folding unit, booklet finisher, or stapler.

2. To save your changes, click the **[OK]** button.

To change the capabilities of your printer, return to the Installable Options panel and select the desired options according to your needs.

Adding Windows Printers

TotalFlow Prep lets you add printers that are connected to your Windows system and use a printer driver compatible with the Windows V4 Print Subsystem.

C Important

- This function is currently provided only as a preview version. For the list of known limitations and possible solutions, see the Readme file available from the Windows Start menu.
- Before registering a printer, make sure that both your computer and the printer are correctly connected to the network. For details about how to connect the printer to a network, see the printer documentation.

To add a Windows printer:

1. Make sure that the printer you want to add is configured correctly in Windows and uses a printer driver compatible with the Windows V4 Print Subsystem.

For more information, see the Windows Help and the documentation for your printer.

For examples of supported drivers, go to http://support.ricoh.com/bb/html/dr_ut_e/rc3/ model/p_i/p_i.htm?lang=en.

2. In TotalFlow Prep, go to **Settings** \rightarrow **Printer Management**.



You can also open the **[Printer Management]** screen directly from the printer selection menu on the menu bar.

3. On the [Printer Management] screen, click [Add Printer].

P	Printer Management		×
	+ Add Printer + Add Server		
	Name	Connection status	
~	Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / -	•	
			CLOSE

- - 4. On the [Add Printer] screen, follow these steps:

Add Printer	
General SNMP	
Printer name *	?
Printer type Standard printer Windows printer (Feature Preview) Printer model *	?
-Select-	Settings
	Send Feedback
Printer language	?
PostScript	Ψ.
IP address	?
Port number	?
9100	
CANCEL	ОК

- In the [Printer name] field, enter a display name for the printer. Enter up to 32 bytes.
- 2. Under [Printer type], select [Windows printer].
- 3. Under [Printer model], select the Windows printer that you want to add.
The list of printers only includes the printers available on your Windows system that use a printer driver compatible with the Windows V4 Print Subsystem.

- 4. Click [OK].
- 5. On the [Printer Management] screen, hover over the registered Windows printer and click \checkmark , the [Edit] button.
- 6. On the [Edit Printer] screen, click [Settings...].
- 7. On the RICOH Windows Printer Mapping screen, configure mappings for the settings available on the printer.

A default set of mappings is already available based on the printer model.

For more information, click the help button on the RICOH Windows Printer Mapping screen.

Adding Workflows from TotalFlow Production Manager

You can register workflows available in TotalFlow Production Manager on the [Printer Management] screen.

🔂 Important 🔵

To print jobs using TotalFlow Production Manager, you must first set up TotalFlow Production Manager and make sure it is connected to the network. For more information, see the TotalFlow Production Manager documentation.

To add a workflow:

1. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.

Settings	Window	Help		
Presets.				
Paper C	atalog		F3	la ,
Tab Sto	k Presets			
Tab The	mes			
Bleed E	dge Tab Pres	ets		
Printer I	Managemen	it 🌆		
Update	Printer Info	rmation		
Preferer	nces			
Ţ	Note	$\overline{}$		

You can also open the **[Printer Management]** screen directly from the printer selection menu on the menu bar.

2. On the [Printer Management] screen, click [Add Server].

Printer Management	×
+ Add Printer + Add Server	
Name	Connection status
 ✓ Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / - 	•
	CLOSE

3. Configure the settings for the workflow that you want to add.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Server IP address *		?
Workflow name *		?
		Ŧ
Custom printer name *		7
	CANCEL	OK

4. Click **[OK]**.

Editing Printer Settings

You can change the settings of a registered printer.

To modify the settings of a printer:

- 1. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.
- 2. On the [Printer Management] screen, hover over the printer and click 🖍, the [Edit] button.

Printer Management	×
+ Add Printer + Add Server	
Name	Connection status
✓ Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / -	•
Printer 1 173	• © † 🐔
	Edit
	CLOSE

- Change the printer settings as necessary.
 For details about a specific setting, click the 2 button to display the on-screen field help.
- 4. Click **[OK]**.

Deleting Printers

You can delete registered printers that you no longer use.

To delete a printer:

- 1. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.
- 2. On the **[Printer Management]** screen, hover over the printer that you want to remove and click *m*, the **[Delete]** button.

Printer Management		×
+ Add Printer + Add Server		
Name	Connection status	
✓ Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / -	•	
Printer 1	•	© 5
		Delete
		CLOSE

Setting the Default Printer

You can specify which printer is used by default on the [Printer Management] screen.

To set the default printer:

- 1. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.
- 2. On the [Printer Management] screen, hover over the printer that you want to set as default and click \bigotimes , the [Set as default] button.

Name	Connection status	
Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / -	•	
Printer 1	•	€ ≞
		Set as defau

Viewing Printer Information

You can view connection details and status information for registered printers.

To view printer information:

- 1. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.
- 2. Look at the information displayed for each printer on the [Printer Management] screen:

Printer Management + Add Printer + Add Server	×	
Name	Connection status	
 Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / - 	•	
Printer 1	Ready i	
	ready	
	CLOSE	

- The default printer icon 🖌 shows which printer is set as default.
- The color icon ^O and the black and white icon ^O show whether the printer can print in full color or only in black and white.
- Under the printer name you can see the IP, port number, and SNMP version set for the printer. Hover over the printer icon for information on the printer language, the printer controller type, and the link for the printer Web page.
- The connection status icons show whether the printer is ready to accept jobs:

[Ready]	The printer is online and ready to receive jobs.		
●[Offline]	The printer is offline. TotalFlow Prep cannot communicate with the printer.		
[Warning]	The printer is online and can receive jobs, but it indicates warnings such as low ink levels.		
e[Error]	The printer is in an error state and cannot receive jobs.		

Refreshing Printer Information

You can refresh the status information and the device capabilities received from registered printers.

Vote

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

- 1. To refresh the status of a registered printer, do one of the following:
 - Close and reopen the [Printer Management] screen.
 - Edit and save the printer settings.

✓Note

The printer status is also refreshed automatically at regular intervals as long as the **[Printer Management]** screen is open.

2. To refresh the device capabilities and the list of available papers for a registered printer, make

sure that the printer is selected in the printer selection menu on the menu bar and then click the [Refresh printer information] button, or select [Update Printer Information] on the [Settings] menu.

File Edit View Insert Settings Window Help	Apply preset	🝷 🧙 🚮 Printer 1	• 🚺 🌲
--	--------------	-----------------	-------

Note

The device capabilities and the list of available papers are also refreshed automatically when you open a job, edit the printer settings, or switch printers from the printer selection menu.

Managing the Paper Catalog

The paper catalog contains all the papers that are defined on the printer selected for the job and all the custom papers defined locally in TotalFlow Prep. Papers represent the paper, envelopes, forms, labels, or transparencies that jobs are printed on and that you can select when you set paper properties for jobs.

To view and manage the paper catalog:

1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Paper Catalog].



2. On the [Paper Catalog] screen:

Paper Catalog		+Add F	Paper Im	port	Export	×
C ⁱ Name ▲	Size	Weight	Туре	Color		
LOADED PAPER (5)						
1 A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
2 A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
3 A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
B A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
L Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
FULL CATALOG (5)						
A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain			
L Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
L Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain			
Tab A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Tab stock (p			
					CLOSE	

• To sort the list of papers in ascending or descending order according to a column, click the column heading.

The **[Loaded Paper]** section displays the papers that are currently loaded in the printer trays. The **[Full Catalog]** section displays the papers from the printer catalog that are not loaded in the trays and all the custom papers registered in TotalFlow Prep.

- To see whether a paper is from the printer catalog or is a custom paper, look at the first column. The custom icon 1 is displayed next to custom papers.
- To refresh the list of papers received from the printer, click C, the [Refresh paper catalog] button.

The list of papers is also refreshed automatically when you open a job, edit the printer

settings, switch printers from the printer selection menu, or click C, the [Refresh printer information] button, on the menu bar.

Note

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

Adding Custom Papers

You can register custom papers in the paper catalog so they are available whenever you configure paper settings.

Coloritant 🔁

To print on a registered custom paper, you must also register the same paper on the printer. For more information, see the printer documentation.

To add a custom paper:

1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Paper Catalog].



2. On the [Paper Catalog] screen, click [+Add Paper].

Paper Catalog		+Add F	Paper _{lin} Im	port	Export	$ \times$
C'Name ▲	Size	Weight	Туре	Color		
LOADED PAPER (5)						
1 A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
2 A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
3 A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
B A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
L Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
FULL CATALOG (5)						
A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain			
L Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 1	
L Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 1	
Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain			
Tab A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Tab stock (p			
					CLOSE	

Vote

You can also add custom papers directly from the **[Select Paper]** screen by clicking the **[+Add Paper]** button.

3. Configure the settings for the custom paper on the [Add Paper] screen.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Add Paper						>
Paper Name *	?	Description		?		
Copy from Select paper	?					
PAPER SETTINGS		RECENT SELECTION	ONS			?
Size	?	~ A4	A3	Letter	Legal	Tabloid
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Ŧ	(210 x 297 mm)	(297 x 420 mm)	(8.5 x 11 in.)	(8.5 x 14 in.)	(11 x 17 in.)
Weight : (40 - 400)	?	√ Use default	90	80	100	150
Color	?	~				
Use default	Ŧ	Use default	White	Yellow	Green	Blue
Туре	7					
				Γ	CANCEL	SAVE

Vote

- If you select **[Custom]** in the **[Size]** field and enter custom values for the paper width and height, TotalFlow Prep automatically applies the custom values to the paper orientation.
- You can preview your settings in the [Paper Preview] box.

4. Click [Save].

The registered custom paper is added to the list of papers in the paper catalog.

The custom icon 💄 is displayed next to custom papers so you can easily identify them.

Editing Custom Papers

You can change the settings of a registered custom paper.

C Important

- To print on a registered custom paper, you must also register the same paper on the printer. For more information, see the printer documentation.
- You can only edit the settings of custom papers. To modify other papers, make the changes in the paper catalog on the printer.
- If you modify a custom paper that is currently in use, a paper with the properties of the modified custom paper is set instead of the original custom paper.

To modify the settings of a custom paper:

- 1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Paper Catalog].
- 2. On the **[Paper Catalog]** screen, click \checkmark , the **[Edit]** button, next to the custom paper that you want to modify.

Paper Catalog		+Add P	aper Import	Export ×
C ⁴ Name ▲	Size	Weight	Type C	olor
LOADED PAPER (5)				
1 A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	
2 A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	
3 A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	
B A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	
L Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	
FULL CATALOG (5)				
A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain	
L Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	
L Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain	۵.
Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain	
Tab A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Tab stock (p	
				CLOSE



The custom icon 💄 is displayed next to custom papers so you can easily identify them.

3. Change the settings as necessary on the [Update Paper] screen.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🗾 button to display the on-screen field help.

Update Paper						>
Paper Name * Custom A4 Copy from Select paper	?	Description		?		
PAPER SETTINGS		RECENT SELECTION	ONS			7
Size A4 (210 x 297 mm)	?	√ A4 (210 x 297 mm)	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	Legal (8.5 x 14 in.)	Tabloid (11 x 17 in.)
Weight : (40 - 400) 90	?	∽ 90	Use default	80	100	150
Color Use default	?	√ Use default	White	Yellow	Green	Blue
Type	7					
					CANCEL	UPDATE

4. Click [Update].

Deleting Custom Papers

You can delete custom papers that you no longer use.

🔂 Important 🔵

If you delete a custom paper that is currently in use, a paper with the properties of the deleted custom paper is set instead of the original custom paper.

To delete a custom paper:

- 1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Paper Catalog].
- 2. On the **[Paper Catalog]** screen, click ¹, the **[Delete]** button, next to the custom paper that you want to delete.

Paper Catalog		+Add F	aper Impo	ort	Export	$ \times$
C'Name ⊾	Size	Weight	Туре	Color		
LOADED PAPER (5)						
1 A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
2 A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
3 A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
B A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
L Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
FULL CATALOG (5)						
A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain			
L Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 1	
L Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 15.	
Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain			
Tab A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Tab stock (p			
					CLOSE	
4.5	4.5	17	10		10	

Vote

The custom icon 💄 is displayed next to custom papers so you can easily identify them.

Exporting Custom Papers

You can export custom papers as XML files so they can be used on another computer.

Vote

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To export custom papers:

- 1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Paper Catalog].
- 2. On the **[Paper Catalog]** screen, select the custom papers that you want to export and click the **[Export...]** button.

Paper	Catalog		+Add Pap	per Import	t Ju D	(port ×
C' Na	ime 🔺	Size	Weight	Туре	Color	
LOADE	D PAPER (5)					
1 A4	1	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
2 A5	5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
3 A3	3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
B A4	1	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
L Cu	istom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
FULL C	ATALOG (5)					
A4	1	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain		
🗸 🗜 Cu	istom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 1
🗸 🗜 Cu	istom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 1
Let	tter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain		
Tal	b A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Tab stock (p		
						CLOSE

• Note

The custom icon 💄 is displayed next to custom papers so you can easily identify them.

3. In the **[Save As]** dialog box, specify a name and saving location for the exported XML file and click **[Save]**.

Importing Custom Papers

You can import papers that were exported as XML files using TotalFlow Prep or the paper export functionality available on certain printers with EFI Fiery controllers.

Note

- For information on the functions available on your printer, see the printer documentation.
- Whether the papers were exported from TotalFlow Prep or from a printer, they are imported as custom papers.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To import custom papers:

- 1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Paper Catalog].
- 2. On the [Paper Catalog] screen, click the [Import...] button.

Paper Catalog		+Add I	Paper	Import 👆	Export	×
C'Name ▲	Size	Weight	Туре	Color		
LOADED PAPER (5)						
1 A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
2 A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
3 A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
B A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
L Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
FULL CATALOG (5)						
A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain			
L Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		× 1	
L Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		"#* II	
Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain			
Tab A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Tab stock (p		
					CLOSE	

3. In the **[Open]** dialog box, browse for a paper settings XML file, select it, and click **[Open]**.

If an imported paper has the same name as one of the existing papers in the paper catalog, a numeric value is appended to its name between parentheses.

Setting Preferences

To improve productivity, you can set preferences according to your workflow and register external programs for editing PDF files or image documents.

You can customize these settings:

- Default measurement unit
- Default paper size for new jobs

• Note

This paper size setting is different from the PDF page size. You can set the default PDF page size in the TotalFlow PDF driver settings. To modify the TotalFlow PDF driver settings:

- 1. Go to Control Panel \rightarrow Devices and Printers.
- 2. Right-click the [TotalFlow PDF] icon and select [Printing preferences].

Depending on the operating system, TotalFlow PDF and Adobe PDF might be displayed as one entry in the **[Devices and Printers]** panel, either as **[TotalFlow PDF]** or **[Adobe PDF]**. In this case, to modify the TotalFlow PDF driver settings, right-click the **[TotalFlow PDF]** or **[Adobe PDF]** icon and select **Printing preferences** \rightarrow **TotalFlow PDF**.

- 3. On the [Adobe PDF Settings] tab, select an option from the [Adobe PDF Page Size] list.
- Whether to save job changes in the job ticket or in the PDF file
- Aspect ratio settings
- User code settings
- High contrast settings
- · Settings for finishing previews and job description alert windows

- Settings for external programs
- Grid and guide settings for editing originals

To set preferences:

1. On the [Settings] menu, select [Preferences].



2. On the [Preferences] screen, configure the settings available in the [General], [Display], [External Programs], and [Grid, Guides] tabs.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Preferences		×
General Display Ext	ernal Programs Grid, Guides	
Measurement units	Inches Millimeters	?
Default paper size	(e) Letter (8.5 x 11 in) (C) A4 (210 x 297 mm)	?
New job paper size	○ Use size from first page in job	?
Print settings	Apply settings to PDF and remove from job ticket	?
Resizing	\swarrow Maintain original aspect ratio when resizing oversized originals	?
Default user code	Use a default user code	?
	Default user code	
	Require user code to print job	
Job description	I when opening a job, do not show alert if the job description is insufficient	?
Shift sort	Automatically set an output tray to shift sort if the shift sort tray is available	?
	CANCEL	

3. Click **[OK]**.

4. Preparing Jobs

- Creating a New Job
- Building a New Job
- Creating a New Blank Job
- Opening Jobs
- Switching Between Open Job Windows
- Closing Jobs

TotalFlow Prep lets you create jobs from scanned documents and electronic files. You can also automatically apply presets, tab settings, and chapter settings when the job is created.

Note

- For better performance, we recommend that you work with up to 10 open jobs at a time.
- The performance of the application depends on several factors, including the size of the job file, the system performance, and the overall load on the system.

Creating a New Job

You can create a new job from existing files on the computer using the [Create New Job] function.

Vote

Use this method if the job will contain a single file or if all the files are located in the same folder and if you do not want to specify the order of the files inside the job.

🔁 Important

- The files must be located in a folder that can be accessed by the client computer.
- Make sure that the files have a supported format. For more information, see Supported File Formats, p. 255.
- Before adding Microsoft Office files to a job, make sure that the TotalFlow PDF driver is installed. For more information, see the Setup Guide.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To create a new job:

1. Open TotalFlow Prep and click [Create New Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.

Recent Jobs Quick Actions Job 2.rjf Create New Job Job 1.rjf Open Job Image: Create New Job Image: Create New Job Image: Create New Job Image: Create New Job Image: New Blank Job Image: Create New Job	TotalFlow Pre	יייי יף
	Recent Jobs Job 2.rjf Job 1.rjf	Quick Actions Create New Job Open Job Build Job Row Blank Job

If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Create New Job** to create a new job.

2. In the **[Open]** dialog box, browse for the files that you want to add to the job, select them, and click **[Open]**.

Copen	alFlow Prep → samples → 47	Search samples
Organize Vew folder RICOH Printer Connector TotalFlow Prep manual PC samples svc Uninstaller	 Name 1_2_A.pdf 3_5_4.tif 6.jpg ↓_A4.tif ↓_L1.tif ℝ_A4.tif ℝ_L1.tif 	Image Type Adobe Acrobat Document TIFF image JPG File TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image
File <u>n</u> ame:		Lustom Files ▼ Open ▼ Cancel

4

By default, only supported files are displayed. To display all the files inside the folder, select **[All Files]** instead of **[Custom Files]** next to the **[File name]** field.

If a file is password-protected, you are prompted to enter the password before you can add the file to the job.

The files are added to the job in alphabetical order.

• Note

If a job was already open in TotalFlow Prep, the new job opens in a new window.

Building a New Job

You can build a new job from existing files on the computer or from scanned files using the **[Build Job]** function.

Vote

Use this method if the job will contain files from different folders or from a scanner and if you want to specify the order of the files inside the job. This method also lets you specify which pages to include in the job, apply presets, and automatically create chapters and tabs.

Colored Important

- The files must be located in a folder that can be accessed by the client computer.
- Make sure that the files have a supported format. For more information, see Supported File Formats, p. 255.
- Before adding Microsoft Office files to a job, make sure that the TotalFlow PDF driver is installed. For more information, see the Setup Guide.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

Building a Job from Existing Files

To build a job from existing files:

1. Open TotalFlow Prep and click [Build Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.

TotalFlow Prep	
Recent Jobs	Quick Actions
Job 2.rjf	🔁 Create New Job
Job 1.rjt	🍅 Open Job
	Build Job. J.
	New Blank Job

Vote

If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Build Job** to build a new job.

2. In the [Build Job] dialog box, click the [Add files] button.

15	≥ Scan	Fiery Remo	ote Scan 5	Ŧ	?		
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Type La	st Update	
Apply preset	No preset		Ŧ	?			
 Apply preset Automate tabs 	No preset		¥	?			
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create	No preset and chapters tabs from files		7	?	ate chapters from	n files	
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create Use file n	No preset s and chapters tabs from files name for tab ear to	ext	?	7 Auto-cre	ate chapters from le name for chap	n files ter title	
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create Use file n Auto-create	No preset s and chapters tabs from files name for tab ear to tabs from bookm	ext arks	?	? Auto-cre Use f Auto-cre	ate chapters from le name for chap ate chapters from	n files ter title N bookmarks	

Vote

You can also drag files from a Windows folder and drop them into the [Build Job] dialog box.

3. In the **[Open]** dialog box, browse for the files that you want to add to the job, select them, and click **[Open]**.

Copen Coor ♥ 📕 « RICOH ▶ Tota	alFlow Pr	rep 🕨 samples 🔍 🍕	Search sam	nples		×
Organize 🔻 New folder						0
RICOH	* N	lame	Туре			
Printer Connector		1_2_A.pdf	Adobe Ad	crobat Doc	ument	
I otalFlow Prep		3_5_4.tif	TIFF imag	ge		
app	6	6.jpg	JPG File			
🃗 manual	_	L_A4.tif	TIFF imag	Earch samples		
U PC		L_LT.tif	TIFF imag			
i samples		R_A4.tif	TIFF imag	ge		
順 svc 🕌 Uninstaller		R_LT.tif	TIFF imag	ge		
		III				Þ
File <u>n</u> ame:	"3_5_4.ti	if" "1_2_A.pdf" ▼	Custom Files Open	; •	Cancel	•

By default, only supported files are displayed. To display all the files inside the folder, select **[All Files]** instead of **[Custom Files]** next to the **[File name]** field.

If a file is password-protected, you are prompted to enter the password before you can add the file to the job.

4. Repeat the previous two steps to add all the files required for the job.

You can also import files from a scanner and add them to the job. For more information, see Building a Job from Scanned Files, p. 89.

5. **Optional:** In the **[Build Job]** dialog box, make the necessary adjustments and configure additional settings for the files.

Build Job							×
+ Add files	≥ Scan	Fiery Rem	ote Scan 5	Ŧ	?		
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Туре	Last Update	
🚥 1_2_A.pdf		1-3	1	3.0 MB	PDF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
📾 3_5_4.tif		1-3	1	1.6 MB	TIFF	3/27/2018, 11:04:16	
📾 6.jpg		-	1	49.2 kB	JPG	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
📾 L_A4.tif		1-1	1	84.9 kB	TIFF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
📾 L_LT.tif		1-1	1	60.9 kB	TIFF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
R_A4.tif		1-1	1	87.4 kB	TIFF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
 Apply preset 	No preset		Ŧ	?			
 Automate tabs 	and chapters						
Auto-create	tabs from files			Auto-cr	eate chapte	rs from files	?
Use file n	ame for tab ear	text		Use	file name fo	r chapter title	
Auto-create	tabs from booki	marks		Auto-cr	eate chapte	rs from bookmarks	?

- To reorder the files inside the job, drag and drop a file before or after other files in the list.
- To specify which pages to include for files with multiple pages, enter the required page numbers or page ranges in the [Page Range] column.
 Enter multiple pages or page ranges separated by commas.
- To include multiple copies of a file, enter the required number of copies in the **[Copies]** column.
- To remove a file from the list, hover over the file and click 🛄, the **[Delete]** button.

- To apply the settings in a registered preset when the job is created, enable the **[Apply preset]** option and select a preset from the list.
- To apply tab settings or chapter settings automatically when the job is created, enable the **[Automate tabs and chapters]** option.

You can create tabs and chapters based on the files inside the job or based on PDF bookmarks. For details about a specific setting, click the substant to display the on-screen field help.

6. Click the [Create] button.

Vote

If a job was already open in TotalFlow Prep, the new job opens in a new window.

Building a Job from Scanned Files

🔂 Important

• Depending on the scanner you want to use, you must first install and configure the corresponding RICOH TWAIN driver or the EFI Fiery Remote Scan utility.

For information on the supported devices, see the *Printer Connector Readme* file. For information on the driver installation and configuration procedure, see the documentation for your drivers.

- For Windows Server 2019, make sure that the Desktop Experience version of the operating system is installed before installing the TWAIN driver.
- To use the scanner with the EFI Fiery controller option, the Fiery Remote Scan utility is required. The TWAIN driver cannot be used in this case.
- Make sure that you use a 32-bit version of Fiery Remote Scan. The latest 32-bit version is 6.6.0.60 and is available for download on the Ricoh website. For example, you can go to http://support.ricoh.com/bb/html/dr_ut_e/lan_e/model/eb_32/eb_32en.htm and select a 32-bit link, such as http://support.ricoh.com/bb/html/dr_ut_e/lan_e/model/eb_32/eb_32en.htm#Microsoft% 20Windows%2010%20(32-bit).
- If the orientation of scanned data is not as required, you can rotate the pages using the rotate function provided by TotalFlow Prep. For more information, see Rotating Pages, p. 123.

To build a job from scanned files:

1. Open TotalFlow Prep and click [Build Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.



Note

If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Build Job** to build a new job.

2. In the **[Build Job]** dialog box, select a TWAIN-compliant scanner or the Fiery Remote Scan utility from the list of scanners and click **[Scan]**.

							×
+ Add files	≥ Scan	Fiery Remo	ote Scan 5	Ŧ	?		
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Туре	Last Update	
	No month			7			
Annly preset	NO preser		· · · ·				
 Apply preset 							
 Apply preset Automate tabs 	and chapters						
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create	and chapters tabs from files			Auto-cre	ate chapters 1	irom files	?
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create Use file n	and chapters tabs from files ame for tab ear to	ext		Auto-cre	ate chapters f	rom files hapter title	?
 Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create Use file n Auto-create 	and chapters tabs from files ame for tab ear to tabs from bookm	ext		Auto-cre Use fi Auto-cre	ate chapters f le name for c ate chapters f	irom files hapter title irom bookmarks	? ?
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create Use file n Auto-create	and chapters tabs from files ame for tab ear tu tabs from bookm	ext arks		Auto-cre Use fi Auto-cre	ate chapters f le name for c ate chapters f	irom files hapter title irom bookmarks	? ?

Depending on the selected scanner, the TWAIN driver setup screen or the Fiery Remote Scan utility is launched.

- 3. Follow the steps required by the scanner driver and make any necessary settings. The file imported from the scanner appears in the list of files on the **[Build Job]** dialog box.
- 4. Repeat the previous two steps to scan and add all the files required for the job.

You can also browse for existing files on the computer and add them to the job. For more information, see Building a Job from Existing Files, p. 87.

5. Optional: In the [Build Job] dialog box, make the necessary adjustments and configure additional settings for the files.

	a scan	Fiery Remo	ote Scan 5	*			
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Туре	Last Update	
🪾 ScanData1648	3070.png	-	1	1.5 MB	PNG	3/31/2015, 5:30:51 PM	
🔤 ScanData1650	0440.png	-	1	1.5 MB	PNG	3/31/2015, 5:32:38 PM	
Apply preset	No preset		*	7			
Apply preset Automate tabs	No preset and chapters		*	?			
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create t	No preset and chapters tabs from files		7	?	reate chapte	ers from files	
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create t Use file na	No preset and chapters tabs from files ame for tab ear	r text	7	7 Auto-ci Use	reate chapte file name fo	irs from files or chapter title	

• To reorder the files inside the job, drag and drop a file before or after other files in the list.

• To specify which pages to include for files with multiple pages, enter the required page numbers or page ranges in the **[Page Range]** column.

Enter multiple pages or page ranges separated by commas.

- To include multiple copies of a file, enter the required number of copies in the **[Copies]** column.
- To remove a file from the list, hover over the file and click 🛄, the **[Delete]** button.
- To apply the settings in a registered preset when the job is created, enable the **[Apply preset]** option and select a preset from the list.
- To apply tab settings or chapter settings automatically when the job is created, enable the **[Automate tabs and chapters]** option.

You can create tabs and chapters based on the files inside the job or based on PDF bookmarks. For details about a specific setting, click the substant to display the on-screen field help.

6. Click the [Create] button.

Note

If a job was already open in TotalFlow Prep, the new job opens in a new window.

Creating a New Blank Job

You can create a blank job with default settings using the [New Blank Job] function.

• Note

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To create a blank job:

- 1. Open TotalFlow Prep.
- 2. Click [New Blank Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.



A new job with a single blank page is created. The job paper size corresponds to the default paper size specified on the **[Preferences]** screen.

Vote

If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **New Blank Job** to create a blank job.

Opening Jobs

You can open jobs saved as RJF or JDF files to edit their settings or reprint them.

C Important

- When you open a job saved with a printer that is no longer available, the default printer is used instead. The job settings are automatically adjusted to match the capabilities of the default printer.
- When you open a job saved with a paper that is no longer available or that has been modified, a
 custom paper with the same properties is used instead. The same applies for the paper specified for
 covers, inserts, tabs, slip sheets, designation sheets, and exception sheets.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To open a job:

1. Open TotalFlow Prep and click [Open Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.



Jobs that you have recently worked with are listed in the **[Recent Jobs]** section. Click one of the jobs in the list to open it.

Vote

If another job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Open** to open a job. To open a job that you have recently worked with, use the **[Open Recent]** option.

2. In the [Open] dialog box, browse for the job that you want to open, select it, and click [Open].

Copen	l:) ▶ Data 👻 🐓	Search Data	× 2
Organize 👻 New folder		:== ▼ □	0
☆ Favorites	Name	Туре	
🧮 Desktop	Lob1.rjf	TotalFlow Prep File	
🚺 Downloads 📃 Recent Places	Job2.rjf	TotalFlow Prep File	
E Desktop			
			_ '
File <u>n</u> ame: Job	1.ijf 🔹	Custom Files	•

If a job is password-protected, you are prompted to enter the password before you can open it. If another job was already open in TotalFlow Prep, the selected job opens in a new window.

Vote

You can also open an RJF job directly from Windows Explorer. Double-click the job file or right-click it and select **[Open]**.

🖻 Reference

For information on saving jobs, see Saving Jobs, p. 227.

Switching Between Open Job Windows

Each job opens in a new TotalFlow Prep window. You can switch between the windows to work with multiple jobs at a time.

Vote

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To switch between job windows:

- 1. Click [Window] on the menu bar.
- 2. Select the name of the job that you want to edit.



Vote

You can also minimize job windows using the [Minimize] or the [Minimize All Windows] option in the [Window] menu.

Closing Jobs

You can close a single job window and keep any other jobs open. If only one job is open and you close it, the application returns to the **[Quick Actions]** screen.



This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To close a job:

- 1. On the [File] menu, select [Close].
- 2. Specify whether you want to save the job changes in the confirmation dialog box. The job window closes.

5. Editing Jobs

- Specifying a Printer for the Job
- Specifying Job Information
- Changing Page Layouts
- Creating Chapters
- Using External Programs to Edit Jobs
- Editing Original Files
- Specifying Paper Settings
- Specifying Imposition Settings
- Specifying Fifth Station Settings
- Specifying Finishing Settings
- Adding and Editing Tabs
- Adding and Editing Bleed Edge Tabs
- Adding and Editing Inserts
- Adding Page Numbers
- Adding a Header and Footer
- Adding Page Stamps
- Adding Covers
- Adding Slip Sheets and Designation Sheets
- Specifying Color Settings
- Specifying the Number of Copies to Print
- Specifying Exception Settings
- Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep
- Solving Job Setting Conflicts

After you create a job, you can use the functions of TotalFlow Prep to change the page layout and edit the original pages. You can also specify job properties such as imposition, paper, finishing, and output settings.

Vote

- For better performance, we recommend that you work with up to 10 open jobs at a time.
- The performance of the application depends on several factors, including the size of the job file, the system performance, and the overall load on the system.

Specifying a Printer for the Job

For best results, register and select the printer that you want to use to print the job before you start editing the job settings. If you change the printer after you specify paper, imposition, finishing, or output settings, you might be prompted to adjust the specified job settings.

To specify a printer for the job:

1. Register the printer that you want to use.

For more information, see Registering Printers, p. 63.

2. On the menu bar, click the printers menu and select a printer from the list.

File Edit View Insert Settings Window	w Help	Apply preset	- c - 🗄	🖥 Sample printer 🛛 🚽 🗼
※ つ X ロ X は 2 0	🕻 🔽 - 🏦 - Paper: A4	· 📋 · 📑 ·	🛛 • 🖉 • 🔤 🖉	Sample printer
: :	1 - A4 2 - A4	3 - A4 4 - A4	5 - A4	Printer 1
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		APA APA <th></th> <th>Abb Set</th>		Abb Set
2. Page 1-sided Color	1 2	3 4	S	6 7

Only registered printers appear in the printer selection menu.

Note

In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, the printer selection function is not available. When you edit a job in the browser version, TotalFlow Prep uses the printer that was set in TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.

Specifying Job Information

You can specify useful details for the job such as the customer name, the job name, the user code, the job description, the print mode, banner page information, and special instructions.

To specify job information:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Job Setup] to display the available job properties.



2. In the **[Job Setup]** panel, specify the properties required for the job.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.



Changing Page Layouts

TotalFlow Prep lets you change the order and layout of the pages in the job, insert blank pages, insert other documents, set chapters, and run external programs to edit the job pages.

Selecting Pages and Sheets

You can select the pages and sheets inside the job to interact with them.

Selecting Pages

You can select pages in the page list.

To select pages:

- 1. In the page list, use the scroll bar to go to the pages that you want to select.
- 2. Select pages using one of these methods:
 - To select a single page, click the thumbnail for the page.



- To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
- To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- To select all the pages, click any page and press **Ctrl+A** or right-click any page and choose **[Select all]**.
- For jobs that are set to print only on the front side of the sheet, to select all the odd pages or all the even pages, right-click any page and choose Select → Odd pages or Select → Even pages.
- For jobs that are set to print on both sides of the sheet, to select all the pages placed on the front side or all the pages placed on the back side, right-click any page and choose Select → Front pages or Select → Back pages.
- To select all the pages that have the same paper size, paper type, and paper color as a specific page, right-click the page and choose **Select** → **Pages like this one**.

- To select all the pages that have paper, color, printing side, or stapling exceptions applied, right-click any page and choose **Select** → **Page exceptions**.
- To select all the tabs, right-click any page and choose **Select** → **Tab pages**.
- To select all the pages inside a chapter, make sure that the [List view] is active and click the
 icon in the chapter heading. Hold the Ctrl key to make multiple selections.
- To select specific pages or page ranges, right-click any page and choose Select → Page range.

In the **[Page range]** dialog box, enter the pages or page ranges that you want to select. You can enter multiple pages or page ranges separated by commas, such as 1-7, 9, 11-n, where n is the last page in the job. Make sure that you enter the pages and page ranges in ascending order.

Inserted tabs, preprinted covers, blank designation sheets, inserts, and any other pages that do not have a page number are not included in the selection.

To invert the current selection, right-click any selected page and choose Select → Invert selection. All the previously selected pages are deselected and all the other pages in the job are selected instead.

Note

When you select one or more pages in the page list, all the corresponding sheets are also selected in the workspace area. You can press the space bar after you select the pages to display the corresponding sheets in the workspace if they are not initially visible.

Selecting Sheets

You can select sheets in the workspace area.

To select sheets:

- 1. Make sure that the [Sheet view] is active in the workspace area.
- 2. Select sheets using one of these methods:
 - To select a single sheet, click the thumbnail for the sheet.



• To select multiple sheets, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each sheet that you want to select.

- To select a range of sheets, click the first sheet in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last sheet in the range.
- To select all the sheets, click anywhere in the workspace and press **Ctrl+A** or right-click any sheet and choose **[Select all]**.
- To select all the sheets that have the same paper size, paper type, and paper color as a specific sheet, right-click the sheet and choose Select → Sheets like this one.
- For jobs that are set to print only on the front side of the sheet, to select all the odd sheets or all the even sheets, right-click any sheet and choose Select → Odd sheets or Select → Even sheets.
- To select all the sheets that have any color object, right-click any sheet and choose Select → Color sheets.
- To select all the sheets that have paper, color, printing side, or stapling exceptions applied, right-click any sheet and choose **Select** → **Sheet exceptions**.
- To select all the tabs, right-click any sheet and choose **Select** → **Tab sheets**.
- To invert the current selection, right-click any selected sheet and choose Select → Invert selection. All the previously selected sheets are deselected and all the other sheets in the job are selected instead.

Note

When you select one or more sheets in the workspace area, all the corresponding pages are also selected in the page list.

Copying, Cutting, and Pasting Pages and Sheets

You can copy or cut pages and sheets and then paste them inside the job.

Vote

- You cannot copy or cut preprinted covers or blank designation sheets.
- You cannot paste pages or sheets before a preprinted front cover or before a blank designation sheet that is inserted at the beginning of a chapter.

Copying, Cutting, and Pasting Pages

To copy, cut, and paste pages:

- 1. Select the page in the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] or [Cut] from the menu.

File Edit	View I	nsert Settings Wind	low Help			Apply pres	set 👻	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🛛	ف 🚺
r	× C	日日 日	T 🛛 - 21-	Paper: A	4	· U·	Ð- ≅- ≠-	Copies: 3		
: ≡			1 - 44	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	Job Setup
	1. Page 1-sided (A4 (210 x	Coty Paste Delete			LARAY We serve a serv	The second secon			Normanitation of the second se	Finishing
П	2. Page 1-sided 0	Edit page Paper	, <mark>•°</mark>	2	" Internet i	4	stores and			Covers
	A4 (210 x	Tabs	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	Sheets
	3. Page 1-sided 0 A4 (210 x	Bieed edge tab Insert blank page Insert new pages Inserts Rotate	,	The state is a state of the sta				Internet and the second		Page Content
Kasperson Hillingson Hillingson Hillingson	4. Page 1-sided 0	Create chapter	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Impose
Terrare and	A4 (210 x 5. Page	Printing side Color/Black and White Subset finishing	15 - A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	Clean Up
10 C	1-sided (A4 (210 x	Select all Select Deselect	The second	A second			 The provide state of the state	HELECTRANSFORMER HELECTRANSFO	 Constraints Constrai	
	8. Page 1-sided (A4 (210 x	Edit PDF original Edit Image original	15 22 - A4	16 23 - A4	17 24 - A4	18 25 - A4	19 26 - A4	20 27 - A4	21 Q <u>12%</u>	i 📗

Note

You can also press Ctrl+C for copy or Ctrl+X for cut.

3. Select the target page.

Colored Important

When copied pages are pasted, they are inserted before the target page.

If the job has **[Normal]** or **[Gangup]** imposition, you can also select a target sheet in the **[Sheet view]**.

4. Right-click and select [Paste] from the menu.

File Edit	View Insert	Settings Window I	Help			Apply pres	set 👻	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🕔	
5		ъ. 🛛 Т	<u>- 2</u>	Paper: A	4	· U· I	ŧ. ≅. ∡.	😍 - Copies: 1		
: =			1 - A4	2 · A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	lob Setup
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm	Cut Copy Paste Delete			Handhar Hanning Handhard D. Station and Annual Handian and Annual Annual Annual Handhard Handhard D. Station and Annual Handhard Handhard D. Station and Annual Handhard Handhard D. Station and Annual Handhard D. Stationand Annual Handhard D. Stationand Annual Handhard D. Statio				An and a set of the se	Finishing
	2. Page 1-sided Color	Edit page Paper	•	2	3	. 4	s Anno 1000 anno 1	6	7	Cowers
	A4 (210 x 297 mm	Tabs	• 9.4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	Sheets
	3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm	Bleed edge tab Insert blank page Insert new pages Inserts	•	Market and a second sec		A second				Page Content
Engewoon Hittor	4. Page	Rotate	-	9	10	11	. 12	13	14	Impose
Alter and Alter	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm	Create chapter Printing side	► A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	Geen Up
	5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm	Color/Black and White Subset finishing Select all Select		Example 2		Compared and the second and the	The second secon		A second	
	6. Page	Deselect	5	16	17	18	19	20	21 🔰	
The second secon	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm	Edit PDF original Edit Image original	A4	23 - A4	24 - A4	25 - A4	26 - A4	27 - A4 🔍	© 282%7 ↔	

Note

You can also press Ctrl+V.

To undo an action, click , the [Undo] button.

Pasting Pages at the Beginning of a Chapter

To paste pages at the beginning of a chapter:

1. Select the page in the page list.

- To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
- To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] or [Cut] from the menu.
- 3. Right-click the chapter heading and select [Paste Pages].

File Edit View Insert Settings Windo	ow Help			Apply prese	et 🝷	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🔇	>
下 🤉 🕨 🗖 🗄 🗛 🛛	T 🔺 24-	Paper: A4		· U· 🛛)· 🛛 🖉	😓 - Copies: 1		
: =	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	
1. Chapter Cancel Chapter			Westernand and and the second		175		An encounter lange Declarge degram the function of the pro- tote of the property of the function of the declarge of the state of the declarge of the declarge of the state of the declarge of the declarge of the state of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the declarge of the	Job Setup
1. Page Paste Pages 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Constraints and a set of the	Construction of the second sec			- The second sec	Finishing
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Covers

Copying, Cutting, and Pasting Sheets

Note

This function is not available if the imposition is set to [Booklet].

To copy, cut, and paste sheets:

- 1. Select the sheet in the [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple sheets, hold the Ctrl key and click each sheet that you want to select.
 - To select a range of sheets, click the first sheet in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last sheet in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] or [Cut] from the menu.

File Edit	View Insert Settings	Window Help			Apply preset		minter 1	-	
5	💌 🗖 🖽 🕁 🎖	T 🖬 🐴	- 📄 - Pape	er: A4	- ∐- ঊ- I	🔄 • 🗾 • 👶	- Copies: 1 -+		
:: ::		1 - A	4	2 - A4	3-4	44	4 - A4		
	1. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)				Cut Copy Paste Delete			F	ob Setup Finishing
	2. Page	1	2	3 4	Edit page	6	7 8	18	Covers
	2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	5 - A	4	6 - A4	Paper	•	8 - A4		١
The second secon	3. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	E Constantino de la constantina de la constantina de la constantina de la constantin			Tabs Bleed edge tab Insert blank sheet Insert new pages	•	Alexandre de la construir		Page Content
Antonio antonio Antonio antonio Antonio antonio Antonio antonio	4. Page	9	10	11 12	Inserts Rotate	14	15 16		Impose
Contraction of the local division of the loc	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	9 - A	4	10 - A4	Create chapter		12 - A4	- 10	Ø
	5. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Result of the second se	Printing side Color/Black and White Subset finishing Select all	Enclosed and the second and the			Dean Up
1	6. Page	17	18	19 20	Select Deselect	22	23 24	Ŭ	
	2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	13 - A		14 - A4	15 -	A4	Q Q 12%·		

Note

You can also press Ctrl+C for copy or Ctrl+X for cut.

3. Select the target sheet.

Comportant)

When copied sheets are pasted, they are inserted before the target sheet.

You can also select a target page in the page list.

4. Right-click and select [Paste] from the menu.



Vote

You can also press Ctrl+V.

To undo an action, click **[Undo]** button.

Pasting Sheets at the Beginning of a Chapter

Vote

This function is not available if the imposition is set to [Booklet].

To paste sheets at the beginning of a chapter:

- 1. Select the sheet in the [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple sheets, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each sheet that you want to select.
 - To select a range of sheets, click the first sheet in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last sheet in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] or [Cut] from the menu.
- 3. Right-click the chapter heading and select [Paste Pages].



Deleting Pages and Sheets

You can remove pages or sheets that are no longer required in the job.

Deleting Pages

You can delete pages in the page list.

To delete pages:

- 1. Select the page in the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Delete] from the menu or press the Delete key.



Note

In the **[List view]**, you can also hover over a page and click 🛄, the **[Delete page]** button.

To undo a delete action, click **[Undo]** button.

Deleting Sheets

You can delete sheets from the workspace area.

To delete sheets:

- 1. Select the sheet in the [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple sheets, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each sheet that you want to select.
 - To select a range of sheets, click the first sheet in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last sheet in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Delete] from the menu or press the Delete key.

File Edit View Insert Settings Wind	ow Help		Apply preset - C	📰 Printer 1 🔹 📢	٠
🖍 🖉 K 🗖 🗄 🕁 🔊 ।	T 🔺 - 21- 🖬 -	Paper: A4	· Ll · 🚯 · 🗎 · 🗾 · 🌢	- Copies: 1 -+	
	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	Job Setup
1. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Copy			Finishing
2. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	5 - A4	Paste Delete h 4 Edit page	5 6 7 - A4	7 8 8-A4	Covers
3. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Normality of the second	Paper Tabs Bleed edge tab Insert blank sheet			Sheets Page Content
4. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	9 10 9 - A4	Inserts 12	13 14 11 - A4	15 16 12 - A4	Impose
5. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Create chapter Printing side Color/Black and White Subset finishing	A second		Clean Up
6. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	17 18 13 - A4	Select Deselect	21 22 15 - A4	23 24 U	
Note					
You can a	lso hover	over a sheet	and click 🏛	, the [Delete	she

To undo a delete action, click **[Undo]** button.

Moving Pages

You can change the order of pages inside the job by moving them to a different location.

To move pages:



1. In the page list, select the page or pages that you want to move.

You cannot move preprinted covers or blank designation sheets.

2. Click the selection and hold the mouse button, then drag the pages to the new location and release the mouse button.

File Edit View Insert Settings Wir	dow Help			Apply pre	set 👻	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🚺)
r 🖉 💌 🗖 🖓 🛱	T 🗳 · 24-	Paper: A4		• 🔲•	з ≅· ⊿·	😍 - Copies: 1		
: =	1 - A4	2 · A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	loh Setun
1. Page 1-sided Color • A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Rubal Marine Marine and Annual Annual Marine Marine and Annual Annual Marine Marine Marine Annual Marine Mari	In the second se			A service and a	Finishing
2. Page 1-sided Color	1	2	3 3 3	4	stanting of the second	-		Coviers
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	Sheets
4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)								Page Content
5. Page	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Impose
1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	15 - A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	Clean Up
6. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	A constraints of the second se	A constraint of the second secon		The second secon	The vertice of the second seco		A series of the	
7. Page 1-sided Color	15 22 - A4	16 23 - A4	17 24 - A4	18 25 - A4	19 26 - A4	20 27 - A4	21	

You can also drag the pages to the workspace area on the right if the workspace is displayed in **[Sheet view]** and if the job has **[Normal]** imposition and is set to print on the front side of the sheet.

You cannot move pages before a preprinted front cover or after a preprinted back cover. You cannot move pages before a blank designation sheet that is inserted at the beginning of a chapter or after a blank designation sheet that is inserted at the end of a chapter.

• Note

- To undo a move action, click ____, the [Undo] button.
- If the job has chapters, you can move the pages directly inside a chapter.
- If the job has **[Normal]** imposition and is set to print on the front side of the sheet, you can also reorder the sheets in the job from the workspace area. In **[Sheet view]**, select the sheet or sheets that you want to move, and then drag them to the new location.

Inserting Blank Pages and Sheets

You can insert blank pages or blank sheets in the job.

Vote

You cannot insert a blank page or sheet before a preprinted front cover or before a blank designation sheet that is inserted at the beginning of a chapter.

Inserting Blank Pages

You can insert blank pages from the page list.

To insert a blank page:

1. Select the target page in the page list.

Coloriant 🖸

When the blank page is inserted, it is placed before the target page.

2. Right-click and select [Insert blank page] from the menu.



•Note

In the **[List view]**, you can also hover over the target page and click **[Insert page]** button.

The inserted page has the same paper settings as the target page. If the target page has a paper exception specified, the inserted page uses the paper set for the job.

Inserting Blank Sheets

You can insert blank sheets from the workspace area.

Vote

This function is not available if the imposition is set to [Booklet].

To insert a blank sheet:

- 1. Make sure that the **[Sheet view]** is active in the workspace area.
- 2. Hover over the target sheet and click , the [Insert sheet] button.

Comportant Comportant

When the blank sheet is inserted, it is placed before the target sheet.
File Edit View Insert Settings Wir	ndow Help		Apply preset - C	📰 Printer 1 🔹 🗸)
か つ 下 口 招 立 四	T 🔺 - 🖄 - 📴 - Pape	er: A4 -	□- 18• 12• 🛃• 🗳	- Copies: 1 -+	
. =	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	Job Setup
2-sided Color • A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Vert State Wert State </th <th></th> <th>Compared and a second and</th> <th>Finishing</th>		Compared and a second and	Finishing
2. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	1 2 5-A4	6-04	5 6	7 8	Covers
3. Page 2-sided Color 2-sided Color 4.4 (210 x 297 mm)					Sheets Page Content
4. Page 4. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	9 10 9 - A4	11 12 10 - A4	13 14 11 - A4	15 16 122 - A4	Impose
5. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Norman and the second s	 A state of the st	A second se	
6. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	17 18 13 - A4	19 20 14 - A4	21 22 15 - A4	23 24 11 @ @ 12%+	

You can also right-click the target sheet and select [Insert blank sheet] from the menu.

The inserted sheet has the same paper settings as the target sheet. If the target sheet has a paper exception specified, the inserted sheet uses the paper set for the job.

Inserting Pages from Existing or Scanned Files

While editing a job, you can insert pages from existing files on your computer, from documents saved in jobs, or from scanned files.

• Note

You cannot insert new pages before a preprinted front cover or before a blank designation sheet that is inserted at the beginning of a chapter.

To insert pages into a job:

1. Right-click the target page in the page list or the target sheet in [Sheet view] and select [Insert new pages].

Coloritant 🔿

When the pages are inserted, they are placed before the target page or sheet.

File Edit Vie	w Insert	Settings	Window	Help			Apply pres	et 👻	C 📑 Printer 1	-	۰
* ~ *		∃ ≒ .	T	x - 21-	Paper: A4		• 🛛 • 🛛	D· 8· 7·	😍 - Copies: 1		
: ≋				1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	lob Setup
1. PA	Cut Vage Cop ded (Past (210 x Del	y ete				NAME NOT STATE AND	Control of the second s			Norman and an	Finishing
2, P 1-sia	age Edit	page er	,	1	2	3	4	5		7	Covers
A4 ((210 x Tab	5	,	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	
3. P. Second States Second States	Blee Page Inse ded 1 (210 x Inse	ed edge tab ert blank pag ert new page erts	· ·						Terrer Terreration Terrer (1995) Terreration Terreration Terreration		Page Content
4. P.	age	ate	,	8	9	10	11	. 12	13	14	Impose
A4 (ded Cre (210 x Prin Coli age Sub	ate chapter iting side pr/Black and set finishing	White	15 - A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	Clean Up
1-sic	ded ((210 x Sele Des	ect all ect elect	,	An and A second se	1 - 2012	The second secon	 A second s	 The second second		- Control Mar - Cont	
6. P. 1-sie A4	lage ded (Edit (210 x Edit	PDF origina	l nal	15 22 - A4	16 23 - A4	17 24 - A4	18 25 - A4	19 26 - A4	20 27 - A4	21 Q 212%	
		lote				-	Inclusion		-		

If the imposition is set to [Booklet], you can only insert new pages from the page list.

2. In the **[Insert pages]** dialog box, add files from your computer or import files from a scanner.

Insert pages		×
+ Add files	Scan Fiery Remote Scan 5 - ?	
Name	Page Range Last Update	
	CANCEL	

• To add files from your computer, click **[Add files]**, browse for the files that you want to add in the **[Open]** dialog box, select them, and click **[Open]**.

You can also drag files from a Windows folder and drop them into the **[Insert pages]** dialog box.

If a file is password-protected, you are prompted to enter the password before you can add the file to the job.

🔂 Important

- The files must be located in a folder that can be accessed by the client computer.
- Make sure that the files have a supported format. For more information, see Supported File Formats, p. 255.
- Before adding Microsoft Office files to a job, make sure that the TotalFlow PDF driver is installed. For more information, see the *Setup Guide*.
- To import files from a scanner, select a TWAIN-compliant scanner or the Fiery Remote Scan utility from the list of scanners and click **[Scan]**.

Depending on the selected scanner, the TWAIN driver setup screen or the Fiery Remote Scan utility is launched. Follow the steps required by the scanner driver and make any necessary settings.

Comportant Comportant

- The **[Scan]** function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.
- Depending on the scanner you want to use, you must first install and configure the corresponding RICOH TWAIN driver or the EFI Fiery Remote Scan utility.

For information on the supported devices, see the *Printer Connector Readme* file. For information on the driver installation and configuration procedure, see the documentation for your drivers.

- To use the scanner with the EFI Fiery controller option, the Fiery Remote Scan utility is required. The TWAIN driver cannot be used in this case.
- Make sure that you use a 32-bit version of Fiery Remote Scan. The latest 32-bit version is 6.6.0.60 and is available for download on the Ricoh website. For example, you can go to http://support.ricoh.com/bb/html/dr_ut_e/lan_e/model/eb_32/eb_32en.htm and select a 32-bit link, such as http://support.ricoh.com/bb/html/dr_ut_e/lan_e/model/eb_32/eb_32en.htm#Microsoft%20Windows%2010%20(32-bit).
- If the orientation of scanned data is not as required, you can rotate the pages using the rotate function provided by TotalFlow Prep. For more information, see Rotating Pages, p. 123.
- 3. Repeat the previous step to add all the required files.
- 4. Optional: Make any necessary adjustments to the files.

Insert pages		×
+ Add files	≥ Scan Fiery Remote Scan 5	• ?
Name	Page Range	Last Update
🧰 1_2_A.pdf	1-3	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM
📾 3_5_4.tif	1-3	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM
📾 6.jpg	-	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM
📾 L_A4.tif	1-1	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM
📾 L_LT.tif	1-1	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM
📾 R_A4.tif	1-1	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM
L		
		CANCEL

- To reorder the files, drag and drop a file before or after other files in the list.
- To specify which pages to include for files with multiple pages, enter the required page numbers or page ranges in the [Page Range] column.
 Enter multiple pages or page ranges separated by commas.
- To remove a file from the list, hover over the file and click III, the [Delete] button.
- 5. Click **[OK]**.

Creating Chapters

You can create chapters to organize the pages in the job.

Note

Chapters always start on the front of the sheet.

To create a chapter:

- 1. Make sure that the [List view] is active in the page list.
- 2. Hover over the target page and click **A**, the **[Create chapter]** button. The chapter is inserted before the target page.



A bookmark icon 🗖 is displayed to mark the beginning of the chapter.



Renaming Chapters

When you create a chapter, it is assigned a number and it is labeled Chapter by default. You can rename the chapter but you cannot change the chapter number.

To rename a chapter:

- 1. Make sure that the [List view] is active in the page list.
- 2. Click in the chapter field.



3. Enter a chapter name.

You can delete or overwrite the default chapter name. Enter up to 255 bytes.



Moving Chapters

You can move chapters together with the pages they contain.

To move chapters:

- 1. Make sure that the [List view] is active in the page list.
- 2. Hover over the heading of the chapter that you want to move to display the drag handle .



3. Click the drag handle in the chapter heading and hold the mouse button, then drag the chapter to the new location and release the mouse button.

File Edit View Insert Settings Window	r Help			Apply press	et 👻	C Printer 1	- 🕔	
r ~ K 🗆 🗄 与 🛛 🖬	∡ • <i>2</i> ⊾•	Paper: A4		• 🛛 • 📑	0- 8- 7-	😍 - Copies: 1		
	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	Job Setup
1. Chapter			And	and the second s			and the state of t	_
2. Chapter 3. Chapter			Print Page Andrea San Brits and Andrea		5 <u>5</u>			
	<u> </u>				P. 1. 18-		La construction de la construcción de la construcci	Finishing
	•		Equipartic control of the second seco	. When an an a second second	information and a second second			
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Covers
	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	
				Line Seale Billion Tablecontenting Tablecontenting	Terr Thomas and	Terre Manager		Sheets
		1900. 			and a second sec	Table		
				20000000000000000000000000000000000000	Constanting of the local division of the loc	125.00		Content
1				i igaz				
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Impose
	15 - A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	E
	Lades		The second second	-		- 2014		Clean Up
	The state of the s	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	STRANSFERRE					
			Marginiano de la com		Entering to Aller	The first of the second second		
	All of the second	Example E			- Andrewson and Andre			
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21 🔰	
	22 - A4	23 - A4	24 - A4	25 - A4	26 - A4	27 - A4 🔍	Q 212%7 ···	
	-	-	-	Unable	-	-		

You can only move a chapter between other chapters, before the first chapter, or after the last chapter. If the first pages of the job are not part of a chapter, you can also move the chapter before them. The first pages are included in the chapter and placed after the initial pages in the chapter.

Click [Indo] button, to undo a move action.

Canceling Chapters

You can cancel chapters that are no longer required.

To cancel a chapter:

- 1. Make sure that the [List view] is active in the page list.
- 2. Right-click the chapter heading and select [Cancel Chapter] from the menu.



Using External Programs to Edit Jobs

You can register external programs so that you can use them to edit jobs.

🔿 Important

- You must first register the external programs that you want to use on the **[Preferences]** screen. For more information, see Setting Preferences, p. 83.
- The masks, text, images, page numbers, or headers and footers inserted in the job do not appear and cannot be edited in the external program.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

You can use these external programs with TotalFlow Prep:

• For editing Image PDF documents, you can use image-editing programs such as Adobe Photoshop and Adobe Photoshop Elements.

Vote

When you register Adobe Photoshop Elements, make sure that you specify PhotoshopElementsEditor.exe in the program path on the **[Preferences]** screen. The communication with the program might not work properly if you specify instead PhotoshopElementsx.0.exe, where x.0 is the program version.

• For PDF editing, you can use PDF editing programs such as Adobe Acrobat.

Using an External Program to Edit Image PDF Documents

You can use external programs to edit job pages if their original format is Image PDF.

C Important

- You can only edit one page at a time in the image-editing programs. You cannot select and edit multiple job pages at once.
- If you add pages to a TIFF image file in the image-editing program, only changes to the first page of the TIFF file are applied in TotalFlow Prep. Changes to the following pages are ignored.

To edit a page in an external program:

1. In the page list, right-click the page that you want to edit and click **[Edit Image original]** on the menu.

You can also select the page and click $Edit \rightarrow Edit Image original$ on the menu bar.

File	Edit	View	Inse	rt Se	tings	Windo	r Help					А	pply preset	-	c	📑 Printer 1		- 🕥	۰
ĸ		ĸ		5	ҵ .	ឆ្		21-	. -	Paper: Custor	n: A5 (148 :	210 mm) -	U- 1.	₩. 7	٥.	Copies: 1			
	≣						1 - A5 (148 x 210 mn	n)	2 - A5 (148 x 21	0 mm)	3 - A5 (148 x 2	10 mm)	4 - A5 (148 x 2	10 mm)	5 - A5 (14	i8 x 210 mm)		Job Setup
-	1	1. Page 1-sideo A5 (14	CL CC Pa B De	rt PY ste elete				1		2		3		4		F	5		Finishing
2	2	2. Page 1-sidec AS (14	e Ec Pa B Ta	it page per		•		•		2				•			J		Covers
3		3. Page 1-sideo A5 (14	Bl In: In: B In:	eed edge ert blan ert new erts	e tab k page pages	•	6 - AS (1 148 x 210 mn	n)	2		3		4			5		Sheets Page Content
۵	ł	4. Page 1-sidec A5 (14	Ro Cr 8 Pr	tate eate cha inting si	pter le	•		6											Impose
5	5	5. Page 1-sidec A5 (14	Su Su Se Se	ior/dlaci bset fini lect all lect	shing	mite F		6	1										
(6	6. Page 1-sideo A5 (14	E E C	it PDF o it Image	iginal origina	a dh										Q	© 25% •		

The external program opens in a new window.

2. Edit the image in the external program and save the changes using the **[Save]** option.

If you use the [Save As...] option, the changes are not reflected in the job.

Comportant)

If the resolution of an image file is not specified, TotalFlow Prep automatically sets the image resolution to 200 dpi. When you edit the image in the external program, a different default value might be applied. Verify the image resolution before you save the image in the external program. Unless you want to modify the image resolution, make sure that it is still set to 200 dpi.

3. In TotalFlow Prep, click **[OK]** in the external program dialog box to apply the edits.

Using an External Program to Edit the PDF of an Entire Job

You can edit the entire content of a job as a single PDF in another program.

🚼 Important

- After the edits are applied, the format of the pages might change from Image PDF to Object PDF. As a result, you can no longer apply image edits to these pages, even if the original data was an image.
- Do not apply security settings, such as passwords or authentication settings, to the PDF.

To combine all the original pages in the job into a single PDF and edit the PDF using an external program:

1. Right-click a page in the page list and click [Edit PDF original] on the menu.

You can also click $Edit \rightarrow Edit PDF original$ on the menu bar.

File Edit View Insert Set	ttings Window Help			Apply pr	eset 👻	C 📑 Printer 1	•	۹
~ ~ ~ – +	혀, 🔊 🖬 🔼 - 24	Paper: J	14	• 🔲•	B· B· Z·	😍 - Copies: 1		
: ≡	1-44	2 · A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	lob Setup
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Cut Copy Paste Delete			The second secon			An-investigation and an analysis of the second sec	Finishing
2. Page 1-sided Color	Edit page	2		4	sterning of the second			Covers
A4 (210 x 297 mm) 3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Tabs Bleed edge tab Insert blank page Insert new pages Inserts	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	Sheets Page Content
4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Rotate	9 16 - A4	10 17 - A4	11 18 - A4	12 19 - A4	13 20 - A4	14 21 - A4	Impose
5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Color/Black and White Subset finishing Select all Select	The second secon		The second secon	A supervision of the supervision	The second secon	Manufacture and American Stream of the Strea	Clean Up
6. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Edit PDF original	16 23 - A4	17 24 - A4	18 25 - A4	19 26 - A4	20 27 - A4	21	

The external program opens in a new window.

2. Edit the PDF in the external program and save the changes using the **[Save]** option.

If you use the **[Save As...]** option, the changes are not reflected in the job.

3. In TotalFlow Prep, click **[OK]** in the external program dialog box to apply the edits.

Editing Original Files

After a job is created, you can use TotalFlow Prep to edit the original pages and add text, images, or masks. You can also deskew, despeckle, reposition, and rotate objects or pages.

Modifying Rulers, Grid, and Guides

You can modify settings for rulers, grid, and guides.

Vote

To display or hide rulers, grid, and guides when you edit original files, use the **[Rulers]**, **[Grid]**, and **[Guides]** options in the **[View]** menu.

By default, the [Rulers] and [Guides] options are turned on.

Modifying Rulers

Ruler markers indicate the location of the cursor on the page.

To modify settings for rulers:

- 1. Click Settings \rightarrow Preferences.
- 2. To change ruler units, select [Inches] or [Millimeters] in the [General] tab.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🗾 button to display the on-screen field help.

Modifying Grid Settings

To modify grid settings:

- 1. Click Settings \rightarrow Preferences, then click the [Grid, Guides] tab.
- 2. To change the size of the grid, set a value in the [Grid size] menu.

Vote

The grid size must be between 1 mm (0.01 inches) and 10 mm (1 inch).

- 3. To change the color of the grid lines, use the **[Grid line color]** menu. Select from the pre-defined colors or enter custom values in the input fields.
- 4. To set the grid origin point, select [Top left corner origin] or [Center origin]:
 - [Top left corner origin]: Draws the grid from the top left corner of the page.
 - [Center origin]: Draws the grid from the center of the page.

Vote

By default, the origin point is set to [Top left corner origin].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Modifying Guides

Vote

Guides are not saved as part of the job and need to be applied every time the job is opened.

To add and modify guides:

- 1. To add a guide, place the cursor over the ruler bar, then click and drag the guide onto the page.
- 2. To move a guide, click the guide in the ruler bar and drag it to the new location.

-	
_	
-	

- To change the color of the guides, click Settings → Preferences, then click the [Grid, Guides] tab. For [Guide line color], select from the pre-defined colors or enter custom values in the input fields.
- 4. To remove the guides, click $View \rightarrow Clear Guides$.

🖌 Guides	Ctrl+;
Clear Guides	

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔳 button to display the on-screen field help.

Aligning Page Content

You can align page content using auto or manual alignment functions.

🔂 Important 🔵

• Specific imposition settings are required in order for the **[Align]** function to work properly with jobs containing different page orientations or sizes.

To use [Align] with jobs containing different page orientations or sizes:

- 1. Click [Impose] in the settings area on the right.
- 2. Select [No scaling] in the [Scale] options.
- 3. Select [Top left] in the [Image placement in cell] options.
- If you use the **[Align]** function and one of the pages moves off the workspace, you must align the pages manually using **[Manual]** align mode and **[Sheet preview]**.

Using Auto Alignment

To use auto alignment:

- 1. Click [Clean Up] in the settings area on the right.
- 2. In the [Clean Up] panel, click [Align].



Vote

In **[Edit Mode]**, **[Light Table]**, or **[Mirror Light Table]** a crosshair appears in the workspace indicating the reference point on the page. Click and drag the crosshair to reposition the reference point.

1	
Y	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	Introduction
	Important
	Cautions Regarding This Guide
	Guides for This Application
	How to Read the Documentation

- 3. Under [Pages], select [All valid pages], [Active page], [Selected valid pages], or [Valid pages in Light Table stack].
 - [All valid pages] applies the alignment changes to all valid pages in the job.
 - [Active page] applies the alignment changes to the active page. When this option is selected, the active page is highlighted in blue.
 - **[Selected valid pages]** applies the alignment changes to all valid pages that are selected in the page list. This is the default setting.
 - [Valid pages in Light Table stack] applies the alignment changes to all valid pages in the light table stack.
- 4. Under [Position], click [Auto].
- 5. Under **[Align to]**, specify a reference point for alignment.

The default reference point is in the upper left corner of the page.

- 6. Use the [From left] and [From top] fields to enter specific distances from the reference point.
- 7. To align the back-side reference point to the front-side reference point, select the **[Mirror]** check box.

If the **[Mirror]** check box is not selected, the back-side reference point is not aligned with the front-side.

• This is an example with the [Mirror] check box selected.



• This is an example with the **[Mirror]** check box cleared.



8. If you have a page with margins that you want to apply across other pages, select the **[Use reference page margins]** check box and enter the number of the page you want to use as reference.

Vote

- When you select the **[Use reference page margins]** check box, the alignment function detects content on the reference page, not the active page.
- If there is no content on the reference page, an error message is displayed and the [Use reference page margins] check box is automatically cleared.
- 9. Under [Content detection strength], select [Coarse (text, faster)] or [Fine (image, slower)].
- 10. Click **[Apply]**.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔃 button to display the on-screen field help.

Using Manual Alignment

To use manual alignment:

- 1. Click [Clean Up] in the settings area on the right.
- 2. In the [Clean Up] panel, click [Align].

File Edit View	Insert Settings V	vindow Help			Apply preset	- C	📑 Printer 1	- 🔷	۰
	। 🗄 फे 🗷	T 🛛 - 21-	Paper: A4		- ∐ - ঊ - ∐ -	Z - 🔇	- Copies: 1 -+		
: ::		1-7	4	2 - A4					in the Section
1. Page 2-sided 0 A4 (210 x	:olor 297 mm)		Here and the second sec				Align Despeckle Pages Selected valid pages	Deskew 7	Finishing
2. Page 2-sided 0 A4 (210 x	iolor 297 mm)		2 3	and a second sec			Position Auto	? Manual	Covers
	L 37 mmy	3-/		4 - A4				s	Sheets
3. Page 2-sided 0 A4 (210 x	Color 297 mm)						0 ‡ in 0	‡ in	Page Content
4. Page	olor	stangergeneration	6 7	8				pr	Impose
A4 (210 x	297 mm)	5 - /	A	6 - A4			From left From	n ton	Clean Up
5. Page 2-sided 0 A4 (210 x	iolor 297 mm)						0.5 \$ in 0.5	in argins ?	
6. Page 2-sided 0	olor	9	10 1	1 12			Content detection stree	ngth ?	
A4 (210 x	297 mm)	7 - A	A Barrier		© © 12%•		APPLY next p	age >	

- 3. Under [Pages], select [All valid pages], [Active page], [Selected valid pages], or [Valid pages in Light Table stack].
 - [All valid pages] applies the alignment changes to all valid pages in the job.
 - **[Active page]** applies the alignment changes to the active page. When this option is selected, the active page is highlighted in blue.
 - [Selected valid pages] applies the alignment changes to all valid pages that are selected in the page list. This is the default setting.
 - [Valid pages in Light Table stack] applies the alignment changes to all valid pages in the light table stack.



4. Under [Position], click [Manual].

5. Set the **[x]** and **[y]** coordinates or click and drag the page content in the workspace to reposition it.

Changes are automatically applied.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Removing Noise with Despeckle

You can remove noise from pages using the **[Despeckle]** function. For example, you can remove unwanted dots or artifacts from scanned documents.



Coloritant 🔁

- The **[Despeckle]** function is only available for valid pages. A page is valid if the original file type is Image PDF.
- Punctuation marks such as periods or decimal points (.), colons (:), semicolons (;), commas (,), apostrophes ('), and similar symbols or letters might also be removed from the image. To undo the

changes, click **[Undo]** button, then adjust the removal area and level and perform despeckle again.

• This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To remove noise from a page:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Clean Up].
- 2. In the [Clean Up] panel, click [Despeckle].



- 3. Under [Pages], select [All valid pages], [Active page], [Selected valid pages], or [Valid pages in Light Table stack].
- 4. Under [Strength], select a strength level:

- [Fine] is the lowest setting.
- [Medium] is the moderate setting.
- **[Coarse]** is the strongest setting. This setting might also remove punctuation marks such as periods or decimal points (.), colons (:), semicolons (;), commas (,), apostrophes ('), and similar symbols or letters.
- 5. Under [Position], click [Auto] or [Manual]:
 - The [Auto] mode applies despeckle settings to the entire page.
 - The [Manual] mode lets you apply despeckle settings to a target area on the page.

Click the page and drag the cursor over the target area to select it.

You can also enter coordinates in the **[x]** and **[y]** fields to set the location of the area and specify width and height values in the **[w]** and **[h]** fields.

6. Click [Apply].

Comportant)

Repeated despeckle operations affect the image quality. If you want to perform despeckle again

with different settings, first revert the previous changes using **[]**, the **[Undo]** button.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Straightening Skewed Pages

You can straighten skewed pages using the [Deskew] function.

|--|

🔁 Important 🔵

- The **[Deskew]** function is only available for valid pages. A page is valid if the original file type is Image PDF.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To straighten skewed pages:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Clean Up].
- 2. In the [Clean Up] panel, click [Deskew].

File Edit View Insert Settings Win	idow Help	Apply preset	- C 📑 Printer 1	- 🚺 🌲
🗠 🤍 💌 🗖 🗄 다 🔊	T 🔺 - 🐴 - 🗐 - Paper: Custo	om: A5 (148 x 210 mm) 🔹 🗌 🐑 📳	🗄 - 🔀 - 😂 - Copies: 1 – +	
: ≡	e Edit Mode	1.1.1.1. ² .1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1. ² .1.1.1.1.	Align Despeckle	Deskew
1. Page 1-sided Color Image	TABLE OF CONTENTS		Pages	7 Finishing
A5 (148 x 210 mm)	- Inputes Costies Regarding The Guide		Active page	•
	Here Is Rad fa Documentain Before Using Tios Application Refere Using Tios Application Nois - Using the Astronols and Sulp	2	Angle Auto Ma	Covers
	1 Bitso Sating Op Sata Plan		∡ 0 \$ °	Sheets
	Herteling fas Most Applorities auf Arkinal Programs Herdelig fas Mars Applorities auf Arkinal Programs Herdelig fas Arson (1972) Herdelig fas Product Lanae Hyportigi fan Product Lanae Upproduct fan Armon Applorities		APPLY next page	> Page Content
	Construint of the second			Impose
	- Berg	27 27 27 27 28 28		Gean Up
	3		_	
	Pages 1 < < 1 >) III III- 🎝- 🔍 🔍 11	50% -	

3. Under [Pages], select [All valid pages], [Active page], [Selected valid pages], or [Valid pages in Light Table stack].

4. Under [Angle], click [Auto] or [Manual]:

- The **[Auto]** mode attempts to identify the edges of the page and to correct the skew automatically. A skew angle of up to ± 15 degrees can be corrected automatically. If the **[Auto]** mode does not adjust the skew correctly, use the **[Manual]** mode.
- The **[Manual]** mode lets you enter the angle of the skew. A skew angle of up to ± 30 degrees can be corrected manually.

To set the angle, you can also click the page and drag the cursor to draw a reference line parallel with the skewed edge of the image.

5. Click [Apply].

Colored Important

Repeated deskew operations affect the image quality. If you want to perform deskew again with

different settings, first revert the previous changes using **[]**, the **[Undo]** button.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔝 button to display the on-screen field help.

Rotating Pages

You can rotate pages using [Rotate page 180°], [Rotate page 90° clockwise], or [Rotate page 90° counterclockwise].

To rotate pages:

- 1. Select the target pages in the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
 - To select all pages, click any page and press Ctrl+A.

2. On the toolbar, click 2, the [Rotate page tool] button, and select from the available rotation options. The pages are rotated based on their current orientation.

• Note

- [Rotate page 180°] is available for pages that support rotation.
- [Rotate page 90° clockwise] and [Rotate page 90° counterclockwise] are only available when the imposition is set to [Gangup] [Unique] or [Gangup] [Repeat].

Using Auto-Rotation

The **[Auto-rotation]** function forces all original PDF pages to have the same orientation before being placed on the sheet and printed. By default, the **[Auto-rotation]** option is turned on and some page rotation options are disabled.

Vote

- The orientation of each original PDF page is determined by analyzing the width-to-height ratio. If
 the job is [Portrait], any pages with [Landscape] orientation are rotated 90 degrees. If the job is
 [Landscape], any pages with [Portrait] orientation are rotated 90 degrees before being placed
 on the sheet.
- **[Auto-rotation]** settings are applied regardless of how orientation was set for the original PDF page. For example, **[Auto-rotation]** applies when the original orientation was set by importing files with a different orientation than the job, building jobs from files with different orientations, manually rotating pages 90 degrees, or cropping pages to a different width-to-height ratio than the job orientation.
- When the [Auto-rotation] option is turned on, the [Rotate page 90° clockwise] and [Rotate page 90° counterclockwise] options are disabled.
- When the [Auto-rotation] option is turned off, the [Rotate page 90° clockwise] and [Rotate page 90° counterclockwise] options are enabled.
- If [Auto-rotation] flips a page upside down, use [Rotate page 180°] to correct the orientation of the page.

To turn off [Auto-rotation]:

- 1. Open the [Impose] panel.
- 2. Under [Auto-rotation], click [Off].

Coloritant 🖸

- [Auto-rotation] settings can only be changed in [Normal] imposition.
- You can save a job with the [Auto-rotation] option turned off.

Rotating Pages on a Sheet

You can rotate all pages placed on a sheet when the workspace layout is set to [Sheet view].

To rotate all pages on a sheet:

- 1. Set the workspace layout to [Sheet view].
- 2. Select the target sheets in the workspace.
 - To select multiple sheets, hold the Ctrl key and click each sheet that you want to select.
 - To select a range of sheets, click the first sheet in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last sheet in the range.
 - To select all sheets, click any sheet and press Ctrl+A.
- 3. On the toolbar, click . , the [Rotate page tool] button, and select from the available rotation options. The pages are rotated based on their current orientation.

- [Rotate page 180°] is available for pages that support rotation.
- [Rotate page 90° clockwise] and [Rotate page 90° counterclockwise] are only available when the imposition is set to [Gangup] [Unique] or [Gangup] [Repeat].

Adding a Mask

You can add a mask to a page to cover content.

To add a mask to a page:

- 1. On the toolbar, click **I**, the **[Mask tool]** button.
- 2. Click [Mask type] button, and select a type of mask from the list:
 - [Mask]: Covers the content that is inside the selected area.
 - [Reverse mask]: Covers the content that is outside the selected area. This option is useful, for example, when you want to remove border shadows from scanned documents.
- 3. Click , the **[Color]** button, to open the color palette, then set the mask color and click **[OK]**. You can select from pre-defined colors or enter custom values in the input fields. To select a color from any object in the workspace, use the color picker.
- 4. Click the page and drag the cursor to create the mask.



Depending on the mask type, the mask is added either over the content inside the selected area or over the content outside the selected area.

Editing a Mask

You can edit a mask and modify its type, color, size, rotation, or position.

Changing the Mask Type

To change the type of a mask:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. On the toolbar, click LLIE, the [Mask type] button, and select a type of mask from the list:
 - [Mask]: Covers the content that is inside the selected area.
 - [Reverse mask]: Covers the content that is outside the selected area.
 This option is useful, for example, when you want to remove border shadows from scanned documents.

Changing the Mask Color

To change the color of a mask:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. On the toolbar, click , the **[Color]** button, to open the color palette.
- 3. Select from pre-defined colors or enter custom values in the input fields.

Vote

To select a color from any object in the workspace, use the color picker.



4. Click **[OK]**.

Resizing a Mask

To resize a mask:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. Click and hold on an anchor point, then drag the mask to the desired size.



The **[Maintain proportions]** lock button and on the toolbar constrains the ratio of the width and height when the mask is resized. By default, the **[Maintain proportions]** lock button is selected.



Positioning a Mask

You can position a mask by entering coordinates in the **[x]** and **[y]** input fields on the toolbar or by manually moving the mask on the page. You can also automatically center the mask using the right-click menu options.

Manual Positioning

To position a mask manually:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. Position the cursor over the mask.

The cursor becomes a position icon.



3. Click and hold, then move the mask to the desired position.

Positioning with X and Y Coordinates

To position a mask with X and Y coordinates:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. Enter coordinates in the [x] and [y] input fields on the toolbar to position the mask on the page.



Centering a Mask

To center a mask:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Center], then [Horizontally], [Vertically], or [Both] from the menu.

Cutting, Copying, and Pasting a Mask

You can cut, copy, and paste a mask. A mask that is copied to the system clipboard can be pasted on the current page or to multiple pages.

To cut, copy, or paste a mask:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Cut] or [Copy] from the menu.

• Note

- Use [Cut] if you want to remove the mask from the current page and paste it to other pages.
- Use **[Copy]** if you want to copy the mask and paste it to the current page or other pages.
- 3. Go to the target page, right-click, and select [Paste] to paste the mask.

Vote

To delete the mask, right-click it and select [Delete].

Copying a Mask to Multiple Pages

To copy a mask to multiple pages:

- 1. Click the mask to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] from the menu.
- 3. Right-click again and select [Paste to].
- 4. Specify the destination pages by selecting one of the options available in the **[Paste to]** menu:
 - The [All pages] option pastes the mask to all pages.
 - The [Selected pages] option pastes the mask to the pages you select from the page list.

• Note

By default, the **[Selected pages]** option is grayed out. You must select pages from the page list before this option is available. See step 5.

- The [Even pages] option pastes the mask to all even pages.
- The [Odd pages] option pastes the mask to all odd pages.

The **[Even pages]** and **[Odd pages]** options are not dependent on page numbers, but on the actual number of pages in a job.

- 5. To use the [Selected pages] option:
 - 1. Select the destination pages from the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
 - 2. Right-click and select **Paste to** \rightarrow **Selected pages**.

Vote

Sometimes when a mask is copied to pages with smaller dimensions, the X,Y coordinates of the mask are outside the printable area of the destination pages. A message box appears with the options to paste and automatically center the unprintable objects or ignore them and only paste printable objects.

- Click **[OK]** to paste and automatically center the unprintable objects on the destination page. If multiple destination pages are selected, unprintable objects are pasted and automatically centered on those pages with smaller printable areas.
- Click **[Cancel]** to ignore unprintable objects. Any printable objects that have been copied are pasted to the destination page. If multiple destination pages are selected, printable objects are pasted to those pages.

Moving a Selected Area

You can select and move an area of an image page.



🔂 Important

- You can use the [Move area tool] only if the original file type is Image PDF.
- The [Move area tool] is only available in the page edit view.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To select and move an area of an image page:

- 1. Right-click a page and select **[Edit page]** from the menu or double-click the page to open it in the page edit view.
- 2. On the toolbar, click 2, the [Move area tool] button.

The cursor changes from an arrow to a cross hair.

3. Click and drag on an area of the image. A blue outline appears around the selected area with multiple anchor points. Use the anchor points to resize the selected area.

Vote

The selected area cannot be resized once it is moved.

4. Click the selected area.

The cross hair changes to a move cursor and the size properties are applied.



5. Drag the area to the desired location on the page.

Vote

- The selected area cannot be modified or repositioned once it is moved.
- The selected area can only be moved on the same page. It cannot be moved to other pages in the job.
- To move the selected area on multiple pages, see Moving a Selected Area on Multiple Pages, p. 131.
- 6. To center the selected area, right-click and select [Center], then [Horizontally], [Vertically], or [Both] from the menu.

Vote

Use **[Undo]** button, to make changes to the selected area once it is moved.

Moving a Selected Area on Multiple Pages

To select and move an area on multiple pages:

- 1. Right-click a page and select [Edit page] from the menu or double-click the page to open it in the page edit view.
- 2. Select multiple pages in the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each page that you want to select. ٠
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click ٠ the last page in the range.



3. On the toolbar, click **[Move area tool]** button.

The cursor changes from an arrow to a cross hair.

4. Click and drag on an area of the image. A blue outline appears around the selected area with multiple anchor points. The identical area is selected on all selected pages in the page list. Use the anchor points to resize the selected area.

Note

The selected area cannot be resized once it is moved.

5. Click the selected area.

The cross hair changes to a move cursor and the size properties are applied.



6. Drag the area to the desired location on the page.

The area moves on all the destination pages selected in the page list.

Note

The selected areas cannot be modified or repositioned once they are moved.

To center the selected areas, right-click and select [Center], then [Horizontally], [Vertically], 7. or [Both] from the menu.

Vote

se **[Undo]** button, to make changes to the selected area once it is moved.

Cropping a Page

You can crop an area on a single page or multiple pages using the [Crop tool].

• Note

• In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, this function is not available if the original file type is Image PDF.

To crop an area on a page:

- 1. Select the target page from the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. On the toolbar, click , the [Crop tool] button. The cursor changes from an arrow to a crop icon.
- 3. Click and drag on an area of the page. A blue outline appears around the selected area with multiple anchor points.
- 4. Use the anchor points to resize the selected area as needed.
- 5. Right-click and select [Crop] from the menu.

C Important

Use **(Undo)** button, to revert the crop settings. Use **(Redo)** button, to reapply the crop settings.

Setting the Crop Area by Entering Values

You can manually define the crop area by entering X and Y coordinates and width and height values.

To set the crop area by entering values:

- 1. On the toolbar, click [Crop tool] button. The cursor changes from an arrow to a crop icon.
- 2. To position the crop area on the page, enter coordinates in the **[x]** and **[y]** input fields on the toolbar.
- 3. To set the size of the crop area, enter width and height values in the [w] and [h] input fields.

x 2.08 🛔 y 0.88 🜲 w 0.96 🜲 h 1.182 :

Resizing a Page

You can resize a single page or multiple pages using the [Resize page tool].

🔁 Important

Resized pages might not print correctly or have a correct layout depending on the paper settings and the scaling options from the **[Impose]** panel.

To resize pages:

- 1. Select the target page from the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. On the toolbar, click 2. On the [Resize page tool] button.

The resizing options appear on the toolbar.

3. Enter a percentage or specific dimensions to resize the page and press the Enter key.



- Page objects (text, mask, image) are not selectable in edit mode.
- Page objects (text, mask, image) are moved and resized proportional to the page resize.

🔁 Important 🔵

Image quality degrades with each application of the [Resize page tool]. Use Lim, the [Undo]

button, to revert the resize settings. Use **[Redo]** button, to reapply the resize settings. These buttons preserve image quality when resize settings are reverted or reapplied.

Adding Text

You can add text to a page by inserting a text box.

To insert a text box:

1. On the toolbar, click **II**, the **[Text tool]** button.

5

- 2. Place the cursor on the page and click to insert a text box.
- 3. Enter text by typing. A default font and font size are applied to the text.

Editing Text

You can edit text and change font, font size, text color, text orientation or apply bold and italics.

• Note

The changes are applied to all the text within the text box and cannot be applied to individual characters.

To edit text:

1. Click in the text box.

The active cursor blinks and lets you edit the text.

Changing Font

Vote

5

Font changes are applied to all the text within the text box and cannot be applied to individual characters.

To change font:

- 1. Click in the text box and highlight the text to select it.
- 2. Select a font from the font list on the toolbar.



The font list only displays fonts that are installed on your system.

Changing Font Size

To change font size:

- 1. Click in the text box and highlight the text to select it.
- 2. Select font size from the list on the toolbar or enter a custom size in the input field.



Changing Font Color

Note

Color changes are applied to all the text within the text box and cannot be applied to individual characters.

To change font color:

- 1. Click in the text box and highlight the text to select it.
- 2. Click A, the color picker tool, on the toolbar.
- 3. Select from pre-defined colors or enter custom values in the input fields.

• Note

You can also use the color picker to select a color from any object in the workspace.

Applying Bold or Italics

Note

- If the selected font supports bold and italics, the [Bold] and [Italics] buttons appear on the toolbar.
- Bold and italics are applied to all the text within the text box and cannot be applied to individual characters.
- Bold and italics can be applied together.

To apply bold or italics:

- 1. Click the text box to select it.
- 2. On the toolbar, click the [Bold] or [Italics] buttons to apply formatting.

Changing Text Orientation

Vote

If the selected font supports both horizontal and vertical text orientation, the directional icons **[H]** for horizontal or **[V]** for vertical appear on the toolbar.

To change text box orientation:

- 1. Click the text box to select it.
- 2. Click the orientation tool to change text orientation.



Rotating Text

To rotate text:

1. Click the text box to select it.

A blue outline appears with a handle.



2. Click and drag on the handle to rotate the text box in 90-degree increments.

Sa	
m	
ĕ	E
tex	

Centering Text

To center text:

- 1. Click the text box to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Center], then [Horizontally], [Vertically], or [Both] from the menu.

Cutting, Copying, and Pasting Text

After you add text to a page you can cut, copy, and paste it using the right-click menu.

Note

Text that is copied to the system clipboard can be pasted into the text box on the current page or into text boxes on other pages.

To cut, copy, or paste text:

- 1. Click in the text box and highlight the text to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Cut] or [Copy] from the menu.

- Use [Cut] if you want to remove the text and paste it in another text box.
- Use [Copy] if you want to copy the text and paste it to other text boxes.
- 3. Go to the target text box, right-click, and select [Paste] to paste the text.

Vote

Use the **Delete** or **Backspace** keys to delete text.

Cutting, Copying, and Pasting a Text Box

You can copy or cut a text box and paste it to a different location.

To cut, copy, or paste a text box:

- 1. Click the text box to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Cut] or [Copy] from the menu.

Vote

- Use [Cut] if you want to remove the text box from the current page and paste it to other pages.
- Use [Copy] if you want to copy the text box and paste it to the current page or other pages.
- 3. Go to the target page, right-click, and select **[Paste]** to paste the text box.

```
Vote
```

To delete the text box, right-click it and select [Delete].

Copying a Text Box to Multiple Pages

To copy a text box to multiple pages:

- 1. Click the text box to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] from the menu.
- 3. Right-click again and select [Paste to].
- 4. Specify the destination pages by selecting one of the options available in the **[Paste to]** menu:
 - The [All pages] option pastes the text box to all pages.
 - The [Selected pages] option pastes the text box to the pages you select from the page list.

Note

By default, the **[Selected pages]** option is grayed out. You must select pages from the page list before this option is available. See step 5.

- The [Even pages] option pastes the text box to all even pages.
- The [Odd pages] option pastes the text box to all odd pages.

The **[Even pages]** and **[Odd pages]** options are not dependent on page numbers, but on the actual number of pages in a job.

- 5. To use the [Selected pages] option:
 - 1. Select the destination pages from the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
 - 2. Right-click and select **Paste to** \rightarrow **Selected pages**.

Vote

Sometimes when a text box is copied to pages with smaller dimensions, the X,Y coordinates of the text box are outside the printable area of the destination pages. A message box appears with the options to paste and automatically center the unprintable objects or ignore them and only paste printable objects.

- Click **[OK]** to paste and automatically center the unprintable objects on the destination page. If multiple destination pages are selected, unprintable objects are pasted and automatically centered on those pages with smaller printable areas.
- Click **[Cancel]** to ignore unprintable objects. Any printable objects that have been copied are pasted to the destination page. If multiple destination pages are selected, printable objects are pasted to those pages.

Adding an Image

You can add JPEG, PNG, or TIFF images to a page. Other image file formats are not supported.

Vote

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To add an image:

1. On the toolbar, click 🖾, the [Image tool] button.

The [Choose Image...] list appears.

Vote

After you have added images to the job, the list populates with recently used image files.

2. Select an image from the file browser.

Copen	alFlov	v Prep 🕨 samples 🔍 🗸	• Search samples	×
Organize 🔻 New folder			i≡ ▼ 🗍	2
 RICOH Printer Connector TotalFlow Prep app manual PC samples svc Uninstaller 	•	Name S 3_5_4.tif G 6.jpg L_A4.tif L_LT.tif R_A4.tif R_A4.tif R_LT.tif	Type TIFF image JPG File TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image TIFF image	
File <u>n</u> ame:	÷ 6.jpg	< <u> </u>	Custom Files Open Cancel	۲ ۲

By default, the image is centered on the page.

Editing an Image

You can edit an image and modify its size, rotation, position, or transparency.

Resizing an Image

To resize an image using anchor points:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Click and hold on an anchor point, then drag the image to the desired size.



• The [Maintain proportions] lock button and on the toolbar constrains the ratio of the width and height when the image is resized. By default, the [Maintain proportions] lock button is selected.



• In addition to the [Maintain proportions] lock button, you can also constrain image proportions by holding the Shift key while dragging an anchor point.

Positioning an Image

Images can be positioned by entering coordinates in the **[x]** and **[y]** input fields on the toolbar or by manually moving the image on the page.

Manual Positioning

To position an image manually:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Position the cursor over the image.

The cursor becomes a position icon.



3. Click and hold, then move the image to the desired position.

Positioning with X and Y Coordinates

To position an image with X and Y coordinates:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Enter coordinates in the **[x]** and **[y]** input fields on the toolbar to position the image on the page.



Centering an Image

To center an image:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Center], then [Horizontally], [Vertically], or [Both] from the menu.

Rotating an Image

To rotate an image:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Click and drag on the handle to rotate the image in 90-degree increments.



Changing Image Transparency

The PNG and TIFF image formats support transparency. When you open a transparent PNG or TIFF file in the workspace, a transparency tool appears on the toolbar.

To change image transparency:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. On the toolbar, click the transparency tool and select [Transparent] or [Solid].



The changes to the image transparency are not visible in **[Edit Mode]**. You can preview the results in **[Sheet view]**.

Cutting, Copying, and Pasting an Image

You can cut or copy an image and paste it on the same page or to multiple pages by using the rightclick menu.

To cut, copy, or paste an image:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Cut] or [Copy] from the menu.

Note

- Use [Cut] if you want to remove the image from the current page and paste it to other pages.
- Use [Copy] if you want to copy the image and paste it to the current page or other pages.

3. Go to the target page, right-click, and select **[Paste]** to paste the image.

Vote

To delete the image, right-click it and select [Delete].

Copying an Image to Multiple Pages

To copy an image to multiple pages:

- 1. Click the image to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Copy] from the menu.
- 3. Right-click again and select [Paste to].
- 4. Specify the destination pages by selecting one of the options available in the **[Paste to]** menu:
 - The [All pages] option pastes the image to all pages.
 - The [Selected pages] option pastes the image to the pages you select from the page list.

Vote

By default, the **[Selected pages]** option is grayed out. You must select pages from the page list before this option is available. See step 5.

- The [Even pages] option pastes the image to all even pages.
- The **[Odd pages]** option pastes the image to all odd pages.

• Note

The **[Even pages]** and **[Odd pages]** options are not dependent on page numbers, but on the actual number of pages in a job.

- 5. To use the [Selected pages] option:
 - 1. Select the destination pages from the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
 - 2. Right-click and select **Paste to** \rightarrow **Selected pages**.

Vote

Sometimes when an image is copied to pages with smaller dimensions, the X,Y coordinates of the image are outside the printable area of the destination pages. A message box appears with the options to paste and automatically center the unprintable objects or ignore them and only paste printable objects.

- Click **[OK]** to paste and automatically center the unprintable objects on the destination page. If multiple destination pages are selected, unprintable objects are pasted and automatically centered on those pages with smaller printable areas.
- Click [Cancel] to ignore unprintable objects. Any printable objects that have been copied are
 pasted to the destination page. If multiple destination pages are selected, printable objects are
 pasted to those pages.
Pasting Images or Text from the System Clipboard

You can paste images or text from the system clipboard into a job by using the **[Paste Special]** function.

Vote

- You must open TotalFlow Prep before you can paste images or text from the system clipboard into a job.
- The [Paste Special] function is only available in page edit view.
- The [Paste Special] function supports PNG, TIFF, JPEG, and GIF image file formats.
- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To paste an image or text from the system clipboard into a job:

- 1. Open the target page in page edit view.
- 2. Copy the image or text from an external program to the system clipboard. Select the text or image and press **Ctrl+C**.
- 3. Place the cursor on the target page.
- 4. Right-click and select **[Paste Special]** from the menu. The image or text is pasted from the system clipboard onto the page.

Vote

When text is pasted from the system clipboard, text formatting options, such as bold, italics, or underline, are removed. Reapply text formatting using the text edit functionality in TotalFlow Prep. For information, see Editing Text, p. 134.

Changing Object Order

You can change the order of multiple objects (text boxes, images, or masks) on a page by using the right-click menu options.

To change object order:

- 1. Click the object to select it.
- 2. Right-click and select [Order] from the menu.
- 3. Specify the object order by selecting one of the options available in the [Order] menu:
 - [Bring to front] brings an object in front of all other objects on the page.



• [Bring forward] brings an object forward by one layer.



• [Send to back] places an object behind all other objects on the page.



• [Send backward] sends an object backward by one layer.



Creating, Editing, and Applying Overlays

You can create text, image, or mask overlays and reuse them in your jobs.

Vote

• Image overlays are not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

Creating Overlays

Vote

- You can only create overlays in [Edit Mode].
- Overlays can contain single objects or groups of objects.

To create and save an overlay:

- 1. Add an object (text, image, or mask) to a page.
- 2. Select the object or objects.

Note

To select multiple objects, click the page and drag the cursor to create a selection area that surrounds the objects.

- 3. Right-click and select [Create overlay...] from the menu.
- 4. Enter a name for the overlay in the [Overlays] dialog box and click [OK].

Overlays		×
Overlay name		
	CANCEL	OK

Editing and Deleting Overlays

To edit or delete overlays:

1. On the toolbar, click . , the [Overlays] button. Available overlays are displayed in the menu.

 File
 Edit
 View
 Insert
 Settings
 Window
 Help

 Image: Constraint of the setting of the setting

- 2. To edit the name of an overlay, hover over the overlay and click 🖍 , the **[Edit overlay]** button.
- 3. To delete an overlay, hover over the overlay and click \blacksquare , the **[Delete overlay]** button.

Applying Overlays

To apply an overlay:

- 1. Select the target page from the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.

- To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. On the toolbar, click , the [Overlays] button.
- 3. Select one of the available overlays.

The [Overlays] menu displays page dimensions and the location of the overlay on the page.

File	Edit	View	Insert	Settings	Wir	ndow	Help					
ĸ	7	ĸ		<u>і</u> і.	2	Т	•	21-	Paper: A4			-
	≣						 	mhinti	Overlay 1 A4 (210 x 297 mm)	ł	AMAT	Ē

Using Advanced Editing Features

The advanced editing features include the [Light Table] and [Mirror Light Table] views and the [Content detection] function.

Using Light Table

The [Light Table] feature lets you view, edit, and align a stack of pages.

To use the [Light Table] feature:

- 1. On the menu bar, click [View].
- 2. Select [Light Table].



3. Add pages to the stack by entering page numbers or a range of pages in the **[Pages]** field at the bottom of the workspace.

For example, you can enter 1, 2, 3, 4-10, 14-16.



4. Specify options for [Light Table] in the [Light Table settings] menu at the bottom of the workspace.

Light Table settings × Reference page
None
Depth of light table stack
10 -
Tint active page
Show corner markers 🖌
🔳 🔲 🗰 🖈 -

- [Reference page] lets you designate a specific page that remains visible even as you edit and modify other pages in the stack.
- [Depth of light table stack] controls the number of stacked pages visible in the light table.
- [Tint active page] lets you apply a tint to the top page to differentiate it from other pages in the stack.

Coloritant 🔁

The computer performance might be affected by the number of pages in a stack. Stacks with a large number of pages might take longer to process.

Using Content Detection

The [Content detection] function detects the edge of page content.

To use the [Content detection] function:

- 1. Click **Content detection**] menu button, at the bottom of the workspace. The **[Content detection]** menu opens.
- 2. Set options for [Content detection].

[Detect all page content] detects the content edge on the entire page. This option is the default setting. **[Create content frame]** lets you define a specific page area for content detection.

Content detection × • Detect all page content Create content frame								
Content fram	e positior	n (in)						
Left	Тор							
0.5	0.5							
Right	Bottom							
0.5	0.5							
Content dete	ection stre	ngth						
Coarse (text	t, faster)			-				
	İ				\$ -			

3. Select a strength level from the [Content detection strength] list.

The [Coarse (text, faster)] option works best for plain text documents. The [Fine (image, slower)] option is better for detecting content in images.

Creating a Content Frame

The [Create content frame] function lets you define a specific page area for content detection.

To use the [Create content frame] function:

1. Click the [Create content frame] option in the [Content detection] menu.

Content detection × O Detect all page content • Create content frame								
Content fran	ne position (in)							
Left	Тор							
0.5	0.5							
Right	Bottom							
0.5	0.5							
Content det Coarse (tex	ection strength t, faster)	•						
	i .		\$ -					

A content frame appears on the page using default margin settings in [Content frame position].

2. Set the position of the content frame.

You can define the position of the content frame by entering specific margins in the **[Left]**, **[Top]**, **[Right]**, or **[Bottom]** fields. You can also click and drag one of the blue anchors to manually adjust the position of the content frame.

	\sim
	$\overline{\mathbf{r}}$
	\sim
\propto	\times
\propto	\times
\propto	\times
\sim	\times
\sim	\sim
\sim	\times
\sim	\times
\sim	\times
\sim	\times
\sim	\sim
	\times
	- 68
<u> </u>	X X

Using Mirror Light Table

The [Mirror Light Table] feature displays the back of pages mirrored.

Comportant 🗋

The [Mirror Light Table] option is only available if the job is set to print on both sides of the sheet.

To use the [Mirror Light Table] feature:

- 1. On the menu bar, click [View].
- 2. Select [Mirror Light Table].

View	Insert	Settings	Window
Zoon	n In		Ctrl +
Zoon	n Out		Ctrl -
Mag	nification		
Edit I	Mode		
Sheet	ts		
Read	er View		
Light	Table		
🖌 Mirro	or Light Ta	able	

- If the printing side is set to [Both sides (2-sided), open to top], the pages are mirrored vertically.
- If the printing side is set to [Both sides (2-sided), open to left] or [Both sides (2-sided), open to right], the pages are mirrored horizontally.

Specifying Paper Settings

You can specify the paper and the input tray that you want to use for printing the job.

🚼 Important 🔵

- The available papers and input trays depend on the printer that is selected for the job. Make sure that you first select a printer, and then specify the paper settings.
- The default paper used for the job depends on the [New job paper size] setting on the [Preferences] screen.

To specify paper settings:

1. Open the paper selection menu on the toolbar to display the [Select Paper] screen.

File Edit	View Insert Settings Wine	dow Help			Apply preset		📑 Printer 1	- 🕥	
5	💌 🗖 🗄 🖬 🔊	T 🔺 24-	Paper:	Auto : A4 (210 x 297 mm)	₆ U+ ∎• 🖻	🛛 🖉 - 🌔 -	Copies: 1		
:=		1 - A4 (210 x 2	2 - A4 (210 x 2	Select Paper			Sustom Paper	+Add Paper	
	1	times a		C ^e Name ▲	Size	Weight	Туре	Color	Job Setup
1000 E 1	1. Page	And		✓ Auto	A4 (210 x 297 mm)				
5	1-sided Color			Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)				Finishing
•	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	1 1		RECENT SELECTIONS					
	2. Page	•		A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain		
	1-sided Color	1	2	LOADED PAPER (5)					Cowers
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	8 - A4 (210 x 2	9 - A4 (210 x 2	1 A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
			Nation Statement	2 A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		Sheets
And a second sec	3. Page		None and American	3 A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
Barrison and Bar	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		Million Section 1	B A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		Page Content
		•	<u></u>	L Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain		
Statements.	4. Page			FULL CATALOG (4)					Impose
	1-sided Color			A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 asm	Plain		
-	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	15 - A4 (210 x	16 - A4 (210 x	L Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 asm	Plain		Clean Up
			Transformer 192	L Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 asm	Plain		
1.1	5. Page	The second secon	Total and the second se	Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in)	80.gsm	Plain		
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Insided Color	A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O	1000		Cerres (0.5 x 11 III.)	oo gani	1 14111		

2. On the [Select Paper] screen, do one of the following:

• Use the **[Auto]** setting to keep the original page size.

Note

- This option is not available for [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed] imposition.
- If the job contains documents with different page sizes, [Auto: Multiple sizes] is used for the original page size.
- If the original page size is larger than the paper sizes supported by the printer, the largest supported paper size is used instead.
- Select a paper from the **[Loaded Paper]** list, which contains the papers that are currently loaded in the printer trays.
- Select a paper from the **[Full Catalog]** list, which contains the papers from the printer catalog that are not loaded in the trays and the registered custom papers supported by the printer.

Note

- To create a new custom paper and add it to the [Full Catalog] list, click the [+Add Paper] button. For more information, see Adding Custom Papers, p. 77.
- For more information on managing the papers in the paper catalog, see Managing the Paper Catalog, p. 76.
- Select a paper from the [Recent Selections] list.
- Click the [Custom Paper] button to specify the paper properties manually.

For details about the available properties, click the **2** button to display the on-screen field help.

Custom Paper							0
Copy from	?						
Select paper	-						
PAPER SETTINGS		RECENT SELECTIC	INS			?	,
Size	?	~					
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	-	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	Legal (8.5 x 14 in.)	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	Tabloid (11 x 17 in.)	
Weight : (60 - 300)	?						
		Use default	100	150	200	250	
Color	?	✓					
Use default	w	Use default	White	Yellow	Green	Blue	
Туре	?	,					
Use default	-	Use default	Plain	Synthetic	Photographic	Cardstock	
Texture	?	~					
				[CANCEL	ΔΡΡΙ Υ	
				L	ar ar GEE		

🔂 Important

- Make sure that a paper with matching properties is available on the printer. For information on the printer paper settings, see the printer documentation.
- Select the **[Use default]** option or leave the field blank for the paper properties that you do not want to send to the printer.

The resulting paper is displayed as Custom in the paper selection menu.

3. Open the tray selection menu on the toolbar and select the input tray where the paper is loaded.

Use the **[Auto tray select]** option if you want the printer to select the tray automatically based on the specified paper settings.



For printers that use an interface box to connect to an external input device, you can select **[Extended option feed tray]** to enable a function supported through the interface box. See the printer settings for information on the available options.

Reference

You can also specify paper settings for individual sheets. For more information on paper exceptions, see Specifying Paper Exceptions, p. 213.

Setting Long Paper Support

Coloritant 🔁

- Long paper is only available if the selected printer supports Long Paper and the SP mode is enabled.
- Contact your service representative for information about enabling SP mode on your printer.

To set long paper support:

- 1. Confirm that the printer is configured for long paper and the SP mode is enabled.
- 2. Go to Settings \rightarrow Printer Management.
- 3. On the **[Printer Management]** screen, hover over the long paper printer that you want to set as default and click \bigotimes , the **[Set as default]** button.

Printer Management	X
+ Add Printer + Add Server	
Name	Connection status
✓ Sample printer 0.0.0.0 / 9100 / -	•
Printer 1	•
	CLOSE

4. Open a job that has long paper options defined.

↓Note

If the selected printer does not support long paper or SP mode has not been enabled, an error message appears and the job is automatically resized to the largest paper size available.

Specifying Imposition Settings

Imposition settings let you arrange the pages in the job according to where you expect them to be in the final product. For example, you can print multiple pages on a sheet or prepare booklets. Configuring imposition can increase efficiency especially for jobs with a large number of pages.

To specify imposition settings:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].



2. In the [Impose] panel, specify an imposition type by clicking [Normal], [Booklet], or [Gangup].



For more information on each type of imposition, see Setting Normal Imposition, p. 154, Setting Booklet Imposition, p. 154, or Setting Gangup Imposition, p. 157.

3. Configure all the necessary settings for the selected type of imposition.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Setting Normal Imposition

If you select the normal imposition type for the job, the pages are printed in sequence one per sheet. You can configure several settings, including the printing side, orientation, scaling, finishing size, crop marks, bleed, image positioning, and image shift.

To specify normal imposition:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].
- 2. In the [Impose] panel, click [Normal].



3. Configure the settings available in the [Normal] panel.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔳 button to display the on-screen field help.

Setting Booklet Imposition

Booklet imposition lets you print the pages of a document in a booklet style. The pages are arranged and printed in a different order than in the original document so that they appear in the correct sequence after they are folded and bound.

Comportant 🔿

- Some functions might not be available when the imposition is set to [Booklet].
- Some job settings might be removed or modified when the imposition is set to [Booklet].

To specify booklet imposition:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].
- 2. In the [Impose] panel, click [Booklet].



- 3. Select a type of booklet from the [Booklet type] list:
 - [Booklet]: The printed sheets are stacked, folded along the center line, and then bound along the center line.



• **[Booklet double]**: Two copies are produced at once. The printed sheets are stacked, folded along the center line, cut, and then bound along the center line.



If the job has many pages or if you are printing on thick paper, you can adjust the output using the **[Creep]** option to avoid any page misalignment that can occur when the sheets are folded.

•



Colored Important

To bind a document with **[Booklet]** imposition (inner binding), specify the following finishing settings:

- [Staple]: [2 at center]
- [Trim]: [Fore edge]

When binding, use [Booklet] instead of [Booklet double].

For details about finishing settings, see Specifying Finishing Settings, p. 166.

[Perfect]: The printed sheets are folded along the center line, stacked, and then bound along the edge.



• [Perfect double]: Two copies are produced at once. The printed sheets are folded along the center line, stacked, cut, and then bound along the edge.



You can specify on which side the booklets are cut using the [Rotate by 180] setting.



🔀 Important

To bind a document with [Perfect] imposition, specify the following finishing settings:

- [Fold]: [Half fold]
- [Staple] or [Punch]

For details about finishing settings, see Specifying Finishing Settings, p. 166.

4. Configure the settings available for the selected type of booklet.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Setting Gangup Imposition

You can use gangup imposition to combine multiple pages on a sheet of paper. Different layout options are available for the pages.

🔂 Important

- Some functions might not be available when the imposition is set to [Gangup].
- Some job settings might be removed or modified when the imposition is set to [Gangup].

To specify gangup imposition:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].
- 2. In the [Impose] panel, click [Gangup].



- 3. Select a type of gangup imposition in the [GANGUP / CUT & STACK] section:
 - **[Unique]**: Multiple pages of the document are printed onto one sheet. You can specify the number of pages to print on a sheet and their order.



• [Repeat]: A document page is printed repeatedly a specified number of times onto one sheet.



• **[Speed]**: Two pages are arranged and printed on each side of a sheet. The printed sheets are then stacked and cut down the center.

As multiple pages are created per cut sheet, printing time and costs can be reduced.



You can use the **[Rotate by 180]** option to rotate one of the two pages on each side of the sheet. You can then cut the printed sheets and align the cut edges.



4. Configure the settings available for the selected type of gangup imposition.For details about a specific setting, click the <a>[2] button to display the on-screen field help.

Using Crop Marks for Trimming

Crop marks are lines printed in the corners of each page to indicate where to trim the printed sheet.

You can select a specific style for the crop marks. Roman marks are single marks that indicate the trimming locations.



Japanese marks are double marks that consist of an inner mark and an outer mark. The inner mark indicates the trimming location. The outer mark indicates the outer edge of page content that extends beyond the inner marks. Page content that extends beyond the trim area to the outer marks is cropped away when the sheet is trimmed. 5



To specify crop mark settings:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].
- 2. In the **[Impose]** panel, make sure that the required type of imposition is specified for the job.

File Edit	View Insert Settings \	Window Help			Apply preset		C' 🎆 Printer 1	- 🕥	
r	💌 🗆 🖽 市 🖉	T 🔺 🛝	Paper: Ad	1	· 🛛 · 🖪	. 🔤 . 🏹 .	🌔 - Copies: 1 -+		
: ≊		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4			De Setue
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			NUMER Province of a second se	A second se		Normal Booklet	Gangup	Finishing
	2. Page	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		The Control of Control	-	The second second	A4	•	Covers
	1-sided Color	1	2	3	4		Printing Side	?	
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	6 - A4	7 - A4	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	Front side (1-sided), ope	n to I	-
	3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		An encourage statution and a statution of the statution				Orientation	' 	Page Content
							On ∩ Off		
	4. Page 1-sided Color	6	7	8	9	10	Scale		Impose
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	15 - A4	No scaling		B
	5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Image: Section of the section of t		Barrow Concentration of the second se			FINISHING SIZE Auto M Width Heig		
1000	6. Page	11	. 12	13	14	15	8.2639 ≑ in 🔒 11.0		
	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4 🔍 🔇	Q. <u>1</u> 2% _{AM}	Bleed ? Trim bo		

3. Configure the settings available in the [Marks] section.

You can select a style of marks and specify the thickness and length of the mark lines. You can also specify on which side of the sheet to print the marks.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Vote

- If a bleed value is specified, the marks move inward from the corner of the page the amount specified by the bleed. For double marks, the inner mark moves inward from the corner of the page the amount specified by the bleed, while the outer mark keeps its original position.
- The position of the marks is also adjusted according to the [Image Shift], [Creep], and [Gutters] settings.
- You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Specifying Orientation Settings

You can use the **[Orientation]** menu on the toolbar to specify whether the sheets have a vertical or horizontal layout.

🔂 Important

- When you change the orientation using the toolbar, the [Orientation] setting in the [Impose] panel is also updated.
- The options available for the orientation setting depend on the paper selected for the job. You cannot change the orientation if the **[Auto]** setting is used for the job paper.

To specify orientation settings for the job:



, the **[Orientation]** button, on the toolbar.

File Edit View Insert Settings Win	idow Help		Apply pre	set - C 🎆 Printer	1 * 🚺 🌲
r ~ K 🗆 🗄 屯 🔊	T 🖬 - 24-	Paper: A4	- U-	🚺 - 🔄 📙 🖉 - 👶 - Copies: 1	-+
: =	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4 4 - A4	Portrait	7 - A4
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Enclosed Recordence		A A		
2. Page	•	2	3 4	information and a second secon	

- 2. Select one of the available orientation options:
 - [Portrait]: The sheets have a vertical layout.



• [Landscape]: The sheets have a horizontal layout.



🔁 Important

The orientation of the content on the sheet depends on the type of imposition and the specific imposition settings specified for the job.

Specifying Printing Side Settings

You can use the **[Printing side]** menu on the toolbar to specify on which sides of the sheet to print and the direction in which the sheets open.

Coloritant 🔿

- When you change the printing side option using the toolbar, the [Printing Side] setting in the [Impose] panel is also updated.
- The available printing side options depend on the type of imposition specified for the job.
- The printing side settings determine the binding edge and the finishing options that you can specify for the job. For example, if the printing side setting is **[Front side (1-sided), open to left]**, you cannot set stapling or punching options for the right edge of the sheets.

To specify printing side settings for the job:



File Edit View Insert Settings Wir	dow Help			Apply preset	- C \overline 👬 Printer 1	- 🚺 🌲
 	T 🖬 · 24-	Paper: A4		• 🗆 • 🛃	📑 = 🖌 = 🜔 = Copies: 1	
: =	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 · A4	ront side (1-sided), open to left	7 - A4
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Values With Mark States of the States of th		ront side (1-sided), open to top ront sides (2-sided), open to top ront side (1-sided), open to right	Abb Setup
2. Page		2	North Control of States of	4	s 6	7 Cowrs

- 2. Select one of the available printing side options:
 - [Front side (1-sided), open to left]: The job prints on the front side of the sheet and the sheets open from right to left.

- [Both sides (2-sided), open to left]: The job prints on both sides of the sheet and the sheets open from right to left.
- [Front side (1-sided), open to top]: The job prints on the front side of the sheet and the sheets open from bottom to top.
- [Both sides (2-sided), open to top]: The job prints on both sides of the sheet and the sheets open from bottom to top.
- [Front side (1-sided), open to right]: The job prints on the front side of the sheet and the sheets open from left to right.
- [Both sides (2-sided), open to right]: The job prints on both sides of the sheet and the sheets open from left to right.

Reference

You can also specify printing side settings for individual sheets. For more information on printing side exceptions, see Specifying Printing Side Exceptions, p. 216.

Specifying Fifth Station Settings

[Fifth Station] is a special marking station where you can select different toners to use. This gives you the option to print with a fifth color.

Setting Clear Toner Properties

Vote

- The [Fifth Station] settings are only available when a [Fifth Station] module is installed on the printer. The availability of these settings depends on the printer model, printer controller, and [Fifth Station] configuration.
- The [Named spot color] and [Adjust tone] options are not available for printers with EFI Fiery controllers.

When [Clear] is the special effect toner installed:

- 1. Click [Fifth Station] in the settings area on the right.
- 2. Under [Special effect toner], select [Clear].
- 3. Under [Processing target], select one of these options:
 - [None]

No special effect toner is applied. Any spot color used is processed using CMYK values.

• [Whole page]

The special effect toner is applied to the entire page.

• [Named spot color]

The special effect toner is applied to a specific spot color in the print file.

In the **[Spot color name]** field, select a spot color from the list or enter a spot color name. The spot color name must match the corresponding spot color used in the PDF print file. TotalFlow Prep does not provide a warning if you enter a spot color name that is not recognized.

In the [Spot color priority] field, set which spot color has priority over the others.

• [Specified objects]

The special effect toner is applied only to specific objects. Select one or more objects from the list of options available for your configuration.

- 4. Under [Adjust tone], enter a value from 0 to 100%.
- 5. Under [Print priority], select [Quality] or [Speed].

When the print mode is set to **[Speed]**, the amount of special effect toner is reduced to enable faster printing.

- 6. Under [Page range], enter the range of pages that you want to print with special effect toner.
- 7. Under [Mirror], specify whether to mirror all the sheets in the job.

The **[Mirror]** function applies to the entire job, even if you set a page range for the other **[Fifth Station]** options.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Setting White Toner Properties

• Note

- The [Fifth Station] settings are only available when a [Fifth Station] module is installed on the printer. The availability of these settings depends on the printer model, printer controller, and [Fifth Station] configuration.
- The [Named spot color], [Adjust tone], and [Print priority] options are not available for printers with EFI Fiery controllers.

When [White] is the special effect toner installed:

- 1. Click [Fifth Station] in the settings area on the right.
- 2. Under [Special effect toner], select [White].
- 3. Under [Processing target], select one of these options:
 - [None]

No special effect toner is applied. Any spot color used is processed using CMYK values.

• [Whole page]

The special effect toner is applied to the entire page.

• [Named spot color]

The special effect toner is applied to a specific spot color in the print file.

In the **[Spot color name]** field, select a spot color from the list or enter a spot color name. The spot color name must match the corresponding spot color used in the PDF print file. TotalFlow Prep does not provide a warning if you enter a spot color name that is not recognized. In the [Spot color priority] field, set which spot color has priority over the others.

• [Specified objects]

The special effect toner is applied only to specific objects. Select one or more objects from the list of options available for your configuration.

- 4. Under [Adjust tone], enter a value from 0 to 100%.
- 5. Under [Print priority], select [Quality] or [Speed].

When the print mode is set to **[Speed]**, the amount of special effect toner is reduced to enable faster printing.

- 6. Under [Page range], enter the range of pages that you want to print with special effect toner.
- 7. Under [Mirror], specify whether to mirror all the sheets in the job.

The **[Mirror]** function applies to the entire job, even if you set a page range for the other **[Fifth Station]** options.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔃 button to display the on-screen field help.

Setting Special Toner Properties

Vote

- The [Fifth Station] settings are only available when a [Fifth Station] module is installed on the printer. The availability of these settings depends on the printer model, printer controller, and [Fifth Station] configuration.
- The [Named spot color] and [Adjust tone] options are not available for printers with EFI Fiery controllers.

When [Special] is the special effect toner installed:

- 1. Click [Fifth Station] in the settings area on the right.
- 2. Under [Special effect toner], select [Special].
- 3. Under [Processing target], select one of these options:
 - [None]

No special effect toner is applied. Any spot color used is processed using CMYK values.

• [Whole page]

The special effect toner is applied to the entire page.

• [Named spot color]

The special effect toner is applied to a specific spot color in the print file.

In the **[Spot color name]** field, select a spot color from the list or enter a spot color name. The spot color name must match the corresponding spot color used in the PDF print file. TotalFlow Prep does not provide a warning if you enter a spot color name that is not recognized.

In the **[Spot color priority]** field, set which spot color has priority over the others.

• [Specified objects]

The special effect toner is applied only to specific objects. Select one or more objects from the list of options available for your configuration.

- 4. Under [Adjust tone], enter a value from 0 to 100%.
- 5. Under [Print priority], select [Quality] or [Speed].

When the print mode is set to **[Speed]**, the amount of special effect toner is reduced to enable faster printing.

- 6. Under [Page range], enter the range of pages that you want to print with special effect toner.
- 7. Under [Mirror], specify whether to mirror all the sheets in the job.

The [Mirror] function applies to the entire job, even if you set a page range for the other [Fifth Station] options.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔃 button to display the on-screen field help.

Specifying Finishing Settings

You can specify various finishing settings for printed documents, such as collating, stapling, hole punching, perforating, creasing, folding, binding, trimming, output tray, eject output, and printer features.

🔁 Important 🔵

- You can only specify finishing functions that are available on your printer. Make sure that you first
 select a printer for the job, and then set the finishing options.
- If a function is available on your printer but the values that you specify for the settings do not match those set on the printer exactly, an error will occur on the printer.
- If the job has mixed paper sizes and you want to specify finishing settings, we recommend using the following combinations of paper sizes:
 - A3 (297 × 420 mm) and A4 (210 × 297 mm)
 - B4 (257 × 364 mm) and B5 (182 × 257 mm)
 - 11 × 17 inches and Letter (8.5 × 11 inches)
 - 8K (267 × 390 mm) and 16K (195 × 267 mm)

To specify finishing settings:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing] to display the available finishing options.

File Edit	View Insert Settings Wir	ndow Help			Apply pres	iet –	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🚺	۹
	N 🗆 🗄 🕁 🔊	T 🖬 · 24.	Paper: A	1	• 🕛 🕴	Q. 8. X.	😍 - Copies: 3		
: ≋		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	Ich Satur
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Restances Restances New York Control (1997)		Handball MI MI MI MI MI MI MI MI MI MI				The second secon	Finishing
	2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	1 8 - A4	2	3 10 - A4	4	5 12 - A4	6 13 - A4	7	Covers
The second secon	3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)						Barrow Westernament Westerlichter Beford Barrow Barrow Bar		Sheets Page Content
	4. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	8 15 - A4	9 16 - A4	10 17 - A4	11 18 - A4	12 19 - A4	13 20 - A4	14 21 - A4	Impose
	5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		The second secon		The second secon	A second		In the second se	Clean Up
	6. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	15 22 - A4	16 23 - A4	17 24 - A4	18 25 - A4	19 26 - A4	20 27 - A4	21 1	

In the [Finishing] panel, specify the finishing options required for the job.
 For details about a specific setting, click the button to display the on-screen field help.

File Edit	View Insert Settings Win	dow Help			Apply prese		C 📰 Printer 1	-	¢.
	▼ □⊞ ҵ छ	T 🔺 24-	Paper: A	4	- U- E)· 🔤· 🖌	🌔 - Copies: 3 – +		
• =		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	GENERAL		Job Setup
	1. Page						STAPLE		-
\$	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			En entre contra de la contra da la contra En encontra da la contra da	Even intervention Sector Sector Sect	Management of the second secon	Use default		l Finishing
					- Marine and American	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	PUNCH		
	2. Page	1	2	3	4	5	Use default		Covers
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	6 - A4	7 - A4	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	FOLD		٢
			American and a state of the sta		Nacionalian Trippete		Use default		Sheets
	3. Page		100				OUTPUT TRAY		
A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	in hereiter					Auto tray select		Content
		The second secon					EJECT OUTPUT		
Saugerennen Hiller	4. Page	. 6	7	8	9	10	Face-down		Impose
in the second se	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	15 - A4			Ð
	5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)								Clean Up
	6. Page	11	12	13	14	15			
	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	Q <u>1</u> 2%,⊼			

You can preview your settings in the workspace area, in the [Sheet view] and [Reader view].

🔂 Important

- Only finishing options that are available on the printer are displayed. For example, if the printer does not have a folding unit, the **[Fold]** setting is not displayed.
- Options that are not compatible with the current job settings are marked with a red dot •. For example, if the job is set to open to the left, all the options for stapling on the right edge are marked as incompatible.

If you select an incompatible option, you must adjust the job settings based on the options listed in the dialog box for solving conflicts.

Printing Collated Documents

If you are printing multiple copies of a job, you can arrange the print order so that the copies are printed in sorted sets.



To specify how to collate job copies:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the **[Finishing]** panel:
 - Select the [Collate] check box under [General] to sort the job copies.
 - Clear the [Collate] check box if you do not want the job copies to be sorted.

🔀 Important

You cannot specify any finishing settings for the job if the [Collate] check box is not selected.

Stapling the Printed Document

If your printer has a staple-capable finisher, you can staple together the sheets of a printed document.



To specify stapling options:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].

Note

You can also set stapling options directly from the [Staple] menu on the toolbar.

2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the stapling options available under [Staple].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on the installed finisher, compatible paper types, and available stapling settings, see the printer documentation.

Punching Holes in the Printed Document

If your printer has a punch-capable finisher, you can punch holes in the sheets of a printed document.



To specify hole punching options:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the hole punching options available under [Punch].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on the installed finisher, compatible paper types, and available punching settings, see the printer documentation.

Perforating the Printed Documents

If your printer has a paper perforating unit, you can perforate the sheets of a printed document.

To specify perforating options:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the perforating options available under [Perforate].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on compatible paper sizes and thickness, see the documentation for the printer and the paper perforating unit.

Creasing the Printed Documents

If your printer has a paper creasing unit, you can crease the sheets of a printed document.

To specify creasing options:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].

2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the creasing options available under [Crease].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on compatible paper sizes and thickness, see the documentation for the printer and the paper creasing unit.

Folding the Printed Document

If your printer has a paper folding unit, you can fold the sheets of a printed document.



To specify folding options:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the folding options available under [Fold].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on compatible paper sizes and thickness, see the documentation for the printer and the paper folding unit.

Binding the Printed Document

If your printer has a binding unit, you can bind the sheets of the document.

With a ring binding unit, you can insert rings along the binding edge.



With a perfect binding unit, you can insert the sheets of the document into a cover and glue them into place.



🔂 Important 🔵

- To perform perfect binding, the [Orientation] and [Printing side] settings must be configured as follows:
 - If [Orientation] is [Portrait], the [Printing side] setting must be [Front side (1-sided), open to left], [Both sides (2-sided), open to left], [Front side (1-sided), open to right], or [Both sides (2-sided), open to right].
 - If [Orientation] is [Landscape], the [Printing side] setting must be [Front side (1-sided), open to top] or [Both sides (2-sided), open to top].

To specify binding settings:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the binding options available under [Binding].

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on compatible paper sizes and thickness, see the documentation for the printer and the binding unit.

Trimming the Printed Document

You can specify trimming options for jobs with center stapling and perfect binding.

For jobs with center stapling, which have the **[2 at center]** option set in the **[Staple]** section, you can trim the opening end of the document. A trimmer must be installed on the printer.



For jobs with perfect binding, which have the **[Perfect binding]** option set in the **[Binding]** section, you can trim the top, bottom, and opening end of the document. A perfect binding unit must be installed on the printer.



🔂 Important

- This function does not perform the center cutting for the [Perfect double], [Booklet double], [Speed], and [Repeat] printing methods.
- [Image Alignment] automatically changes to [Binding edge] when the [Binding] setting is [Perfect binding] and you select [None], [Specify finished size], or [Specify head, tail and fore edge] for the [Trim] setting.

To specify trimming options:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the **[Finishing]** panel, select one of the trimming options available under **[Trim]** and configure the settings according to the job requirements.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔳 button to display the on-screen field help.

Reference

For more information on compatible paper sizes and thickness, see the documentation for the printer, the trimmer, and the binding unit.

Setting the Output Tray

You can specify an output tray for the printed sheets.

To specify an output tray:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the [Finishing] panel, select one of the output tray options available under [Output Tray].

Note

You can choose [Auto tray select] for automatic tray selection.

Specifying How to Eject the Output

You can specify whether the output is ejected face down or face up.

To specify how the output is ejected:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the **[Finishing]** panel, select one of the options available under **[Eject output]**.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Using Printer Features

Depending on the selected printer, you can use a range of printer-specific features.

To view and select from the available printer features:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 2. In the **[Finishing]** panel, select a printer preset from the **[Printer Feature]** list and a value from the **[Feature option]** list.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Adding and Editing Tabs

TotalFlow Prep lets you insert tabs, convert pages to tabs, and configure tab presets. You can also print text and images on the tab ears and configure settings for ejecting unused tabs in a separate tray.

Inserting Tabs

You can insert tabs by using the right-click menu.

To insert tabs:

- 1. Select a target page in the page list.
- 2. Right-click and select **Tabs** \rightarrow **Insert tab** from the menu.

A tab is inserted before the target page.



🔂 Important

- A tab cannot be inserted before a front cover or after a back cover.
- A tab cannot be inserted before a designation sheet that is positioned at the beginning of a chapter.
- [Insert Tab] is not supported if the imposition is set to [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed].

Inserting Tabs Before Chapters

You can automate tab insertion before chapters.

Note

The tab automation function is not available if the job does not have chapters.

To insert tabs before chapters:

1. Make sure that the job has at least one chapter.

For information on creating chapters, see Creating Chapters, p. 110.

2. On the menu bar, click Insert \rightarrow Tab Automation \rightarrow Insert Tabs at Chapters.

✓Note

- Tabs are inserted before all the chapters in the job.
- Tabs are not inserted before any chapters that already have tabs at the beginning.

Inserting Chapter Names on Tab Ears

You can insert the chapter name on tab ears.

Vote

This function is available only if the job contains chapters and there are tabs inserted before the chapters.

To insert chapter names on tab ears:

1. Make sure that the job has at least one chapter.

For information on creating chapters, see Creating Chapters, p. 110.

- Make sure that tabs are inserted before the chapters.
 For information on inserting tabs before chapters, see Inserting Tabs Before Chapters, p. 174.
- 3. On the menu bar, click Insert \rightarrow Tab Automation \rightarrow Insert Chapter Names to Tab Ears.

Vote

- Chapter names are inserted on the tab ears of tabs that begin each chapter.
- This function inserts the chapter names once, but does not automatically update the tab ear text if chapters are renamed, moved, or deleted.
- Select [Insert Chapter Names to Tab Ears] again to update the chapter names on tab ears after chapters have been renamed, moved, or deleted.

Converting a Page to a Tab

To convert a page to a tab:

- 1. Select a page in the page list.
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select **Tabs** \rightarrow **Convert to tab** from the menu.



Comportant)

- Page content is shifted towards the tab ear when a page is converted to a tab.
- Front or back covers cannot be converted to a tab.
- A designation sheet cannot be converted to a tab.
- [Convert to tab] is disabled for [Booklet] and [Gangup] imposition.
- Converted tabs remain in the job if they are created before changing the imposition to [Gangup] [Unique] or [Gangup] [Repeat].
- Converted tabs are changed to normal pages when the imposition is set to [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed].

Editing Tabs

You can edit tab settings, add text or images to tab ears, and manage tab stock presets.

To edit tabs:

1. Right-click a tab and select **Tabs** \rightarrow **Edit tab...** from the menu.



The [Edit Tabs] screen opens.

1911				
Edit Tabs				×
Tab stock preset ? Letter_05_US *	Tab input tray	? Eje	ect unused tabs ?	Tab stock 7 Custom: Letter (8.5 x) *
1-1	1-2	1-3	1-4	1-5
< Blank	Blank			
ТЕХТ		?	IMAGE	?
			Same image for all t	abs
Arial - 10.5 -	в / <u>А</u> =		Apply image setting	s to all tabs
Apply text settings to all tabs			Rotation 0°	*
Text orientation	123	? ~ ~ ~	Scale 100%	÷
Text position (in)		?	Image position (in)	7
			\$*	
CLEAR				CANCEL

 Select a tab stock preset from the [Tab stock preset] list.
 For more information on editing the default presets and adding new presets, see Managing Tab Stock Presets, p. 177.

3. Specify the required settings for the tabs.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Managing Tab Stock Presets

You can select, edit, and delete tab stock presets using the preset list.

• Select a tab stock preset by clicking a preset name in the [Tab stock preset] list.



Click , the [Edit] icon, to edit the tab stock preset. The [Edit Tab Stock Preset] dialog box opens.

- Click III, the [Delete] icon, to delete the tab stock preset.
- Click [New Preset] to add a new tab stock preset. The [Add Tab Stock Preset] dialog box opens.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔝 button to display the on-screen field help.

Ejecting Unused Tabs

If a job uses fewer tab sheets than are in a tab bank, you can choose to eject the unused tabs. For example, if your job has four defined tabs and there are five tab sheets per bank, the unused tab is ejected to the output tray as the job is printed.

🔁 Important 🔵

- The **[Eject unused tabs]** menu is only available if the selected printer supports eject unused tabs functionality.
- The [Eject unused tabs] function is not available for converted tabs.
- Adding an image to a tab disables the [Eject unused tabs] function.

To select an output tray for [Eject unused tabs]:

1. Open [Job Setup] in the settings area. Clear the [Apply settings to PDF and remove from job ticket] check box.

Apply settings to PDF and remove from job ticket

2. On the [Edit Tabs] screen, select an available output tray from the [Eject unused tabs] menu.

Vote

By default, the **[Apply settings to PDF and remove from job ticket]** check box is selected. To change the default setting, click **Settings** \rightarrow **Preferences**, then click the **[General]** tab. Under **[Print settings]**, clear the **[Apply settings to PDF and remove from job ticket]** check box.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Specifying Tab Size

Specify tab height, length, and distance from the sheet edge.



There are four settings for tab size:

178
- 1. **[Tab edge to sheet edge]**: Specify the distance from the sheet edge to the top and bottom edges of the tab bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).
- 2. **[Short edge]**: Specify the length of the tab's short edge. This is the side of the tab farthest from the sheet. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).
- 3. **[Long edge]**: Specify the length of the tab's long edge. This is the side of the tab that joins the sheet. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).
- 4. **[Height]**: Specify the height of the tab. This is the distance from the tab's short edge to the sheet edge. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).

Adding Text and Images to a Tab

You can print text and images on the tab ears.

To add text or images to tab ears:

- 1. Right-click a tab and select **Tabs** \rightarrow **Edit tab...** from the menu.
- 2. On the **[Edit Tabs]** screen, use the functions in the **[TEXT]** and **[IMAGE]** sections to add text or insert an image.

Edit Tabs				×
Tab stock preset ? Letter_05_US +	Tab input tray	7 Ej	ject unused tabs	7 Tab stock 7 Custom: Letter (8.5 x *
1-1	1-2	1-3	1-4	1-5
< -	7			
TEXT		?	IMAGE	7
1				8
			Same image for	all tabs
Arial 👻 22 👻	B / A =	т <mark>А</mark> т	Apply image set	ttings to all tabs
Apply text settings to all tabs			Rotation 0°	* *
Text orientation		?		
123 871	123	← 04 M	Scale 100%	Ŷ
Text position (in)		?	Image position (in)	7
↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓			↓ / ²⁺	
CLEAR			[CANCEL

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Check the preview to make sure that the text and images appear correctly.

Note

The insert image function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

Moving Tabs

To move tabs:

1. Click the tab in the page list and hold down the mouse button.



2. Drag the tab to the new location in the page list and release the mouse button.



Cutting, Copying, and Pasting Tabs

To cut, copy, or paste a tab:

- 1. Select the tab in the page list.
 - To select multiple tabs, hold the Ctrl key and click each tab that you want to select.
 - To select a range of tabs, click the first tab in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last tab in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Cut] or [Copy] from the menu.
- 3. Select the target page, right-click, and select [Paste].

🔁 Important

- Tabs are pasted before the target page.
- Tabs cannot be pasted before the front cover or after the back cover.
- Existing tabs automatically reposition after a tab is pasted.

Deleting Tabs

To delete tabs:

- 1. Select the tab.
 - To select multiple tabs, hold the Ctrl key and click each tab that you want to select.
 - To select a range of tabs, click the first tab in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last tab in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Delete] from the menu.

🔁 Important 🔵

• Existing tabs automatically reposition after a tab is deleted.

Applying, Editing, and Creating Themes for Tabs

Themes store tab and text formatting that can be quickly applied to all tabs. You can select from a predefined collection of themes or customize a theme and save it.

Note

- Themes save the following settings:
 - Text orientation, position, alignment, and formatting
 - Font color patterns
 - Image rotation, scale, and position
- Themes do not store inserted text and images or tab preset information.

To apply a theme:

- 1. On the [Edit Tabs] screen, click . , the [Themes] button, on the toolbar.
- 2. Select a theme.

The settings are applied to all tabs in the job.

• Note

• When you apply a theme that has a color pattern, the color pattern is automatically repeated across tabs.

Editing Themes for Tabs

You can edit existing theme names.

To edit a theme name:

- 1. On the [Edit Tabs] screen, click A, the [Themes] button, on the toolbar.
- 2. Click 🖍, the [Edit] button.
- 3. Enter a new name for the theme in the dialog box.
- 4. Click **[OK]**.

The themes are arranged alphabetically.

Creating Custom Themes for Tabs

You can create and save custom themes. Themes do not save tab preset information, text, or images.

To create a custom theme:

- On the [Edit Tabs] screen, customize settings for text and images. Themes save the following settings:
 - Text orientation, position, alignment, and formatting
 - Font color patterns
 - Image rotation, scale, and position
- 2. Click , the [Themes] button, on the toolbar.
- 3. Click [Save theme...].
- 4. Enter a name for the theme in the [Save Theme] dialog box.
- 5. Click **[OK]**.

The themes are arranged alphabetically.

Vote

- A color pattern can save different color settings for each tab.
- A pattern is based on the number of tabs in a job. You can create a specific color pattern, save it as
 a custom theme, and apply it to other jobs.

For example, if you want to create a custom theme with an alternating color pattern of black and white tabs:

- 1. Create a job with two tabs.
- 2. Define different color settings for each tab.
- 3. Save the custom theme.
- 4. Close the job.
- 5. Open another job with multiple tabs.
- 6. Apply the new custom theme. The color pattern is automatically repeated across all the tabs in the job. If the job has 20 tabs, the alternating pattern is repeated 10 times.

Adding and Editing Bleed Edge Tabs

You can add bleed edge tabs to create sections in the document. The bleed edge tabs are placed on the edge of the pages and can include text, images, and color patterns.

Bleed edge tabs are placed on the page edge opposite the binding. The location depends on the direction that the sheets open as specified in the **[Printing side]** menu. Bleed edge tabs reposition and resize when **[Printing Side]** options are changed.

- When the direction is set to **open-to-left**, bleed edge tabs are placed on the right edge.
- When the direction is set to **open-to-right**, bleed edge tabs are placed on the left edge.
- When the direction is set to **open-to-top**, bleed edge tabs are placed on the bottom edge.

See Specifying Printing Side Settings, p. 162.

To add bleed edge tabs:

- 1. Select target pages in the page list or in [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple pages, hold the Ctrl key and click each page that you want to select.
 - To select a range of pages, click the first page in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last page in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select **Bleed edge tab** → **Create bleed edge tab group** from the menu.

Comportant Comportant

If the job has chapters, you can click **Insert** → **Bleed Edge Tabs** on the menu bar to create a bleed edge tab group for each chapter. The bleed edge tabs automatically populate with the chapter names and page ranges. Chapter names wrap automatically by default.

The [Bleed Edge Tabs] screen opens.

Bleed Edge Tabs	×
Preset ? Printing side ? Pattern ? Tab length ? Select preset Front side (1-sided) Equal length Turning field	
Top 7 Bottom Edge 7 Tab gap (in) 7 Tab sper bank 7 Tab depth 7 0 • • 0 • • •	
2 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Image: Trade text Tab text Tab text Tab text Tab text	Sin
< > @, @, 218.2% 🔛 🛄	
Preview Tab 1-1 Pg. 1-2 4	
CLEAR Delete CANCEL OK	

The [Bleed Edge Tabs] screen consists of the following areas:

- 1. **Settings area** for bleed edge tab presets, printing side, pattern, tab length, margins, edge, tab gap, tabs per bank, and tab depth.
- 2. **Toolbar** for changing the tab background shape, formatting text, adding images, editing images, applying and modifying themes.
- 3. Tab list for adding, editing, and ordering bleed edge tabs.
- 4. **Tab preview** for previewing the bleed edge tabs. The top window displays the current tab and the bottom window displays the placement of tabs on sample pages.

Coloritant 🔿

- Only the settings from the **Settings area** are saved as a bleed edge tab preset. The settings from the **Toolbar**, **Tab list**, or **Tab preview** are not saved as a preset.
- The insert image function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.
- 3. Configure the settings required for the bleed edge tabs.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

4. Click **[OK]**.

You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Managing Bleed Edge Tab Presets

You can select, edit, save, and delete bleed edge tab presets using the preset list.

- Select a bleed edge tab preset by clicking a preset name in the [Preset] list.
- Click III, the [Delete] icon, to delete the bleed edge tab preset.

• Click [Save settings as preset] in the [Preset] list to save bleed edge tab settings as a preset. The [Save Preset] dialog box opens.

Colored Important

The **[Save settings as preset]** function does not save all bleed edge tab settings. Only **[Tabs per bank]**, **[Pattern]**, **[Tab length]**, **[Margins]**, **[Edge]**, **[Tab gap]**, and **[Tab depth]** are saved as a preset.

• Click [Manage presets] in the [Preset] list to view, edit, and delete existing presets.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Setting Printing Side

You can set the printing side by selecting one of these options:

- [Front side (1-sided)]: Places a tab on the front side of the page.
- [Both sides (2-sided)]: Places a tab on both sides of the page. The tab and contents are not rotated.
- [Both sides (2-sided), mirrored]: Places a tab on both sides of the page. The contents of the back side tab are rotated to match the front side tab.

Front side preview:

Tab 1-1	Pg. 1-2		W: 1.794in H: 0.569in
		< >	© © 133.6% 🕶 📕
Preview	Tab 1-1	Pg. 1-2	
		< >	© © 100% **

Back side preview:

Tab 1-1	Pg. 1-2						W: 1.7	94in	H: 0.	569in
		Я	Txxx	хххТ						
			<	>	Q	٢	133.6%	•-•		
Preview										1
	_		<	>			0 0	10	0%	

• [Both sides (2-sided), rotate 180°]: Places a tab on both sides of the page. The back side tab is rotated 180°.

Front side preview:



Back side preview:



Setting Tabs Per Bank

Bleed edge tab settings are applied and repeated based on the number of tabs in the bank.

Setting Pattern Order

Set the pattern order for bleed edge tabs from the following options:

- [Descending]: Arrange tabs in descending order from the top of the page to the bottom.
- [Ascending]: Arrange tabs in ascending order from the bottom of the page to the top.
- [None]: All tabs are placed in the top right corner.

Setting Length

Set the tab length by choosing from the available options:

- [Auto to content]: Automatically sets length for each tab based on the largest tab object (text, image, or shape).
- [Fixed length]: Manually enter the specific length for all tabs in the bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).
- [Equal length]: Automatically sets each tab to equal length based on the number of tabs in each bank.

- [Equal to page length]: Automatically adjusts the length of each tab to fit all tabs in each bank within page length.
- [Full page length]: Automatically sets each tab to the page length.

Setting Margins

Set tab margins by manually entering the values for these options:

- **[Top]**: Specify the distance from the sheet edge to the top of the tab bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).
- **[Bottom]**: Specify the distance from the sheet edge to the bottom of the tab bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).

Setting Edge

Manually enter the specific edge for all tabs in the bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).

- A negative edge margin moves the tab to the edge of the page. Any tab content that shifts off the page is truncated.
- A positive edge margin moves the tab on the page.

Setting Tab Gap

Manually enter the specific gap for all tabs in the bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).

Setting Depth

Select from the available options for bleed edge tab depth:

- [Auto to content]: Automatically sets depth for each tab based on the largest tab object (text, image, or shape).
- [Fixed depth]: Manually enter the specific depth for all tabs in the bank. Use increments of 0.1 mm (0.01 inches).
- [Equal depth]: Automatically sets each tab to equal depth based on the largest tab.

Applying, Editing, and Creating Themes for Bleed Edge Tabs

Themes store bleed edge tab and text formatting that can be quickly applied to all bleed edge tabs. You can select from a pre-defined collection of themes or customize a theme and save it.

Vote

- Themes save the following settings:
 - Text orientation, position, alignment, and formatting
 - Image rotation, position, and scale
 - Font color, shape fill color, shape border color, or color patterns. Color patterns include font color, shape fill color, and shape border color.
- Themes do not store inserted text and images or bleed edge tab preset information.

To apply a theme:

- 1. On the [Bleed Edge Tabs] screen, click A., the [Themes] button, on the toolbar.
- 2. Select a theme.

The settings are applied to all bleed edge tabs in the job.

✓ Note

• When you apply a theme that has a color pattern, the color pattern is automatically repeated across bleed edge tabs.

Editing Themes for Bleed Edge Tabs

You can edit existing theme names. Themes are arranged alphabetically.

To edit a theme name:

- 1. On the [Bleed Edge Tabs] screen, click [A], the [Themes] button, on the toolbar.
- 2. Click 🖍, the [Edit] button.
- 3. Enter a new name for the theme in the dialog box.
- 4. Click **[OK]**.

The themes are arranged alphabetically.

Creating Custom Themes for Bleed Edge Tabs

You can create and save custom themes. Themes do not save bleed edge tab preset information, text, or images.

To create a custom theme:

1. On the **[Bleed Edge Tabs]** screen, customize settings for text and images.

Themes save the following settings:

- Text orientation, position, alignment, and formatting
- Image rotation, position, and scale

- Font color, shape fill color, shape border color, or color patterns. Color patterns include font color, shape fill color, and shape border color.
- 2. Click , the [Themes] button, on the toolbar.
- 3. Click [Save theme...].
- 4. Enter a name for the theme in the [Save Theme] dialog box.
- 5. Click **[OK]**.

The themes are arranged alphabetically.

Vote

- A color pattern can save different color settings for each bleed edge tab.
- A pattern is based on the number of bleed edge tabs in a job. You can create a specific color pattern, save it as a custom theme, and apply it to other jobs.

For example, if you want to create a custom theme with an alternating color pattern of black and white bleed edge tabs:

- 1. Create a job with two bleed edge tabs.
- 2. Define different color settings for each bleed edge tab.
- 3. Save the custom theme.
- 4. Close the job.
- 5. Open another job with multiple bleed edge tabs.
- 6. Apply the new custom theme. The color pattern is automatically repeated across all the bleed edge tabs in the job. If the job has 20 bleed edge tabs, the alternating pattern is repeated 10 times.

Adding and Editing Inserts

Inserts are blank or preprinted sheets that are placed between the pages of the job. You can add inserts inside the job or modify the settings specified for existing inserts.

Adding Inserts

You can add inserts either before or after a page.

To add inserts:

1. Right-click the target page in the page list or the target sheet in [Sheet view] and select Inserts → Insert before... or Inserts → Insert after....

File Edit	View Insert Settings	Window Help			Apply prese	et 🝷	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🚺	
5	× 🗆 🗄 屯 🗄	9 T Z · 21.	Paper: A4		• 🛛• 🖥	0- 8- 7-	😍 - Copies: 1		
: ∷		1 - A4	2 · A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	Job Setup
	Cut Copy Paste Delete			NULLY NOT NOT NOT NOT NOT NOT NOT NOT	A second			 Second State (Second State (Sec	Finishing
	Edit page	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2	n in the second	4	5	6		Covers
	Paper F Tabs	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	
The second secon	Bleed edge tab Insert blank page Insert new pages Inserts	Insert before			Alexandra de la companya de la compa				Page Content
Capital State	Rotate V	Edit		10	11	. 12	13	14	Impose
And	Create chapter Printing side Color/Black and White Subset finishing	15 - A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	Gean Up
	Select all Select Deselect	* Market and State and Sta		International in	Note that the second se	A second	1 million and a	Citic Constraints and a second	
	Edit PDF original Edit Image original	22 - A4	23 - A4	24 - A4	25 - A4	26 - A4	27 - A4	Q 12% ·	

You can select and right-click multiple target pages or sheets.

2. In the **[Add Inserts Before]** or **[Add Inserts After]** dialog box, configure the settings required for the inserts.

Add Inserts Before				×
Paper A4	?	Pages 3	?	
Tray	?	Number of sheets	?	
		CA	NCEL OK	
		CA	INCEL OK	

You can set the paper and input tray, specify different target pages, and set the number of sheets that you want to add.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🗾 button to display the on-screen field help.

3. Click **[OK]**.

Vote

- You cannot place inserts before a front cover or after a back cover.
- You cannot place inserts before a designation sheet positioned at the beginning of a chapter or after a designation sheet positioned at the end of a chapter.
- You cannot place inserts between two inserted tabs.
- You cannot add inserts if the imposition is set to [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed].

Editing Inserts

You can modify the paper and tray settings specified for an insert.

To edit inserts:

- 1. Select the insert in the page list or in [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple inserts, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each insert that you want to select.
 - To select a range of inserts, click the first insert in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last insert in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select Inserts \rightarrow Edit....



3. In the [Edit Inserts] dialog box, modify the paper and tray settings as required.

Edit Inserts				×
Paper A4	?	Pages		?
Tray	?	Number of sheets		? *
		[CANCEL	ОК

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Note

- If you selected multiple inserts with different paper and tray settings, the **[Edit Inserts]** dialog box displays the paper and tray of the first insert.
- 4. Click **[OK]**.

Moving Inserts

To move inserts:

- 1. In the page list, select the insert or inserts that you want to move.
 - To select multiple inserts, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each insert that you want to select.
 - To select a range of inserts, click the first insert in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last insert in the range.
- 2. Click the selection and hold the mouse button, then drag the inserts to the new location and release the mouse button.

Vote

- You cannot move inserts before the front cover or after the back cover.
- You cannot move inserts before a designation sheet positioned at the beginning of a chapter or after a designation sheet positioned at the end of a chapter.
- You cannot move inserts between two inserted tabs.
- If the job has **[Normal]** imposition and is set to print on the front side of the sheet, you can also move inserts from the **[Sheet view]**.

Cutting, Copying, and Pasting Inserts

To cut, copy, and paste inserts:

- 1. Select the insert in the page list or in [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple inserts, hold the Ctrl key and click each insert that you want to select.
 - To select a range of inserts, click the first insert in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last insert in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Cut] or [Copy] from the menu.
- 3. Select the target page or sheet, right-click, and select [Paste].

Vote

- Inserts are pasted before the target page or sheet.
- You cannot paste inserts before the front cover or after the back cover.
- You cannot paste inserts before a designation sheet positioned at the beginning of a chapter or after a designation sheet positioned at the end of a chapter.
- You cannot paste inserts between two inserted tabs.

Deleting Inserts

To delete inserts:

- 1. Select the insert in the page list or in [Sheet view].
 - To select multiple inserts, hold the **Ctrl** key and click each insert that you want to select.
 - To select a range of inserts, click the first insert in the range, then hold the **Shift** key and click the last insert in the range.
- 2. Right-click and select [Delete] from the menu.

Adding Page Numbers

You can add page numbers to the document before you print it.



To add page numbers:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].



2. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Page Numbers].

File Edit	View Insert Settings W	ndow Help			Apply preset	- 0	🕻 🎆 Printer 1	- 🚺 🌲
r 3	K 🗖 🗄 🛱 🔊	T 🔺 24-	Paper: A	1	· 🛛 · 🛃	- 🚔 - 🗾 -	😍 - Copies: 1 -+	
: ≡		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	FORMAT	int setur
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			ULAN W W Water State of the state of the state water state of the state of the state of the state water state of the state of the state of the state W W W W W W W W W W W W W	The second secon		Header: Off Footer: Off 1 Page Numbers	Finishing
П	2. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	6 - A4	2	3 8 - A4	4	5	Format: None Page Stamping Off	Covies
-	2 Base		The second secon		Nacionalizza Maria		Bleed Edge Tabs	Sheets
A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR A CONTRAC	3. rage 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			- 1				Page Content
	4. Page	nerita de la constante de la c		. 8	9	10		Impose
Energy and	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	15 - A4		E
	5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)					A sub- weight and sub- and sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-		Clean up
	6. Page	11	12	13	14	15 🔰		
Billional and	1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4 🔍 🔍	12%74		

3. On the **[Page Numbers]** screen, configure the page numbering settings required for the job. If the job is set to print on both sides of the sheet, you can specify the same settings for both sides or different settings for the back side.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Page Numbers						×
FORMAT	?	CHAPTERS				?
1, 2	•	Restart number sequ	ence for each chapte	-	Apply	?
Arial	→ 10 → B I <u>A</u> →	Skip page numbers o	n first chapter page:		Apply	?
FRONT	Use settings for both sides ?	Chapter	Start Page	۵	Start Number	
	¥	√ 1	1	6	1	
BOTTOM	TOP	✓ 2	1	6	3	
Left Center Right	Left Center Right					
From right	From top					
0.2 🗘 in	0.2 🗘 in					
BACK	?	SKIP NUMBERING O	ON PAGES			?
BOTTOM	TOP	Skip page #	Туре	nclude i	n sequence	
		add				
Left Center Right	Left Center Right					
From right	From top					
0.2 🌲 in	0.2 🌲 in					
RESET			CA	NCEL	O	k

Vote

To undo all the changes and return to the default settings, click [Reset].

4. Click **[OK]**.

You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Adding a Header and Footer

You can add a header and footer to the document before you print it.

|--|

To add a header and footer:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].



2. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Headers/Footers].



3. On the **[Headers/Footers]** screen, configure the header and footer settings required for the job. If the job is set to print on both sides of the sheet, you can specify the same settings for both sides or different settings for the back side.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Headers/Footers		×
Header Footer		
Top margin 0 🜲 in ?		
FRONT HEADER		Use same settings for both sides ?
Text: ?	Image:	?
None 🔻		
Arial - 10 - B I <u>A</u> -	Transparent	
Position: ?	Position:	?
Left margin		Left margin 0.5 🛊 in
Left Center Right	Left Center Right	Rotation
		0 deg 👻
	Size	?
	W 0.5 💠 in	H 0.5 🜲 in
BACK HEADER		
RESET		CANCEL

Note

To undo all the changes and return to the default settings, click [Reset].

4. Click **[OK]**.

You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Adding Page Stamps

You can add page stamps to the document before you print it.

To add page stamps:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].
- 2. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Page Stamping].

If there are no other page stamps in the job, the [Page Stamping] screen opens.

If there are other page stamps in the job, the **[Select Page Stamp]** screen opens. To open the **[Page Stamping]** screen, click the **[Add stamp]** button.

3. On the [Page Stamping] screen, configure the page stamping settings required for the job.

Page Stamping	X
Printing side ? Front (1 sided)	Pages ?
Number of digits ? Start number ? 10 • 1 • Prefix ?	Repeat ? 1 * Suffix ?
Apply Date ? Date Format On Format	? * ?
00000000104/10/2018 04:39pm	
Arial - 36 -	в / <u>А</u>
Stamp position (in) Use same settings for both margins ? Use same settings for both margins ?	Rotation ?
RESET	CANCEL

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

Note

To undo all the changes and return to the default settings, click [Reset].

4. Click **[OK]**.

You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Using Page Stamping for Repetitive Print Jobs

You can add incremental page stamping for large repetitive print jobs where unique page stamp numbers are necessary.

To add page stamping to large repetitive print jobs:

- 1. Go to File \rightarrow Build Job to add files to the job.
- 2. In the **[Build Job]** dialog box, add files from your computer or import files from a scanner.

Build Job		Hanne J					×
+ Add files	≥ Scan	Fiery Remo	ote Scan 5	Ŧ	?		
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Туре	Last Update	
🔤 sample.pdf		1	1	3.0 MB	PDF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 P	м
 Apply preset 	No preset		Ŧ	?			
O Automate tabs	and chapters						
Auto-create	tabs from files		?	Auto-cr	eate chapter	s from files	?
Use file n	ame for tab ear	text		Use	file name fo	r chapter title	
Auto-create	tabs from bookr	narks	?	Auto-cr	eate chapter	s from bookmarks	?
						CANCEL	CREATE

- To add files from your computer, click [Add files], browse for the files that you want to add in the [Open] dialog box, select them, and click [Open].
 If a file is password-protected, you are prompted to enter the password before you can add
- the file to the job.
 To import files from a scanner, select a TWAIN-compliant scanner or the Fiery Remote Scan utility from the list of scanners and click [Scan].

Depending on the selected scanner, the TWAIN driver setup screen or the Fiery Remote Scan utility is launched. Follow the steps required by the scanner driver and make any necessary settings.

3. Enter the number of copies required for the batch in the [Copies] column.

For example, to create a batch of 100 tickets, enter 100 in the [Copies] column.

- 4. Click the **[Create]** button.
- 5. In the settings area on the right, click [Impose].
- 6. In the [Impose] panel, click [Gangup].



- 7. Select [Unique] in the [GANGUP / CUT & STACK] section.
- 8. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].
- 9. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Page Stamping].

10. In the **[Repeat]** field, enter the number of times a page stamp number repeats before it increments.

The **[Repeat]** value is calculated based on the number of eligible pages in a job.

For example, if you are printing 100 tickets and need the page stamp number to increment every 10th ticket, set the **[Repeat]** value to 10. The page stamp number repeats 10 times before it increments and continues until it reaches 100 tickets.

Page Stamping	×
Printing side ?	Pages ?
Number of digits ? Start number ? 10 • I • V Prefix ?	Repeat ? 10
ex-	-ticket
Apply Date ? Date Format Off Format	? * ?
ex-000000001-ticket	
Arial - 36 -	в / <u>А</u>
Stamp position (in) Use same settings for both margins ? Use same settings for both margins ? 0.25 0.25 0.25	Rotation 7 123 12 EZL EZ
RESET	CANCEL

11. Click **[OK]**.

You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Editing Page Stamps

You can modify an existing page stamp.

To edit a page stamp:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].
- 2. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Page Stamping].
- 3. On the [Select Page Stamp] screen, hover over the page stamp and click \checkmark , the [Edit page stamp] button.

Select Page Stamp		×
Add stamp		
Stamp	Page Range	
00104/10/2018 04:43pm	1-30	" т
		5
		CANCEL

4. On the [Page Stamping] screen, change the page stamping settings as required.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛛 button to display the on-screen field help.

5. Click **[OK]**. You can preview your settings in the workspace area.

Deleting Page Stamps

You can remove page stamps from the job.

To delete a page stamp:

- 1. In the settings area on the right, click [Page Content].
- 2. In the [Page Content] panel, click [Page Stamping].
- 3. On the [Select Page Stamp] screen, hover over the page stamp and click III, the [Delete page stamp] button.

×
)
ОК

4. Click **[OK]**.

Adding Covers

You can add cover sheets to a document when you print it. You can also print on the cover sheets.



The types of covers you can add depend on the imposition and finishing settings specified for the job.

🔂 Important

You cannot add covers if the imposition is set to [Perfect], [Perfect double], or [Speed].

Adding Front and Back Covers to a Job

You can add front and back covers to jobs with [Normal] or [Gangup] imposition.

To add front and back covers:

- 1. Make sure that the imposition is set to [Normal], [Gangup] [Unique], or [Gangup] [Repeat] in the [Impose] panel.
- 2. In the settings area on the right, click [Covers].
- 3. In the **[Covers]** panel, specify the settings required for the front and back covers.



You can set the paper and input tray and specify whether the covers are preprinted or printed with job content. For details about a specific setting, click the substant to display the on-screen field help.

Adding a Cover to a Booklet

You can add a booklet cover to a job with **[Booklet]** or **[Booklet double]** imposition. The cover sheet wraps around the entire job forming both the front and the back cover.

To add a cover to a booklet:

- 1. Make sure that the imposition is set to [Booklet] or [Booklet double] in the [Impose] panel.
- 2. In the settings area on the right, click [Covers].
- 3. In the **[Covers]** panel, specify the settings required for the booklet cover.



You can set the paper and input tray and specify whether the cover is preprinted or printed with job content. For details about a specific setting, click the Dutton to display the on-screen field help.

Adding a Cover to a Perfect Bound Job

You can add a cover to a perfect bound document. The cover sheet wraps around the entire job, forming the front cover, the spine, and the back cover. You can also print on the cover, design the cover pages, and configure the spine.

Vote

- These imposition settings do not apply to the perfect bind cover:
 - [Manual] setting for [Finishing Size]
 - [Binding margins]
 - [Image Shift]

To add a perfect bind cover:

1. Make sure that the printer set for the job supports perfect binding.

If you want to print job content on the cover, the printer must also support printing on the cover.

- 2. In the settings area on the right, click [Finishing].
- 3. Under [Binding], select [Perfect binding].
- 4. In the settings area on the right, click [Covers].
- 5. In the **[Covers]** panel, specify the settings required for the perfect bind cover.



You can set the paper and input tray and specify whether the cover is preprinted or printed with job content. If the cover is printed with job content, you can also configure the spine thickness, the cover wrapping method, and the spine offset and set image shift values for the cover content.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

6. To design the cover, click [Cover Builder].

You can specify the pages that are printed on the cover and on the spine and set the page position, order, size, and rotation. For more information, see Creating the Perfect Bind Cover, p. 204.

• Note

- [Cover Builder] is available only when you print job content on the cover.
- 7. To design the spine, click [Spine Builder].

You can add masks, text, and images and set the object position, order, size, and rotation. For more information, see Editing the Spine of a Perfect Bind Cover, p. 206.

• Note

- [Spine Builder] is available only when you print job content on the outside of the cover.
- Make sure that you first create the cover in **[Cover Builder]**. If you use **[Cover Builder]** after you design the spine, the objects placed on the spine are removed.

Reference

You can set trimming settings for perfect bound documents in the **[Finishing]** panel. For more information, see Trimming the Printed Document, p. 171.

Creating the Perfect Bind Cover

You can design and create the cover for a perfect bound job using [Cover Builder].

To design and create the perfect bind cover:

1. In the [Covers] panel, specify the settings required for the perfect bind cover.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🔝 button to display the on-screen field help.

2. Make sure that you set the outside, the inside, or both sides of the cover to be printed with job content.

Depending on the printing option selected for the cover, you can edit the outside cover, the inside cover, or both covers in the **[Cover Builder]** view. This procedure provides the steps required for editing both covers.

3. Click [Cover Builder].

The **[Cover Builder]** view is displayed in the workspace. The areas available for the cover pages and the spine are marked on the cover sheet. The spine area can only be edited for the outside cover.

C Important

- When you select a cover printing option, the first or last pages in the job are placed on the cover sheet by default, depending on the printer. If the PDF page that is placed on the cover sheet by default is twice the size of the job paper, [Cover Builder] recognizes it as a cover. To start designing a new cover, you must first click [Delete cover]. The corresponding PDF pages are also removed from the job.
- 4. Click **Spine position**] button, at the bottom of the workspace and adjust the settings configured for the spine as required.

The spine settings determine the location of the spine on the cover sheet and the size of the front and back cover spaces. Make sure that you configure these settings correctly before you start designing the cover.

5. Select the page that you want to place on the cover in the page list and drag it to one of the cover areas or to the spine area.



You can also enter the number of the page in the [Outside cover settings] menu.

After you place pages on the cover, you can use the buttons at the bottom of the workspace or the right-click menu to set the page position, order, size, and rotation.

Vote

 The pages placed on the cover are the original document pages and do not include inserted objects, such as masks, text, or images. If you want the cover pages to include inserted objects, you must first save the objects in the input document by saving the job as a PDF file. Then, you can use the resulting PDF file to create the perfect bound job.

The same applies for page content settings, such as page numbers, headers and footers, page stamps, or bleed edge tabs.

6. To change the page order when the pages placed on the cover overlap each other, select a

page, click **Line**, the **[Order]** button, and select an order option.

7. To position a page, select it and click **[1]**, the **[Align]** button.

Select a reference point to align the page based on that reference point. You can enter offset values in the input fields to shift the page horizontally or vertically from the selected reference point.

You can also click the page and drag it to a new position.

8. To crop a page, select it, click **E**, the **[Crop]** button, and select a cropping option.

You can use the **[Crop to fit]** option to crop the page so that it fits in the available cover or spine area.

- 9. To scale a page, select it, click 22, the [Scale] button, and select a scaling option.
- 10. To rotate a page, select it, click 🖄, the **[Rotate]** button, and select a rotation option.
- 11. To center a page, right-click it and select [Center], then [Vertically], [Horizontally], [Both], or [To spine].

The [To spine] option centers the page on the spine area.

- 12. To remove a page, right-click it and select [Remove].
- 13. Click Click Click Click Cover settings] button, at the bottom of the workspace, and then click [Create cover].
- 14. Click [Delete source pages].

Once you remove the source pages from the job, you can no longer edit them. Before you delete the pages, make sure that the final output is correct by printing a test copy.

If you want to remove the created cover, click [Delete cover].

15. Click [Flip Cover] and repeat the steps to design the inside cover.

You cannot print in the spine area on the inside cover.

File Edit	View Insert Settings	Window	Help							Appl	ly preset	-	C	Printer 1	*	\diamondsuit	٠
r 3	💌 🗖 🖄 市	a T	2		a -	Paper: A4			· U-	1 -	≧ • ,	Z- 🜔-	Copie	s 1 -+			
# ≣			foto foto	dintalf	Insid	latal finlatal finl le front	adinta di Antoni i Antoni i Antoni i Antoni a A Antoni a Antoni a Anto	ulfotoolitotoo	Polo Pol	nside b	ack	datal datal fi	111/11	PERFECT BIND COVER	1		Job Setup
	1. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	filmifilmifi												Paper Custom: A3 (297 x 4	20 mm)		Finishing
	2. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	this at the second			Ð									Input Tray			Covers
	3. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)													COVER BU	LDER		Sheets Page Content
	4. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	filmit hint film					Inside cove Inside Inside 1	er settings back None	0	× ? ?				0.653 ¢ in Cover wrap position Centered		late ?	Impose
	5. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	huhhhuhhhu					DELET	REATE COV	ER PAGES					0 ‡ in			
	6. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	ti filmi filmi filmi	-	AR 21	. F br	<u>]</u> - फ़-	D 21- 21-	ELETE COV	ER) 2-	0, 0,	39% -		v ↓ x ↓ 0 ↓			

16. Click Click (Inside cover settings) button, at the bottom of the workspace, and then click [Create cover].

17. Click [Delete source pages].

Once you remove the source pages from the job, you can no longer edit them. Before you delete the pages, make sure that the final output is correct by printing a test copy.

If you want to remove the created cover, click [Delete cover].

Editing the Spine of a Perfect Bind Cover

You can configure the spine of a perfect bind cover using [Spine Builder].

To edit the spine:

1. In the **[Covers]** panel, specify the settings required for the perfect bind cover.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

2. Make sure that you set the outside or both sides of the cover to be printed with job content.

If you used **[Cover Builder]** to design the cover sheet, also make sure that you save the changes to the outside cover.

3. Click [Spine Builder].

The [Spine Builder] view is displayed in the workspace.

The area available for the spine is highlighted. Any document pages placed on the outside cover are visible in the viewer.

File Edit	View Insert Settings	Window Help		Apply preset		Printer 1	- 🕥	
r 3	💌 🗖 🖽 🖬 👘	2 T 🗹 - 21-	Paper: A4	- U- 📑 🛀	Z- 🍮	- Copies: 1 -+		
: ≣		10019010019000 73 4	n 1 marina (19 marina	inteniinteniinteniinteniin S	lin finini	PERFECT BIND COVER	?	Ich Setun
1.1	311. Page	ow Free		*				-
	2-sided Color	THE DEPARTMENT				Paper		Finishing
	A4 (210 X 237 min)	- HO				Custom: A3 (297 x 420	mm) -	
	312. Page					Input Tray		
	2-sided Color		2			1 Tray 1		Coviers
5 (2.1)	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	3	action					۲
			linstri e			COVER BUILD	DER	Sheets
3.5.1	313. Page	2	oting 6 Guie					
dine .	2-sided Color		Oper			SPINE BUILD	ER	Page
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	E			- 10	Spine thickness		Content
	314. Page	2				0.653 🛟 in		Impose
1.1	2-sided Color	E				Cover wrap position		
111	A4 (210 x 297 mm)					Centered		E
		2				Spine offset		Clean Up
	315. Page					0 💠 in		
	2-sided Color	22				IMAGE SHIFT (IN)		
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)			ł	- Di			
_	316. Outside Cover 📥					Y 0		
1.1	2-sided Color	3.2	(7) (m) (+ x		
· · · · ·	A3 (297 x 420 mm)		• ▲ ▲ 밤 臫• 다• 뭔•.	Ź ∖ - Q Q 49%		▲ 0 ▶		

4. Click **Spine position**] button, at the bottom of the workspace and adjust the settings configured for the spine as required.

The spine settings determine the location of the spine on the cover sheet and the size of the front and back cover spaces. Make sure that you configure these settings correctly before you start designing the spine.

- 5. Click Let, the [Rotate view counterclockwise] button, or Let, the [Rotate view clockwise] button, to display the spine either vertically or horizontally in the viewer.
- 6. To add a mask, click [Mask tool] button, on the toolbar, set the mask type and color, and then click the page and drag the cursor to create the mask.

For more information, see Adding a Mask, p. 125 and Editing a Mask, p. 126.

7. To add text, click [1], the [Text tool] button, on the toolbar, click the page to insert a text box, and then type the text.

For more information, see Adding Text, p. 133 and Editing Text, p. 134.

8. To add an image, click [Image tool] button, on the toolbar, and then click [Choose Image...] and select an image from the file browser.

For more information, see Adding an Image, p. 138 and Editing an Image, p. 139.

- To paste an image or text from the system clipboard, right-click and select [Paste Special].
 For more information, see Pasting Images or Text from the System Clipboard, p. 143.
- 10. To select inserted masks, text boxes, or images:
 - To select a single object, click the object.
 - To select multiple objects, click the page and drag the cursor to create a selection area that surrounds the objects.
 - To select all the objects, right-click and select [Select all].
 - To select all the objects in the spine area, right-click and select [Select all in spine area].
- To reposition an object, select it and drag it to a new location or enter coordinates in the [x] and
 [y] input fields on the toolbar.

The origin point (0,0) is at the center of the spine.

- 12. To resize an object, select it and use the anchor points or enter width and height values in the **[w]** and **[h]** input fields on the toolbar.
- 13. To copy, cut, and paste an object:
 - 1. Right-click the object and select [Copy] or [Cut].
 - 2. Right-click and select [Paste].

The object is pasted at the center of the cover sheet.

- 14. To set the order of multiple objects, right-click an object and select [Order], then [Bring to front], [Bring forward], [Send to back], or [Send backward].
 - [Bring to front]: Brings the object in front of all other objects.
 - [Bring forward]: Brings the object forward by one layer.
 - [Send to back]: Sends the object behind all other objects.
 - [Send backward]: Sends the object backward by one layer.
- 15. To center an object, right-click it and select [Center], then [Vertically], [Horizontally], [Both], or [To spine].

The **[To spine]** option centers the object on the spine area.

- 16. To rotate an object, right-click it and select [Rotate 90° clockwise] or [Rotate 90° counterclockwise].
- 17. To delete an object, right-click it and select [Delete].
- 18. To create an overlay, select the objects that you want to include in the overlay, right-click, and select **[Create overlay...]**.

In the **[Overlays]** dialog box, enter a name for the overlay and click **[OK]**. You can use the overlay for jobs that have the same cover and spine settings.

In this example, a text box and an image were placed on the spine. The objects were resized and centered.



Adding Slip Sheets and Designation Sheets

TotalFlow Prep lets you add slip sheets and designation sheets inside your jobs.

Inserting Slip Sheets

You can protect the printed sheets of the job by inserting slip sheets between them. You can also print on the slip sheets.



🔁 Important 🔵

- You cannot insert slip sheets if the job has [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed] imposition.
- The slip sheet settings are not displayed in the page list or in the workspace.
- If a job with slip sheets is saved as a PDF file with the Save as function, the slip sheets are not saved in the PDF file.
- If the paper size of the slip sheets is different from the paper size of the job, you cannot set finishing settings.

To insert slip sheets:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Sheets].

File Edit View Insert Settings	Window Help			Apply pres	et 👻	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🗘	•
「「「「「「」」	I I 🔺 21-	Paper: A4		• 🕛• 🛛)· 🛛 🗛	See Copies: 1		
. =	1- 44	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	Job Setup
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			INTEL IN	The second secon				Finishing
2. Page 1-sided Color	المراجع (ا المراجع (المراجع (الم	2	Balloundersteinen Balloundersteinen 3	. 4	interveningeneers	- 6	7	Covers
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	400
3. Page 3. sided Color Finance A4 (210 x 297 mm)	.							Page Content
4. Page 1-sided Color	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Impose
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	15 - A4	16 - A4	17 - A4	18 - A4	19 - A4	20 - A4	21 - A4	Clean Up
5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)				A Constant of the second secon		The second secon	In the second se	
6. Page	15	16	17	18	19	20	21 🔰	
1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	22 - A4	23 - A4	24 - A4	25 - A4	26 - A4	27 - A4 🔍	© 12%- 28 ⁻ A4	

In the [Slip Sheets] section, specify the slip sheet settings required for the job.
 For details about a specific setting, click the 2 button to display the on-screen field help.

File Edit View Insert Settings Wi	ndow Help	Apply prese	t - C	📑 Printer 1 🛛 🚽	\Diamond	۰
(m) つ (N) ロ 団 市 四	T 🔺 - 🏦 - 📴 - Paper: A4	- U- E	• ≅• Z• 🔇	- Copies: 1 -+		
: =	1 - A4 2 - A4	3 - A4 4 - A4	5 · A4	SLIP SHEETS	?	loh Setun
1. Page 1. sided Color 44 (210 x 282 mm)		ADD UNDER STATES AND UNDER STATES A		No slip sheets Insert after sheet e.g. 1,3-5	?	Finishing
2. Page		Beneficial Constraints of the second	5	Paper A4	? •	Covers
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	6-A4 7-A4	8 - A4 9 - A4	10 - A4	Input Tray	7 •	Sheets
3. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)				DESIGNATION SHEETS No designation sheets	?	Page Content
4. Page	6 7 11 - A4 12 - A4	8 9 13 - A4 14 - A4	10	Insert Beginning of chapter End of chapter	?	Impose
5. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)		The second secon	Unite Construction Construct	Chapters Chapters Specify chapters e.g. 1,3-5	?	Clean Up
6. Page 1-sided Color	11 12	13 14	15	Paper A4 Input Tray	7 • 2	
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	16 - A4 17 - A4	18 - A4 19 - A4	28724	Auto tray select		

Inserting Designation Sheets at Chapter Breaks

You can insert designation sheets between the chapters that you created inside a job. You can also print on the designation sheets.



Coloritant 🖸

- You cannot insert designation sheets if the job has [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed] imposition.
- You can only insert designation sheets if the job has at least one chapter.

To insert designation sheets:

1. In the settings area on the right, click [Sheets].



2. In the **[Designation Sheets]** section, specify the designation sheet settings required for the job. For details about a specific setting, click the **?** button to display the on-screen field help.



Reference

For more information on creating chapters, see Creating Chapters, p. 110.

Specifying Color Settings

You can specify whether the job is printed in black and white or in full color.

Coloritant 🔁

The options available for the color setting depend on the printer selected for the job.

To specify color settings for the job:



File Edit View Insert Settings Wir	ndow Help			Apply prese	t ~	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🔇	>
、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、、	T 🔺 A.	Paper: Ad		• 🛛 • 📑	7	Copies: 1	-+	
. =	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	Full Color	_	
1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Home					Finishing
2. Page	•	2	Participante and a second as a	- 	5	Market State	7	Covers

- 2. Select one of the available color options:
 - [Black and White]: The job prints in black and white.
 - [Full Color]: The job prints in full color.

Note

When you switch to a color printer, the [Color/Black and White] setting changes automatically to [Full Color].

Reference

You can also specify color settings for individual sheets. For more information on color exceptions, see Specifying Color Exceptions, p. 217.

Specifying the Number of Copies to Print

You can specify the number of copies to print.

To specify the number of copies:

- 1. Click inside the [Copies:] field on the toolbar.
- 2. Enter a value from 1 to 9999.

See the printer documentation for more information on the maximum number of copies supported.

File Edit View Insert Settings Win	dow Help			Apply press	et -	C 📑 Printer 1	- 🗸)
かつまた日日日本の	T 🖬 • 24-	Paper: J	14	• 🕛 •)- 🗳 Z-	Copies: 3		
: ::	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	In Setup
1. Page 1-sided Color • A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Made Hanning States and States a	A second				Finishing
2. Page 1-sided Color	•••	2	The second secon	4	untereneraria	in Adaption of Francisco and Adaption of Fra	7	Covers
↓ Note								

You can also use the **E**[Increase] and **E**[Decrease] buttons to modify the number of copies.

Specifying Exception Settings

You can apply separate settings for specific sheets or pages in the job. For example, certain pages of the document can be set to print on blue paper and on one side only.

These settings can be applied as exceptions:

- Paper
- Printing side
- Color/Black and white
- Stapling

🔂 Important

- The exception icon <> is displayed for sheets or pages to which an exception setting has been applied.
- You cannot set paper and printing side exceptions for jobs with [Booklet] or [Gangup] [Speed] imposition.
- You cannot set stapling exceptions for jobs with [Booklet] or [Gangup] imposition.
- You cannot set paper, printing side, or stapling exceptions for designation sheets, covers, or tabs. If a page has paper, printing side, or stapling exceptions applied, you cannot set the page content to be printed as a cover, designation sheet, or tab.
- You cannot set exceptions for inserts.

Specifying Paper Exceptions

You can specify different paper settings for specific pages in the job.

1. Select the target pages in the page list or the target sheets in [Sheet view].

Note

If multiple pages are set to print on a sheet and you only apply a paper exception to some of the pages, the exception pages are placed on a separate sheet. You can see the result in the workspace area.

2. Right-click the selection, then click **Paper** \rightarrow **Select paper...**.

File Edit	View Insert Settings Wi	ndow Help		Apply preset ~ C	🎆 Printer 1 🛛 👻 🚺	
5	K 🗖 🗄 🗗 🔊	T 🔺 - 🛝 - 🗐 - Pape	er: A4 -	· □ - ঊ• ≅• ⊿• 🕻	- Copies: 1 -+	
: ::		1-A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	Lob Setup
	1. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Cut Copy	And Control of Control			Finishing
	2. Page 2-sided Color	Paste Delete	3 4	Advancementarian processor	7 8	Covers
	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Edit page	6 - A4	7 - A4	8 - A4	Sheets
The second secon	3. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Paper Tabs Bleed edge tab Insert blank sheet	Select paper	Barrow Constanting and a second secon	Horizontalitation Horizontalitatio Horizontalitation Horizontalitation Horizontalitation	Page Content
	4. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Insert new pages Inserts Rotate	11 12 10 - A4	13 14 11 - A4	15 16 12 - A4	
	5. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Create chapter Printing side Color/Black and White Subset finishing		A second se	The second secon	Clean Up
	6. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Select all Select Deselect	19 20 14 - A4	21 22 15 - A4	23 24 III	

- 3. On the [Paper Selection] screen, specify the paper that you want to use.
 - To apply a paper that is currently loaded in a printer tray, select the paper from the **[Loaded Paper]** list and click **[OK]**.

Pa	per Selection			Custor	n Paper	+Add Paper	×
C	Name 🔺	Size	Weight	Туре	Color		
REG	CENT SELECTIONS						
	A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain			
LO	ADED PAPER (5)						
√ 1	A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
2	A5	A5 (148 x 210 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
3	A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
В	A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
L	Custom	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
FUL	L CATALOG (4)						
	A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	80 gsm	Plain			
1	Custom A3	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
1	Custom A4	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	90 gsm	Plain			
	Letter	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	80 gsm	Plain			
				Г	CANCEL	ОК	
				L			

• To apply a paper from the paper catalog of the printer or a registered custom paper, select the paper from the **[Full Catalog]** list and click **[OK]**.

Vote

To create a new custom paper and add it to the **[Full Catalog]** list, click the **[+Add Paper]** button. For more information, see Adding Custom Papers, p. 77.

- To apply a recently used paper, select the paper from the [Recent Selections] list and click [OK].
- To specify the paper properties manually, click the [Custom Paper] button, set the properties on the [Custom Paper] screen, and click [Apply].

For details about the available properties, click the **2** button to display the on-screen field help.

Custom Paper						
Copy from	?					
Select paper	*					
PAPER SETTINGS		RECENT SELECTIO	INS			?
Size	?	~				
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	-	A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Letter (8.5 x 11 in.)	Legal (8.5 x 14 in.)	A3 (297 x 420 mm)	Tabloid (11 x 17 in.)
Weight : (60 - 300)	?					
		√ Use default	100	150	200	250
Color	?	~				
Use default	Ŧ	Use default	White	Yellow	Green	Blue
Туре	?					
Use default	-	Use default	Plain	Synthetic	Photographic	Cardstock
Texture	?	~				
					CANCEL	
Comportant Comportant Comportant Comportant Comportant

- Make sure that a paper with matching properties is available on the printer. For information on the printer paper settings, see the printer documentation.
- Select the **[Use default]** option or leave the field blank for the paper properties that you do not want to send to the printer.

To remove the paper exception and reapply the job paper, select the pages or sheets, right-click the selection, and then click **Paper** \rightarrow **Reset to job paper**.

Specifying Paper Exceptions by Selecting a Tray

You can also specify different paper settings for specific pages by selecting the tray where the paper is loaded.

1. Select the target pages in the page list or the target sheets in [Sheet view].

Note

If multiple pages are set to print on a sheet and you only apply a paper exception to some of the pages, the exception pages are placed on a separate sheet. You can see the result in the workspace area.

2. Right-click the selection, then click **Paper** \rightarrow **Select tray...**.



3. On the [Paper tray] screen, select the tray where the paper is loaded and click [OK].

Paper tray (Loaded) X
Auto tray select
1 Tray 1 (A4)
2 Tray 2 (A5)
3 Tray 3 (A3)
B Bypass Tray (A4)
L Large Capacity Tray (A4)
CANCEL

To remove the paper exception and reapply the job paper, select the pages or sheets, right-click the selection, and then click **Paper** \rightarrow **Reset to job paper**.

Specifying Printing Side Exceptions

You can apply different printing side settings for specific pages in the job.

To specify printing side exceptions:

1. Select the target pages in the page list or the target sheets in [Sheet view].

Vote

If multiple pages are set to print on a sheet and you only apply a printing side exception to some of the pages, the unselected pages are placed on a separate sheet. You can see the result in the workspace area.

2. Right-click the selection, then click [Printing side] and select either [Front side (1-sided)] or [Both sides (2-sided)].

File Edit View Insert Settin	gs Window Help		Apply preset - C	📰 Printer 1 🔹 🧹	
r 🕾 🗖 🕅 🗄	. 🖅 🛨 - 🆾 - 🗍 - Pape	er: A4	□- 18• 🛛 🖉 🌙	Copies: 1 -+	
. ::	1- 44	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	ich Setup
1. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Cut Copy Paste Delete	Image: State			Finishing
2. Page 2. sided I Color	Edit page	There are no set of the set of th	5 6	7 8	Covers
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Paper Fabs	6 - A4	7 - A4	8 - A4	Sheets
3. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Bleed edge tab Insert blank page Insert new pages Inserts		Remain and Argenting and Argen		Page Content
4. Page	Rotate	11 12	13 14	1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	Impose
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Printing side Front side (1-side Color/Black and White Both sides (2-sid	ded) (h) 10 - A4 ded) (h)	11 - A4	12 - A4	Clean Up
5. Page	Subset finishing		Experimentation and the second s		
A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Select all		A - A - A - A - A - A - A - A - A -		
6. Page	Deselect 18	19 20	21 22	23 24	
2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Edit PDF original Edit Image original	14 - A4	15 - A4	Q Q 12% -	

To remove the printing side exception, select the pages or sheets, right-click the selection, and then click **Printing side** \rightarrow **Reset to job setting**.

Specifying Color Exceptions

You can apply different color settings for specific pages or sheets in the job.

To specify color exceptions:

- 1. Select the target pages in the page list or the target sheets in [Sheet view].
- 2. Right-click the selection, then click [Color/Black and White] and select either [Color] or [Black and white].



To remove the color exception, select the pages or sheets, right-click the selection, then click Color/ Black and White \rightarrow Reset to job setting.

Specifying Stapling Exceptions

You can apply stapling settings only for specific ranges of sheets so that only part of the job is stapled.

To specify stapling exceptions:

- 1. Select a range of pages in the page list or a range of sheets in [Sheet view].
- 2. Right-click the selection, then click **Subset finishing...** \rightarrow **Set finishing...**.

File Edit View Insert Settings V	vindow Help	Apply preset 👻	C' 🎆 Printer 1 🔹 🚺	
🗠 🕾 🗖 🗄 🛱 🖉	T 🛂 - 🎝 - 🗐 - Paper: A4	- □- ঊ- ≅- ⊿-	😂 - Copies: 1 -+	
: =	1-A4 2-Av	4 3 - A4	4 - A4	in the first of the second
1. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Line Copy			Finishing
2. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Pate Delete 3	4 5 6 4 7 · A4	7 8	Covers
3. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Paper Paper Bleed edge tab		Home and the second sec	Sheets Page Content
4. Page 2.sided Color 5. sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Inserts new pages 11 Inserts + 10 - A	12 13 14 14 11 - A4	15 16 12 - A4	
5. Page 2-iided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Create chapter Printing side Color/Black and White Subset finishing		A second	Clean Up
6. Page 2-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)	Select all 19 Select 14-A	20 21 22 4 15 - A4	23 24 U	

3. In the **[Subset finishing]** dialog box, select a stapling option from the **[Staple]** list and click **[OK]**.

Subset finishing	
Staple	?
Top left Auto	-
CANCEL	

The subset icons < and 🔷 mark the beginning and the end of the staple subset.

Comportant 2

- Only the stapling options that are available on the printer are displayed.
- On some printers, it is not possible to set stapling as an exception setting. Also, even if stapling exceptions can be set, the output order of the documents might be different than expected when you print multiple copies. This happens because any staple subset is processed as a separate job.
- You can send a job that contains multiple staple subsets with different stapling options to printers with an EFI Fiery controller. However, only the first staple subset and any additional subsets that have the same stapling option are applied when the job is processed.
- If you paste or move pages inside a staple subset, the pages are added to the subset.
- If you copy or cut only the pages of a staple subset as a group and paste them to a new location, the staple subset setting is preserved.
- If you move only the pages of a staple subset as a group, the staple subset setting is preserved.

To remove the stapling exception, select the pages or sheets, right-click the selection, and then click **Subset finishing...** → **Reset to job setting**.

Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep

You can launch the browser version of TotalFlow Prep from TotalFlow Production Manager or from TotalFlow Print Server. After you finish editing the job, you can save it and submit it back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server.

Comportant 🔿

- Some functions of TotalFlow Prep are not available in the browser version.
- TotalFlow Production Manager must be installed on the same computer as TotalFlow Prep.
- When you edit a job from TotalFlow Production Manager, certain settings are applied to the PDF file and are not reflected in the JDF job ticket. For example, if four pages are imposed on a sheet, a 4-up PDF file is created and 1-up is specified in the JDF ticket. As a result, when you view the job in TotalFlow Production Manager or when you edit the job again in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, the settings appear in the PDF file, but not in the job properties.

To edit and save a job in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep:

1. Make sure that TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server is configured to use the browser version of TotalFlow Prep for editing jobs.

For more information, see the documentation for TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server.

2. In TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server, find the job that you want to edit and open it in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

For more information, see the documentation for TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server.

- RICCH totalifiow Prep [Browser]

 File Edit View Inter: String: Help
 Paper: A1
 <pPaper: A1</p>
 <pPaper: A1</p>
 Paper: A1
 Pa
- 3. Edit the job.

For more information on editing job settings, see Editing Jobs, p. 95.

- 4. Save the job changes and submit the job back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server:
 - If you are editing a job from TotalFlow Production Manager, click **[File]** and select one of these options:
 - **[Save And Continue]**: Saves the job changes and submits the job back to TotalFlow Production Manager to continue processing.

- [Save And Hold]: Saves the job changes and stops the job in the current workflow activity. You can edit the job again later or specify in TotalFlow Production Manager when to continue processing.
- [Save As PDF And Continue]: Saves the job changes and submits the job back to TotalFlow Production Manager to continue processing. To ensure correct processing, some job settings are removed from the job ticket and applied to the PDF file. If you view the job in TotalFlow Production Manager, these settings appear in the PDF file, but not in the job properties.
- [Save As PDF And Hold]: Saves the job changes and stops the job in the current workflow activity. You can edit the job again later or specify in TotalFlow Production Manager when to continue processing. To ensure correct processing, some job settings are removed from the job ticket and applied to the PDF file. If you edit the job again in TotalFlow Prep, these settings appear in the PDF file, but not in the job properties.



• If you are editing a job from TotalFlow Print Server, click **File** → **Save And Exit**.



Solving Job Setting Conflicts

When you specify a job setting that is not compatible with current settings, a warning dialog box appears. The dialog box lists the conflicting options and provides information on how to solve the problem.

In some cases you are prompted to manually change the current settings before you can apply the setting that caused the conflict. For example, if the job is set to open to the left and you want to specify stapling settings for the top edge, the warning dialog box informs you that you must manually change the open direction first and then reapply the stapling setting.



In other cases, you can specify whether you want to apply the conflicting setting and automatically adjust the current job settings or discard the last change and keep the current settings as they are. For example, if you specify a punching option for a job that already has stapling applied, the warning dialog box lets you specify which of the two finishing settings you want to apply.

Job settings conflict
The job cannot support this combination of settings:
 Stapling : 2 at Center Punch edge : Left Number of holes : 2-hole
Click OK to apply: Punch edge : Left Number of holes : 2-hole
Current options might change automatically to apply this setting without conflicts.
Or click Cancel to undo and return to the previous settings.
CANCEL

- Previewing Jobs
- Sending Jobs to a Printer
- Sending Jobs to TotalFlow Production Manager
- Printing Selected Pages
- Printing Page Ranges
- Printing a Job with Both Color and Black and White Sheets on Separate Printers
- Saving Jobs
- Checking Job Progress and Results

After you finish editing jobs and specify all the required settings, you can send the jobs to the printer, and then check their progress and results. You can also save the jobs for later use.

C Important

- Make sure that both the computer and the printer that you want to use are properly connected to the network. For more information, see the documentation for your printer.
- To print jobs using TotalFlow Production Manager, you must first set up TotalFlow Production Manager and make sure it is connected to the network. For more information, see the TotalFlow Production Manager documentation.
- You can also process jobs and send them to a printer automatically using hot folders. For more information, see Using Hot Folders with Presets, p. 244.

Previewing Jobs

Before you print a job, you can preview the output in the **[Reader view]**. The **[Reader view]** lets you flip through the pages of the job and preview the job settings to make sure that they are correct.

To preview a job:

1. Click **[Reader view]** button, in the right corner of the workspace.



2. Use the functions available in the **[Reader view]** to move through the job and verify the output:

- Click the outer edge of the pages.
- Use , the [Previous page] button, and >, the [Next page] button.
- Hover over the current page number and enter the number of the page that you want to display.
- Select a page in the page list.
- Click , the [Bookmarks] icon, and select [Beginning], a chapter name, or [End] to go to the first page, to a specific chapter, or to the last page.

Note

Depending on the printer, paper settings, and finishing settings, the actual output might differ from the results shown in the preview.

Sending Jobs to a Printer

To send a job to a printer:

1. Make sure that the printer you want to use is selected in the printers menu.

For more information, see Specifying a Printer for the Job, p. 95.

2. Click ____, the [Print] button.

File Ec	lit View Insert Settings Wind	dow Help			Apply preset		C 📑 Printer 1	- 🐼	
r 7	×□∄ ī ₽	T 🔺 🖄	Paper: A4		· 🛛 • 🛃 •	₩ * ≠ *	😍 - Copies: 1		
. :	l i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)							A constant of the and the second of the second of the second of the and the second of the second of the second of the and the second of the and the second of the second of the and the second	Finishing
	2. Page 1-sided Color	• 	2	3	4	5	Branch de la factoria	7	Covers

You can also click **File** \rightarrow **Print** on the menu bar to print jobs.



If there is a problem with the printer or with the job settings, the **[Print]** button turns red (**W**hen you click the button, you receive an error message with more details about the problem.

Vote

In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, the print function is not available. After you finish editing a job, you can save it and submit it back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.

Sending Jobs to TotalFlow Production Manager

To send a job to a workflow defined on TotalFlow Production Manager:

1. Make sure that the workflow you want to use is selected in the printers menu.

For more information, see Specifying a Printer for the Job, p. 95.

2. Optional: In the settings area on the right, click [Job Setup] and select a print mode option from the [Print mode] list.

For example, you can select **[Hold print]** to delay printing a job after sending it to TotalFlow Production Manager.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

3. Click , the [Print] button.

File Edit	t View Insert Settings Wir	ndow Help			Apply pres	et 👻	С 📑 терм	- 🏹	>
r a	💌 🗖 🗄 🖬 🔊	T 🖬 · 24.	🔄 - Paper: A	4	- U-)· • • 7·	😍 - Copies: 1		
: 3		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			Home Home				An official and a second secon	Finishing
	2. Page	• 	2	Bernard Bernard	4	5	6	7	Covers

You can also click **File** \rightarrow **Print** on the menu bar to print jobs.

If there is a problem with the printer or with the job settings, the **[Print]** button turns red (**When** you click the button, you receive an error message with more details about the problem.

Vote

In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, the print function is not available. After you finish editing a job, you can save it and submit it back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.

Printing Selected Pages

You can choose to print only selected pages from a job.

• Note

- This option is available when the imposition is set to [Normal] or [Gangup] [Unique].
- If the target printer does not support printing selected pages or page ranges, this function is not available. See the printer documentation for information on the supported functions.

To print selected pages:

1. Make sure that the printer you want to use is selected in the printers menu.

For more information, see Specifying a Printer for the Job, p. 95.

2. Select the target pages in the page list or the target sheets in [Sheet view].

For more information, see Selecting Pages and Sheets, p. 97.

If your selection includes preprinted sheets, such as preprinted covers, preprinted designation sheets, or inserted tabs, the page before and after the selected pages might also be printed.

3. On the menu bar, click File \rightarrow Print Selected.

File Edit View	Insert Settings	Window	Help			Apply pres	et 👻	C 📑 Printer 1		۰
Create New Job Open	Ctrl+N Ctrl+O	ЛТ	• 2 \ -	🔄 - Paper: A	1	• 🛛 • 🛛	0· 0· 7·	🜔 - Copies: 1		
			1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	4 - A4	5 - A4	6 - A4	7 - A4	Job Setup
Build Job										
Save			s.		August and a second secon	Conception and an end of the second s	<u>}</u>		 Balance and Annual Annua	Finishing
	Ctrl+Shift+S		• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2	Bentinamenage of more s	-	5	- 6	7	Covers
Print Print Selected	Ctrl+P		8 - A4	9 - A4	10 - A4	11 - A4	12 - A4	13 - A4	14 - A4	Sheets
Print Range						A definition of the second sec		State State		
Close Exit	Ċtrl+W Ctrl+Q						The second secon	Path-sector and a sector and a		Page Content

```
Note
```

In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, the print function is not available. After you finish editing a job, you can save it and submit it back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.

Printing Page Ranges

You can choose to print only a range of pages from a job.

Vote

- This option is available when the imposition is set to [Normal] or [Gangup] [Unique].
- If the target printer does not support printing selected pages or page ranges, this function is not available. See the printer documentation for information on the supported functions.

To print a range of pages:

1. Make sure that the printer you want to use is selected in the printers menu.

For more information, see Specifying a Printer for the Job, p. 95.

2. On the menu bar, click **File** \rightarrow **Print Range**.



3. In the [Print Range] dialog box, enter the pages or page ranges that you want to print.

	×
CANCEL	ОК
	CANCEL

You can enter multiple pages or page ranges separated by commas, such as 1-7, 9, 11-n, where n is the last page in the job. Make sure that you enter the pages and page ranges in ascending order.

Vote

In the browser version of TotalFlow Prep, the print function is not available. After you finish editing a job, you can save it and submit it back to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. For more information, see Editing Jobs in the Browser Version of TotalFlow Prep, p. 219.

Printing a Job with Both Color and Black and White Sheets on Separate Printers

To reduce costs, instead of printing all the sheets on a color printer, you can print the color sheets on a color printer and then use them as inserts on a black and white printer.

To print a job with both color and black and white sheets on separate printers:

1. Register a color printer and a black and white printer.

The black and white printer must have an interposer tray. For more information on adding printers, see <u>Registering Printers</u>, p. 63.

- 2. On the menu bar, click the printers menu and select the color printer from the list.
- 3. Make sure that the imposition is set to [Normal] or [Gangup] [Unique] in the [Impose] panel.
- 4. To select all the color sheets from the job, right-click any sheet and click **Select** \rightarrow **Color sheets**.

Vote

- A sheet with any color object is considered a color sheet.
- A sheet with at least one color page is considered a color sheet.
- 5. On the menu bar, click **File** \rightarrow **Print Selected**.
- 6. Load the printed color sheets in an interposer tray on the black and white printer.
- 7. In TotalFlow Prep, click the printers menu and select the black and white printer from the list.
- 8. Right-click any sheet and click **Select** \rightarrow **Color sheets**.
- 9. Right-click the selection, then click **Paper** \rightarrow **Select tray...**.
- 10. On the **[Paper tray]** dialog box, select the interposer tray where the color sheets are loaded and click **[OK]**.



11. Click , the [Print] button.

Saving Jobs

You can save jobs as RJF, JDF, or PDF files for later use.

Vote

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To save a job:

1. On the [File] menu, select [Save As].

You can also use the [Save] option if this is the first time you save the job.

6

2. In the [Save a File] dialog box, follow these steps:

Save a file			×
Computer + D	(D:) 🕨 Data	✓ ⁴ → Sea	rch Data 🔎
Organize 🔻 New folder			≣ ▼ 🔞
▲ ★ Favorites	Name	Туре	
📃 Desktop	📕 Job1.rjf	TotalFlov	v Prep File
🐌 Downloads	【 Job2.rjf	TotalFlow	v Prep File
Recent Places			
🖻 📃 Desktop			
	•	III	•
File name:			•
Save as type: Ricoh Job For	mat (*.rif)		•
Password:		Compression rate: Low(qu	ality priority) 🔻
Hide Folders			Save Cancel

- 1. Browse for the folder where you want to save the job and open it.
- 2. Enter a name for the job in the [File name] field.

3. Select a format from the [Save as type] list:

[Ricoh Job Format (*.rjf)]

The RJF format is a job file format unique to TotalFlow Prep. RJF files are PDF files that have embedded information about settings such as finishing settings and print settings.

You can enter a password for the job in the **[Password]** field. Enter alphanumeric characters, up to 32 bytes. The password is case-sensitive.

[Portable Document Format (*.pdf)]

This option saves the job as a single PDF file with edits applied. Information such as finishing settings, slip sheet insertion, number of copies, and output tray is not saved.

You can enter a password for the job in the **[Password]** field. Enter alphanumeric characters, up to 32 bytes. The password is case-sensitive.

Pages with Image PDF original format can be compressed and saved in JPEG format. Specify the level of compression by selecting one of the options available in the **[Compression rate]** list:

[Low (quality priority)]

This level gives priority to quality over file size reduction.

[Medium]

This level is intermediate. The files are compressed but the image quality remains acceptable.

[High (size priority)]

This level gives priority to file size reduction over quality.

• Note

For the data compression to function properly, make sure that the image files do not exceed the maximum size, resolution, or pixel count specified in Supported Image Formats and Image Sizes, p. 257.

[Job Description Format (*.jdf)]

When you save a job in the JDF format, a folder is created and the PDF files that are linked with the JDF file are saved in the folder. The name of the created folder is *JDF file name_mrjob*. For example, if the JDF file name is ABCD.jdf, the PDF files are saved in the ABCD_mrjob folder.

• Note

- You cannot delete or modify inserted text, image, and mask objects for jobs saved in the JDF format.
- The created JDF files can only be used with TotalFlow applications.
- 4. Click the [Save] button.

After you save a job as an RJF or JDF file, you can save any additional changes by clicking **[Save]** in the **[File]** menu.

Checking Job Progress and Results

You can use the [Alerts] panel to manage jobs and check their progress and results.

Vote

This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

Viewing and Managing Active Jobs

You can manage current jobs and check their progress from the [Active] tab of the [Alerts] panel.

To view and manage active jobs:

1. On the menu bar, click 🛄, the [Alerts] button.



If there are new notifications since the last time you opened the **[Alerts]** panel, a blue icon is displayed next to the **[Alerts]** button (()). If there are any new errors, the icon is red (). If job processing is suspended for all current and future jobs, the icon is orange (). If there are no new notifications, the **[Alerts]** button is grayed out.

2. On the [Alerts] panel, click the [Active] tab.



On the [Active] tab, you can check and manage jobs that are still being processed.

Jobs that have finished processing or that were canceled appear on the **[Logged]** tab. See Viewing and Managing Logged Jobs, p. 231 for more information. Jobs that are in an error state are displayed both in the **[Active]** and **[Logged]** tab.

3. Look at the information displayed in the job list to check the status of active jobs and view more details related to the job processing.

0	The job is waiting to be processed.
	The job is waiting to be printed.
	The job is being processed or printed.
	The job was suspended.
A	The job encountered an error.

• The status icons show the current state of each job:

• The icon displayed before the name of the job shows whether the job was submitted from the TotalFlow Prep user interface or through a hot folder:

	The job was submitted from the user interface.
<i>ù</i>	The job was submitted through a hot folder.

Under the job name, you can see a status message. Hover over the job name for more details about the job.

- To the right of the job name, you can see when the job was submitted.
- 4. Use the available options to perform actions on all the jobs or on a specific job in the list. The available actions depend on the processing phase of the job.
 - To temporarily stop all the jobs, click [More Actions] and enable the [Suspend All] option. Job processing is suspended for all current and future jobs.
 - To resume all the suspended jobs, click [More Actions] and disable the [Suspend All] option.

Job processing is resumed for all current and future jobs.

- To cancel all the jobs and remove them from the [Active] list, click [More Actions] and select [Cancel All].
- To open and edit a job that is in the **[Waiting for manual editing]** state, click the job name. After you finish editing the job, click the **[Print]** button to send the job to the printer.
- To temporarily stop a specific job, hover over the job and click **II**, the **[Suspend]** button.
- To resume a suspended job or a job that was stopped because of an error, hover over the job and click ID, the **[Resume]** button.

Comportant Comportant

You cannot resume jobs in which a fatal error has occurred using this function. To resume such a job, first cancel it, and then reopen it. Make sure that the content of the job is correct and try outputting it again.

• To cancel a specific job and remove it from the **[Active]** list, hover over the job and click ×, the **[Cancel]** button.

Vote

- You can only suspend jobs that have not yet been sent to the printer.
- When you cancel a job in the [Preparing to print], [Waiting at printer], or [Printing] state, TotalFlow Prep tries to stop all further job processing. Sometimes, depending on the printer and the exact processing phase of the job, processing continues outside of TotalFlow Prep and the job cannot be canceled.

Viewing and Managing Logged Jobs

You can check the results of jobs from the [Logged] tab of the [Alerts] panel.

To view and manage logged jobs:

1. On the menu bar, click **[Alerts]** button.



2. On the [Alerts] panel, click the [Logged] tab.

Alerts		×
	Active	Logged
39 Logg	ed jobs	Clear
Printer1	Test.pdf Complete	2 min ago
⊗ Printer1	Test.pdf	9 min ago
Printer1	Document1.pd Complete	f 17 min ago
Printer1	Users Guide.pd Complete	lf 18 min ago
Printer1	Test2.pdf Complete	18 min ago
✓ Printer1	Test.pdf Complete	18 min ago

On the **[Logged]** tab, you can manage jobs that have finished processing or that were canceled. Jobs that are still being processed appear on the **[Active]** tab. See Viewing and Managing Active Jobs, p. 229 for more information. Jobs that are in an error state are displayed both in the **[Active]** and **[Logged]** tab.

- 3. Look at the information displayed in the job list to check the status of logged jobs.
 - The status icons show the state of each job:

>	The job was completed.
8	The job was canceled.
Â	The job encountered an error.

Under the status icon, you can see the name of the printer specified for the job.

• The icon displayed before the name of the job shows whether the job was submitted from the TotalFlow Prep user interface or through a hot folder:

	The job was submitted from the user interface.
Ŵ.	The job was submitted through a hot folder.

Under the job name, you can see a status message. Hover over the job name for more details about the job.

- To the right of the job name, you can see when the job was submitted.
- 4. Optional: To remove all the jobs from the log, click [Clear].

Note

Logs are stored for 90 days.

7. Working with Presets

- Creating Presets
- Editing Preset Settings
- Deleting Presets
- Exporting Presets
- Importing Presets
- Applying a Preset to a Job
- Building a Job with the Settings Registered in a Preset
- Using Hot Folders with Presets

To increase efficiency, you can register frequently used functions and settings as job presets. The presets can then be applied directly to a job or they can be associated with a hot folder for automated processing.

TotalFlow Prep also provides several sample presets that you can use to create business cards and booklets, to despeckle and deskew scanned documents, and to reset the job to default settings. The available sample presets depend on the language selected during the installation of TotalFlow Prep.

Creating Presets

You can register the settings of an open job as a preset.

These job settings can be included in a preset:

- Printer and printer settings
- User code setting
- Paper settings
- Orientation, printing side, and color settings
- Imposition
- Finishing and output settings
- Chapter settings
- Tabs
- Bleed edge tabs
- Headers and footers
- Page numbering
- Page stamping
- Exception settings
- Cover sheets
- Designation sheets
- Slip sheets

The number of copies and the information from the [Job Setup] panel, except for the [User code], [Print mode], [Due date], and [Apply settings to PDF and remove from job ticket] settings, are not saved and applied as part of the preset.

🔁 Important

The user code saved in the preset is only applied if the job does not already have a user code specified.

When you save a preset, you can also add image processing settings, associate the preset with an input hot folder, and specify output settings for the jobs processed through the hot folder.

To register a preset:

1. Create or open a job.

For more information, see Preparing Jobs, p. 85.

- 2. Make sure that you specify all the job settings that you want to include in the preset. For more information, see Editing Jobs, p. 95.
- 3. On the menu bar, click the presets menu and select [Save job as preset].



```
• Note
```

You can also create a preset using one of these methods:

- Click the presets menu, select [Manage Presets], and then click the [Create preset] button.
- Go to Settings → Presets and click the [Create preset] button on the [Manage Presets] screen.
- 4. On the [Save Preset] screen, specify a name and description for the preset.

Save Preset	
Preset Image processing Advanced Imposition	
Name *	?
Description	?
HOT FOLDER	
Input hot folder path	?
	8
Use incoming ticket (JDF, RJF) values instead of preset settings.	?
Print job on "Printer 1" after processing	?
Wait for manual editing	
	2
Save as print job	f
Output folder	
CANCEL	SAVE

You can also configure an input hot folder for automated job processing, specify output settings for the jobs processed through the hot folder, and include image processing settings.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Vote

- You can register up to 25 presets.
- If you configure an input hot folder for the preset, you can create and output jobs simply by placing files in the hot folder. For more information, see Using Hot Folders with Presets, p. 244.
- When you associate a hot folder with a preset, a shortcut icon appears for the hot folder on the desktop.
- A hot folder can be associated with a single preset. Hot folders cannot be shared by multiple computers or presets. Doing so might cause errors.
- The hot folder and image processing functions are not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.
- 5. Click [Save].

The configured preset is added to the list of presets available in the presets menu and is selected for the current job until one of the registered job settings changes.

Editing Preset Settings

You can change the name, description, hot folder, job output settings, and image processing settings specified for a registered preset.

To modify the settings of a preset:

1. On the menu bar, click the presets menu and select [Manage Presets].



Vote

You can also open the [Manage Presets] screen from Settings \rightarrow Presets.

2. On the [Manage Presets] screen, hover over the preset that you want to modify and click \checkmark , the [Edit preset] button.

Create preset		Import presets	Export presets
Name	Description		
3.5 x 2 inch Business ca	rds on 11x17		
Auto paper	Sample preset		
Booklet 11x17 with cov	rer		
Booklet letter on 11x17	1		
Despeckle and deskew			
Preset 1			<u>љ</u> П

3. Change the settings as necessary on the [Save Preset] screen.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Note

The **[Hot folder]** section is not available when you edit presets created in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

4. Click [Save].

Deleting Presets

You can delete registered presets that you no longer use.

To delete a preset:

1. On the menu bar, click the presets menu and select [Manage Presets].



You can also open the [Manage Presets] screen from Settings \rightarrow Presets.

2. On the [Manage Presets] screen, hover over the preset that you want to remove and click III, the [Delete preset] button.

- Create preset		Import presets	Export presets
Name	Description		
3.5 x 2 inch Business cards on	11x17		
Auto paper	Sample preset		
Booklet 11x17 with cover			
Booklet letter on 11x17			
Despeckle and deskew			
Preset 1			× 11.
			Û

Exporting Presets

You can export registered presets as RJP files so they can be used on another computer.

Note

- This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.
- Signature profiles are not exported as part of the preset.
- The barcode profiles and custom marks saved inside a mark profile are not exported as part of the preset.

To export a preset:

1. On the menu bar, click the presets menu and select [Manage Presets].



- You can also open the [Manage Presets] screen from Settings \rightarrow Presets.
- 2. On the [Manage Presets] screen, select the presets that you want to export and click the [Export presets] button.

Create preset		Import presets Export presets
Name	Description	
3.5 x 2 inch Business cards	on 11x17	
Auto paper	Sample preset	
Booklet 11x17 with cover		
Booklet letter on 11x17		
Despeckle and deskew		
Preset 1		

3. In the **[Save As]** dialog box, specify a name and saving location for the exported RJP file and click **[Save]**.

Importing Presets

You can import presets that were exported as RJP files.

Vote

• This function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To import a preset:

1. On the menu bar, click the presets menu and select [Manage Presets].

File Edit	View Insert Settings V	Vindow Help			Apply preset		🎆 Printer 1		\diamondsuit	۰
5	💌 🗖 🗄 🕁 🖉	T Z · 2A·	Paper: A	.4	3.5 x 2 inch Business car Auto paper	ds on 11x17	Copies: 1			
: ≣		1 - A4	2 - A4	3 - A4	Booklet 11x17 with cov	er	6 - A4	7 - A4		Job Setup
	1. Page 1-sided Color A4 (210 x 297 mm)			MAC MAC Marchael Control (Marchael Control (Marchael Marchael Control (Marchael Control (Marchael Marchael br>Marchael Control (Marchael Marchael Marchael Control (Marchael Marcha	Despeckle and deskew Save job as preset Manage Presets	¢		And a second sec		Finishing
	2. Page 1-sided Color	• •	2	Beneficial and the second seco	4 5		6	7		Covers
	Note									

- You can also open the [Manage Presets] screen from Settings \rightarrow Presets.
- 2. On the [Manage Presets] screen, click the [Import presets] button.

Create preset		Import presets Export presets
Name	Description	
3.5 x 2 inch Business cards	on 11x17	
Auto paper	Sample preset	
Booklet 11x17 with cover		
Booklet letter on 11x17		
Despeckle and deskew		
Preset 1		

3. In the **[Open]** dialog box, browse for an exported RJP file, select it, and click **[Open]**. If an imported preset has the same name as one of the existing presets, a numeric value is appended to its name between parentheses.

Applying a Preset to a Job

You can apply the settings registered in a preset to an open job. The current job settings are updated to match the job settings registered in the preset.

To apply a preset:

1. Create or open a job.

For more information, see Preparing Jobs, p. 85.

2. On the menu bar, click the presets menu and select one of the presets available in the list.



🔁 Important 🔵

 When you apply a preset, the settings in the preset overwrite all the current job settings, except for the printer.

If the current printer does not support certain settings from the preset, these settings are not applied. A warning dialog box appears with more information about the unsupported settings.

The user code saved in the preset is only applied if the job does not already have a user code specified.

- If the settings from the preset specify pages, page ranges, chapters, or chapter ranges that are invalid for the current job, these settings are applied partially based on the available pages and chapters.
- Presets that contain image processing settings are not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

You can use the [Auto paper] sample preset to reset the job to default settings.

Building a Job with the Settings Registered in a Preset

You can apply the settings registered in a preset when you build a job with the [Build Job] function.

To build a job with the settings registered in a preset:

1. Open TotalFlow Prep and click [Build Job] on the [Quick Actions] screen.

Recent Jobs Job 2.rjf Job 1.rjf	Quick Actions Particular Create New Job Particular Open Job Build Job.u. New Blank Job

If a job is already open in TotalFlow Prep, go to **File** \rightarrow **Build Job** to build a new job.

2. In the **[Build Job]** dialog box, add files from your computer or import files from a scanner.

+ Add files	≥ Scan	Fiery Remo	te Scan 5	*	?		
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Туре	Last Update	
Apply preset	No preset		Ŧ	7			
 Apply preset Automate tabs 	No preset		Ţ	7			
 Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create 	No preset and chapters tabs from files		· · ·	7	eate chapters f	rom files	7
Apply preset Automate tabs Auto-create Use file n	No preset and chapters tabs from files name for tab ear te	xt	7	7 Auto-cr Use	eate chapters f	rom files hapter title	7

 To add files from your computer, click [Add files], browse for the files that you want to add in the [Open] dialog box, select them, and click [Open].

If a file is password-protected, you are prompted to enter the password before you can add the file to the job.

• To import files from a scanner, select a TWAIN-compliant scanner or the Fiery Remote Scan utility from the list of scanners and click **[Scan]**.

Depending on the selected scanner, the TWAIN driver setup screen or the Fiery Remote Scan utility is launched. Follow the steps required by the scanner driver and make any necessary settings.

- 3. Repeat the previous step to add all the files required for the job.
- 4. Optional: Make any necessary adjustments to the list of files.

For example, you can reorder the files and specify which pages to include for files with multiple pages.

5. Enable the **[Apply preset]** option and select a preset from the list to apply the settings registered in the preset when the job is created.

Build Job		lanar					×
+ Add files	≥ Scan	Fiery Remo	ote Scan 5	Ŧ	?		
Name		Page Range	Copies	Size	Туре	Last Update	
1_2_A.pdf		1-3	1	3.0 MB	PDF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
📾 3_5_4.tif		1-3	1	1.6 MB	TIFF	3/27/2018, 11:04:16	
🚾 6.jpg		-	1	49.2 kB	JPG	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
📾 L_A4.tif		1-1	1	84.9 kB	TIFF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
📾 L_LT.tif		1-1	1	60.9 kB	TIFF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
R_A4.tif		1-1	1	87.4 kB	TIFF	10/9/2015, 8:44:28 PM	
Apply preset	No preset		Ŧ	?			
Automate tabs a Auto-create ta Use file na Auto-create ta	No preset 3.5 x 2 inch Bu Auto paper Booklet 11x17 Booklet letter	usiness cards of 7 with cover	n 11x17	Auto-cr	eate chapte file name fo eate chapte	rs from files or chapter title rs from bookmarks	?
	Despeckle and Preset 1	d deskew				CANCEL	ΛTE

Comportant Comportant

If the settings from the preset specify pages, page ranges, chapters, or chapter ranges that are invalid for the current job, these settings are applied partially based on the available pages and chapters.

6. Click the **[Create]** button.

🖪 Reference

For more information on building jobs from existing files on your computer or from scanned files, see Building a New Job, p. 86.

Using Hot Folders with Presets

You can use hot folders and presets for automated job processing. Whenever you place a supported document file in a hot folder, a job is created, the associated preset is applied, and the document is output, without having to start the application.

🔁 Important 🔵

The hot folder function is not available in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.

To use a hot folder for automated job processing:

1. Create a preset and associate it with an input hot folder.

For details, see Creating Presets, p. 235.

Make sure that you select the output method required for the jobs processed through the hot folder on the **[Save Preset]** screen:

To send the jobs to the printer specified in the preset, enable the [Print job on printer after processing] option.

If you want to wait for the job to be manually edited, select the **[Wait for manual editing]** check box.

• To save and send the jobs to an output folder, enable the [Save as print job] or the [Save as PDF] option.

If you want to apply the settings specified in the job ticket instead of the ones saved in the preset when the job is created, also select the **[Use incoming ticket (JDF, RJF) values instead of preset settings.]** check box.

Note

- The number of copies and customer information are always retrieved from the job ticket.
- If there is no user code in the incoming ticket, the user code from the preset is applied.
- 2. Place the file or files that you want to process in the configured hot folder.

C Important

- Before placing files in a hot folder, make sure they can be processed by this application. For details, see Supported File Formats, p. 255.
- If you place a password-protected file in a hot folder, an error will occur. Remove the password protection before placing any files in a hot folder.

- If you place multiple files in a hot folder, a separate job is created for each file. To combine multiple files into a single job, start the application and use the [Create New Job] or the [Build Job] function. You cannot use hot folders to combine files.
- To place a JDF file and PDF files that are linked with the JDF file in a hot folder at the same time, place the JDF file first. If the PDF files are placed in the hot folder before the JDF file, the application might start the processing only with the PDF files.
- If you place a JDF file in a hot folder, make sure the PDF files linked with the JDF file are stored in a folder that can be accessed by the client computer.
- If the **[Require user code to print job]** check box is selected on the **[Preferences]** screen and you submit a job without a user code to a hot folder, the job will go into an error state.
- The files placed in the hot folder are removed after the application processes them. Make a copy of the files that you want to save before you place them in the hot folder.
- If you want to delete from the disk a folder that is defined as hot folder, you must first remove the hot folder setting from the associated preset. Otherwise, the application will recreate the folder the next time it polls for jobs.
- If the settings registered in the preset associated with the hot folder specify pages, page ranges, chapters, or chapter ranges that are invalid for a job, these settings are applied partially based on the pages and chapters available inside the job.
- 3. **Optional:** Verify the progress of the job and, if necessary, change the job status. For more information, see <u>Checking Job Progress and Results</u>, p. 229.

8. Troubleshooting

- If the Application Does Not Start
- If a Message Appears
- If You Encounter a Problem

If you encounter problems while you are working with TotalFlow Prep, you might be able to solve them by using the information in this section.

If the Application Does Not Start

This section explains what to do if this application does not start.

Action and reference

- 1. If there is insufficient free space on the hard disk, increase the amount of free space. See the Setup Guide for details about the required amount of hard disk space.
- 2. If the problem persists, restart your computer.
- 3. If the problem is still not solved, uninstall the application, and then install it again. See the *Setup Guide* for details about uninstalling and reinstalling the application.

If a Message Appears

This section explains essential messages. If you encounter a message that is not explained in this section, follow the instructions in the message. If the problem persists, check the message and message code, and then contact your service representative.

Vote

In the tables below, the code displayed after the text of the message is a unique identifier for the message. The codes displayed in the **Message code** column identify the specific context of the error and possible solutions.

Creating and opening jobs

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"Failed to create a new job." (101019)	2020900015	Make sure that you have sufficient privileges to read the specified file.
"Failed to incorporate original file / scanned data {0} into job." (101026)	2020302111	See Supported File Formats, p. 255, and make sure that this application supports the file format.
	2020302112	Make sure that the image file size and resolution are supported or that the X and Y resolutions of the image are the same.
		For details about the supported image sizes, see Supported Image Formats and Image Sizes, p. 257.

Message	Message code	Action and reference
	2020700003	If there is insufficient free space on the hard disk, increase the amount of free space. See the Setup Guide for details about the required amount of hard disk space.
"Failed to update the preset information." (106010)	2000200102	 A new folder could not be created. Check the following, and then specify a folder that is valid: Do you have sufficient privileges to access the specified folder? Did you specify a read-only folder? (For example, a folder on a CD)
"PDF conversion by the TotalFlow PDF driver failed."		 See Supported File Formats, p. 255, and make sure that this application supports the file format. If the TotalFlow PDF driver settings have been changed, reinstall the TotalFlow PDF driver. For details, see the Setup Guide. If the problem could not be resolved in Step 1 or Step 2, the file might be corrupt. Check whether the file can be opened in the application that was used to create it.
"Scanning has been canceled." (107003)		If scanning was not canceled and this message appears, repeat the scanning.
"Cannot scan. Verify the scanner connection and driver settings."		 Make sure that TotalFlow Prep supports the scanner driver. For information on the supported drivers, see the <i>Printer Connector Readme</i> file. Make sure that the scanner driver is configured correctly. For information on the driver installation and configuration procedure, see the documentation for your drivers. Make sure that the scanner is connected to the network and ready to use.
"Job information unavailable." (101007) "Thumbnails are unavailable." (104001)		There might have been insufficient memory to process the document. If memory was insufficient, exit other applications.

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"The password is incorrect. Try again." (101006)		Make sure that you specify the correct password for the file.
"Cannot start TotalFlow Prep because another TotalFlow Prep instance is already running."		Restart TotalFlow Prep to fix the problem.

Printing and printers

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"Failed to print the job." (101041) "Failed to create a new job. Failed to assign device to the job." (101022) "Failed to create a new job. Device capability information unavailable." (101023) "Device capability information unavailable." (101011) "Failed to connect with the device." (202038) "Failed to create the job. Unknown error." (101018)	2000400110 2000400114 2000600105 2000400144 2000400133 2000400117 2000400156	 Check the following: Is the printer turned on? Is the printer connected to the network? Did an error occur on the printer?
"Device capability information unavailable." (101061) "Device capability information unavailable." (101011) "An HTTP error has occurred." (101012) "An HTTP error has occurred." (101055) "Failed to add the printer. The device is not supported." (102021) "Failed to add the printer. Cannot access the printer." (102023)	2000400109 2000400134	 Make sure that the connection settings you specified when you added the printer are correct. Click [Printer Management] on the [Settings] menu to view connection details and status information for registered printers. Click , the [Edit] button, next to a printer to view or edit its settings. For details about a specific setting, click the button to display the on-screen field help. Make sure that the printer model is supported. See the Printer Connector Readme for more information.

Message	Message code	Action and reference
Message "Failed to update the printer connection settings." (102009) "Failed to update the printer information or its connection settings." (102011) "Failed to add the printer. Make sure that the printer information and connection settings are correct." (102025) "The printer status is unknown." (101058)	2000400114 2000400115	 The connection to the server on which TotalFlow Production Manager is installed might have failed. Check the following: Is the server turned on? Is the server connected to the network? Did TotalFlow Production Manager start correctly? If not, try restarting the server. Can you print from TotalFlow Production Manager? An HTTP error might occur because the system load increases temporarily when TotalFlow Prep sends jobs to TotalFlow Production
printer status is unknown." (101010)	2000400102 2000400132 2000400144	 Manager. Wait for the system load to decreated and try sending the jobs again. Check the following in TotalFlow Production Manager: Does an appropriate workflow exist in TotalFlow Production Manager? Is the workflow associated with a physical printer?
		 Can you print from the physical printer that is associated with TotalFlow Production Manager? For more information, see the TotalFlow Production Manager documentation.
	2000400128 2000400130	Make sure that an error has not occurred on the printer. If "Failed to update the printer connection settings." appeared, check all registered printers.
	2000400103	When all printing has finished on the specified printer, perform the operation again.
Editing jobs in the browser version of TotalFlow Prep

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"Failed to open the job. Unknown error." (101000) "Failed to open the job because the file is not valid. Unknown error." (101001) "Failed to open the job. The file might be corrupt or the file type might not be supported." (101002) "Failed to establish a session with the service." (100002)	2000024103 2021217104 2021217106 2000900101 2000900102	 Cannot obtain the JDF file from TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server. The JDF file might be corrupt or the file type might not be supported. Make sure that TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server is configured correctly. Make sure that you have sufficient privileges to access the file. Make sure that the TotalFlow Prep version is compatible with the version of TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server.
"Failed to retrieve the printer information from TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server." (102015)	2000024102 2000000107	 Cannot obtain the device capabilities from TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server or the file might be corrupt. Check that the full computer name of TotalFlow Production Manager can be resolved to an IP address. Make sure that TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server is configured correctly.
"Failed to send the job to the application. Unknown error." (101037)	2000024104	Before sending a job, TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server is stopped. Restart TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server, then edit and save the job again.
"Failed to connect with the server."	2000000001	While editing a job, the TotalFlow Prep service is stopped. Restart the TotalFlow Prep service and try again.

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"Failed to terminate the session with the service." (100003)	2000900103	The browser user interface has closed abnormally.
(This message is not displayed on the TotalFlow Prep user interface but returned to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server.)		Reopen the browser user interface and make sure that it is working properly.
"An unknown error has occurred." (300000)		 The connection to TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server might have failed. Make sure that TotalFlow Production Manager or TotalFlow Print Server is configured correctly. Check the internet connection. Make sure that all the required services are running.

Saving jobs

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"Failed to save the PDF file." (101040) "Failed to save the job as RJF. Unknown error." (101036)	2000600001	 Make sure that the length of the absolute path is 260 characters or less. Make sure that the folder where you want to save the file is not read-only.

Other issues

Message	Message code	Action and reference
"Preferences information unavailable." (105003) "Failed to update the preferences information." (105004)	2090400105	 Restart your computer. If the problem could not be resolved in Step 1, the settings file might be corrupt.
"Unable to connect to RICOH TotalFlow Prep Service. Make sure that the service is started and try again."		The TotalFlow Prep service or Printer Connector service might not have started yet after the system reboot. Make sure that the services are started and try to open the application again.

If You Encounter a Problem

This section provides explanations and possible solutions for problems that you might encounter.

Cannot Communicate with the Printer

- Make sure that the printer is turned on and connected to the network.
- Make sure that the connection settings you specified when you added the printer are correct.

To view connection details and status information for registered printers, select [Printer

Management] on the **[Settings]** menu. Click \checkmark , the **[Edit]** button, next to a printer to view or edit its settings.

For details about a specific setting, click the 🛽 button to display the on-screen field help.

Images That Are Close to the Edge of the Paper Do Not Print

The valid printable area depends on the device, device settings, paper size, and data stream type. Images that are close to the edge of the sheet might not print outside the valid printable area, even if they appear in the preview on TotalFlow Prep.

For example, this might happen when you print on the tabs of inserted tab stock.

Try increasing the printable area in the printer settings.

The Thumbnails Do Not Show the Content of the Job

Placeholder thumbnails are displayed instead of the actual job content when the [Hide Sheet Content] option is applied. Make sure that the [Hide Sheet Content] option on the [View] menu is not selected.

The Orientation of a Scanned Image Is Not Correct

If the orientation of scanned data is not as required, you can rotate the pages using the rotate function provided by TotalFlow Prep. For more information, see Rotating Pages, p. 123.

Job Settings Are in Conflict

When you specify a job setting that is not compatible with current settings, a warning dialog box appears. The dialog box lists the conflicting options and provides information on how to solve the problem. Follow the instructions provided in the dialog box and adjust the job settings as required. For more information, see Solving Job Setting Conflicts, p. 220.

Insufficient Disk Space

If you cannot save a file because of insufficient disk space, increase the amount of free space on the hard disk. See the *Setup Guide* for details about the required amount of hard disk space.

Insufficient Memory

If the OutOFMemoryError condition occurs, close all the applications that you do not need and restart the TotalFlow Prep user interface. If the problem is not resolved, contact your service representative.

Issues with Job Files from Older Versions of TotalFlow Prep

Certain job settings from older versions of TotalFlow Prep are not supported or are applied differently in TotalFlow Prep 4.0 or later. You must reapply these settings after you open the job file in TotalFlow Prep 4.0 or later. See the *Setup Guide* for more information on migrating legacy files.

Cannot Start the License Manager

Make sure that you use an account that has administrator privileges. If you are logged on as a user with administrator privileges other than Administrator, right-click [License Manager] and select [Run as administrator].

The [Alerts] Panel Does Not Display the States of the Job Accurately

When several hundred jobs are submitted for printing, the **[Alerts]** panel might not display the states of the jobs accurately. To fix the problem, close and reopen the **[Alerts]** panel.

The Printer Does Not Use the Input Tray Specified in TotalFlow Prep

For printers with RICOH controllers, make sure that the **[Tray Switching]** and **[Extended Auto Tray Switching]** options are disabled. See your printer documentation for more information.

For printers with EFI Fiery controllers, make sure that the paper selected in TotalFlow Prep matches the paper loaded in the tray:

- If the controller matches papers based on attributes, the size, weight, and type attributes specified for the paper in TotalFlow Prep must match the size, weight, and type of the paper loaded in the tray. The catalog ID specified for the paper in the job ticket is ignored.
- If the controller uses a catalog ID to match papers, the catalog paper specified in TotalFlow Prep must match the catalog paper loaded in the tray.

See your printer documentation for more information.

- Supported File Formats
- Port Settings and Firewall Exceptions

You can use this section to find more information about supported file formats, port settings, and firewall exceptions.

Supported File Formats

This section provides information on the file formats supported by TotalFlow Prep for creating jobs and inserting files into an existing job. The applications required for submitting the files and the document type the files have as part of the job are also listed.

Comportant 💦

Make sure that you install all the required applications before submitting jobs.

Required Applications for Format Types

File type	Required application	Document type for job	Notes
TIFF	None	Image PDF	
JPEG	None	Image PDF	
PNG	None	Image PDF	
PDF	None	Object PDF	
PS/EPS	Acrobat Distiller, included with Adobe Acrobat 8/9/X/XI/DC/ 2017/2020	Object PDF	Acrobat Distiller is used to create a PDF file, which is then used to create the job.
DOC/DOCX/ RTF	 Microsoft Word 2007 SP3/ 2010 SP1/2013/2016/ 2019/Office 365 Adobe PDF, included with Adobe Acrobat 8/9/X/XI/ DC/2017/2020 TotalFlow PDF driver, included with this application 	Object PDF	TotalFlow PDF driver is used to create a PDF file, which is then used to create the job.
XLS/XLSX/CSV	 Microsoft Excel 2007 SP3/ 2010 SP1/2013/2016/ 2019/Office 365 Adobe PDF, included with Adobe Acrobat 8/9/X/XI/ DC/2017/2020 TotalFlow PDF driver, included with this application 	Object PDF	For information on installing the TotalFlow PDF driver, see the Setup Guide.

File type PPT/PPTX	 Required application Microsoft PowerPoint 2007 SP3/2010 SP1/2013/ 2016/2019/Office 365 Adobe PDF, included with Adobe Acrobat 8/9/X/XI/ DC/2017/2020 TotalFlow PDF driver, included with this application 	Document type for job Object PDF	Notes
JDF	None	Object PDF	JDF files are used together with the PDF files to specify the processing instructions for the job. They contain job ticket information, such as special instructions, customer information, and editing, finishing, and printing settings. Note JDF files are only supported when you submit jobs through a hot folder or insert files into an existing job.
RJF	None	Object PDF	The RJF format is a job file format unique to TotalFlow Prep. RJF files are PDF files that have embedded information about settings such as finishing settings and print settings. Note RJF files are only supported when you submit jobs through a hot folder or insert files into an existing job.

Additional Information for Submitting PDF Files

- This application supports the following types of PDF files:
 - PDF files created using genuine applications by Adobe Systems (PDF versions 1.3 to 1.7).
 - PDF files created using the scanner function of the devices listed in the Printer Connector Readme.

If you use a PDF file that was not created with the applications or devices specified above, the file might not be imported into the application or some functions of the application might not be available.

- This application does not support PDF files with XFA forms created using applications such as Adobe LiveCycle Designer. Before importing a PDF file into this application, convert the file so that it does not contain XFA forms. For example, you can use Adobe Distiller to convert the file.
- When a job is created from a Microsoft Office document, this application imports the output generated by Adobe Distiller. If Adobe Distiller does not convert the document correctly, the input received by this application is incorrect.

You can try to convert the original document to PDF in Microsoft Office using a feature such as PDFMaker before submitting it.

• If you open a PDF file or Microsoft Office document with a page size larger than 330.2 × 487.6 mm (13 × 19.2 inches), this application reduces the size to the largest paper size available for the target printer.

By default, the original aspect ratio is maintained when the size is reduced. You can change this setting on the **[Preferences]** screen.

For additional information about support for long paper, see Setting Long Paper Support, p. 152.

• If the PDF file is created with Adobe Illustrator, the preview of the file might be shifted incorrectly. To fix the problem, you can try to save the data as a new PDF with the Save as function in this application. Then, you can create the job from the saved PDF file.

Supported Image Formats and Image Sizes

This section provides information on the supported image formats and image sizes.

Coloritant 🔿

TotalFlow Prep only supports images that use the RGB color mode.

Supported image formats

Image format		Colors
TIFF (multi-page supported)	Uncompressed	Black and white (1 bit)
		Grayscale (8 bit)
		Index color (8 bit)
		Full color (24 bit)
	CCITT G3 FaxMH	Black and white (1 bit)
	CCITT G3 FaxMR	Black and white (1 bit)
	CCITT G4 FaxMMR	Black and white (1 bit)

Image format		Colors
	TIFF-MH (Huffman RLE)	Black and white (1 bit)
	LZW	Black and white (1 bit) Grayscale (8 bit)
		Index color (8 bit) Full color (24 bit)
	JPEG (JFIF) - YCbCr	Grayscale (8 bit) Index color (8 bit) Full color (24 bit)
	PackBits	Black and white (1 bit) Grayscale (8 bit) Index color (8 bit)
	ZIP (Deflate)	Black and white (1 bit) Grayscale (8 bit) Index color (8 bit) Full color (24 bit)
JPEG	Normal	Grayscale (8 bit) Index color (8 bit) Full color (24 bit)
	Progressive	Grayscale (8 bit) Index color (8 bit) Full color (24 bit)
PNG	Normal	Black and white (1 bit) Grayscale (8 bit) Index color (8 bit) Full color (24 bit)

Image format		Colors
	Interlace	Black and white (1 bit)
		Grayscale (8 bit)
		Index color (8 bit)
		Full color (24 bit)

Supported image sizes

Colors	Max. size	Max. resolution	Max. pixels	Examples
Black and white (1 bit)	330.2 × 487.6 mm (13 × 19.2 inches)	1,200 dpi	20,000 × 30,000 pixels	Tabloid (11 × 17) 1,200 dpi (13,200 × 20,400 pixels)
				Tabloid Extra (12 × 18) 600 dpi (7,200 × 10,800 pixels)
				Tabloid Extra (12 × 18) 1,200 dpi (14,400 × 21,600 pixels)
Grayscale (8 bit)	330.2 × 487.6 mm (13 × 19.2 inches)	600 dpi	7,800 × 11,520 pixels	Tabloid Extra (12 × 18) 600 dpi (7,200 × 10,800 pixels)
Full color (24 bit)	330.2 × 487.6 mm (13 × 19.2 inches)	600 dpi	7,800 × 11,520 pixels	Tabloid Extra (12 × 18) 600 dpi (7,200 × 10,800 pixels)

🔿 Important

- The maximum supported image size depends on the printer selected for the job. If you use a printer with long paper support, you can add larger images.
- Alpha channel transparency is not supported.
- If the resolution of an image file is not specified, TotalFlow Prep automatically sets the image resolution to 200 dpi.
- If you add to the job an image file that exceeds the maximum size but not the maximum pixel count, the resolution of the image is increased, up to the maximum resolution, so that the image fits within the maximum size.

If the image exceeds the maximum pixel count or if the image cannot fit within the maximum size even after increasing the resolution, the processing depends on the color mode of the image:

- Black and white (1 bit) images are reduced to the maximum size supported by the printer, keeping the original aspect ratio. However, if the [Maintain original aspect ratio when resizing oversized originals] option on the [Preferences] screen is not enabled, they are reduced instead to A3 size at 600 dpi.
- Grayscale images are converted to black and white and follow the same process as black and white images.
- Full color images are reduced to the maximum size supported by the printer. The original aspect ratio is always preserved, regardless of the settings specified on the **[Preferences]** screen.
- If you use edit original functions for transparent images, the image colors might differ from the original ones.

Limitations of Edit Functions for Document Pages

This section provides information on the available edit original functions for each document format.

Available functions by document format

	Document Format		
Function	Image PDF *1	Object PDF *2	
Deskew (Auto)	Available	Not available	
Deskew (Manual)	Available	Not available	
Despeckle	Available	Not available	
Move Area	Available	Not available	
Resize Page	Available	Available	
Сгор	Available	Available	

	Document Format		
Function	Image PDF *1 Object PDF *2		
Rotate	Available	Available	
Insert Mask	Available	Available	
Insert Text	Available	Available	
Insert Image	Available	Available	
Apply Image Overlay	Available	Available	

* 1 This format applies to jobs and inserted documents created from TIFF, JPEG, or PNG image format files.

*2 This format applies to jobs and inserted documents created from files other than TIFF, JPEG, and PNG image format files.

Available functions by accument format in the browser version of lotalflow Fre	Available functions by	y document format	in the browser ve	rsion of TotalFl	ow Prep
--	------------------------	-------------------	-------------------	------------------	---------

	Document Format	
Function	Image PDF *1	Object PDF *2
Deskew (Auto)	Not available	Not available
Deskew (Manual)	Not available	Not available
Despeckle	Not available	Not available
Move Area	Not available	Not available
Resize Page	Available	Available
Сгор	Not available	Available
Rotate	Available	Available
Insert Mask	Available	Available
Insert Text	Available	Available
Insert Image	Not available	Not available
Apply Image Overlay	Not available	Not available

* 1 This format applies to jobs and inserted documents created from TIFF, JPEG, or PNG image format files.

*2 This format applies to jobs and inserted documents created from files other than TIFF, JPEG, and PNG image format files.

Port Settings and Firewall Exceptions

This section provides information on the port settings and firewall exceptions required for TotalFlow Prep to function correctly.

Vote

Administrators must specify a port number when they create a printer. The specified port number must match the port number that is configured on the printer.

Port	Settings

Port Number	Description
20080 (HTTP)	The default port setting for the TotalFlow Prep Tomcat server to communicate with the user interface.
	If this port is already in use, you can set a different port number for the Tomcat server. For more information, see the Setup Guide.
17005 (HTTP)	Used for Tomcat shutdown.
161 (UDP), 514 (TCP), 1022 (TCP)	Used for scanning.
161 (SNMP)	Used for printer registration.
17080 (HTTP)	Used for the browser version of TotalFlow Prep.
17888	Used for the HTML version of the User's Guide.
80, 8010 (HTTP) and 9100, 9101, 9102, 9103 (TCP)	Printer Connector and the printer controller use these port settings to communicate with printers.
9100	Used if the printer language is set to PostScript.
8010 / 80	Used if the printer language is set to PDF/JDF.
20091 - 20099	Used for Java Remote Method Invocation (RMI) operations.

Port Settings for Job Ticket Printers

If a job is assigned to the printer, the port setting for job ticket printers cannot be changed.

Port Number	Descriptio	on
9100	The default port setting for many printer devices. If the printer device uses the EFI Fiery controller option, you can also specify one of the following port numbers:	
	9101	Jobs are sent to the direct queue and they print in the same order that you submit them. Job status cannot be determined for most printers. The collate function for multiple copies is not available.
	9102	The recommended port setting. Jobs are sent to the print queue; however, they might not print in the same order that they are submitted. Job status can be determined. The collate function for multiple copies is available.
	9103	Jobs are sent to the hold queue and an operator must release them at the printer console for printing.

🔁 Important

If the Windows Firewall is enabled, some programs might be blocked and this application might not function correctly. Blocked programs must be registered as firewall exceptions.

java.exe

Installation path: Installation path of this application\svc\jre\bin\java.exe

TwainAccessor.exe

Installation path: Installation path of this application\svc\bin\TwainAccessor.exe

mongod.exe

Installation path: Installation path of this application\svc\bin\impostrip\externals
\ite\bin\win64\mongod.exe

node.exe

Installation path: Installation path of this application\svc\bin\impostrip\externals
\ite\bin\win64\node.exe

If you selected the default installation path when you installed TotalFlow Prep, *Installation path of this application* refers to the following folder:

C:\Program Files\RICOH\TotalFlow Prep\

For more information about registering firewall exceptions, see the Windows Help.

INDEX

Α

Active jobs	
Cancel	229
Check progress	229
Manage	229
Resume	229
Suspend	229
Add pages	
Existing files	107
Scanned files	107
Advanced Editing	
Content Detection	147
Content Frame	148
Light Table	146–148
Mirror Light Table	149
Align page content	117
Auto alignment	117
Auto-rotation	124

В

Binding	170
Black and white	211
Blank job	
Creating	91
Blank pages	
Inserting	105
Blank sheets	
Inserting	106
Bleed Edge Tabs	
Adding	183
Applying themes	187
Custom themes	188
Depth	187
Edge	187
Editing themes	188
Gap	187
Length	186
Margins	187
Pattern Order	186
Printing Side	185
Tabs per bank	186
Bleed Edge Tabs Presets	184
Booklet	

	Booklet double154
	Creep154
229	Perfect154
229	Perfect double154
229	Booklet imposition154
229	Browser version14
229	Build job
	Existing files
107	Scan
107	Scanned files89
	c
147	Cancel chapter112
148	Cautions
148	Chapters
149	Canceling112
117	Creating
117	Moving
124	Renaming
	Clear log
170	Collate documents
211	Color
	Specifying211
.91	Color exception
	Configuration63
105	Copy page
	Copy sheet101
106	Covers
	Back cover201
183	Booklet202
187	Front cover201
188	Perfect binding202
187	Creased documents169
187	Create blank job91
188	Create chapter110
187	Create job85
186	Creep154
187	Crop marks159
186	Crop tool132
185	Width and height132
186	X and Y coordinates132
184	Custom paper
	Adding77

Deleting	80
Edit settings	79
Exporting	
Importing	
Custom printer	
Adding	65
Custom Printer Definition Files	68
Cut page	99
Cut sheet	101

D

Default printer	
Setting	74
Delete page	.102–103
Delete sheet	.102–103
Deleting a custom printer definition file .	68
Designation sheets	210
Deskew	122
Despeckle	121
Documentation	2
E	

E

Edit view	19
Editing	
Advanced	146
Editing jobs	95
Editing jobs in the browser version	
Eject output	
Error messages	247
Exception settings	212
Exceptions	
Color	217
Paper	213
Printing side	216
Stapling	217
Tray	215
External Programs	112
Edit Image	
Edit PDF	114
F	

Field help

Displaying	. 3
How to use	. 2

Fifth Station	163
Clear toner	163
Special toner	165
White toner	164
File formats	255
Document type	255
Required applications	255
Finishing settings	166
Fit width	
Folding	170
Footer	194
Formats	
Available functions	260
Functions	24

G

G	
Gangup	
Repeat	157
Speed	157
Unique	
Gangup imposition	
Grid	
Modifying	116
Guides	
Modifying	116
н	
Header	194
Help	
Hole punching	
Hot folders	
Creating	244
Useful notes	244
Using	244
HTML User's Guide	
Displaying	2
I	

Image

luge	
Adding	138
Centering	140
Copying	141–142
Cutting	141–142
Deleting	141

Editing	139
Manual positioning	140
Multiple pages	142
Pasting	141–142
Positioning	140
Resizing	139
Rotating	141
Transparency	141
X and Y coordinates	140
Image formats	257
Images	
Oversized	257
Imposition	
Booklet	154
Gangup	157
Normal	154
Imposition settings	153
Input tray	150
Insert blank page	105
Insert blank sheet	106
Insert pages	
Existing files	107
Scanned files	107
Inserts	189
Adding	189
Copying	192
Cutting	192
Deleting	193
Editing	191
Moving	192
Pasting	192
Instruction manuals	
How to use	2
L	
Job	

Building	
Closing	
Creating	
Open	
Saving	
Switching Windows	
Job information	

Job properties	96
Job setting conflicts	220
Job setting warning	220
Job setup	96
Jobs	
Cancel	229
Check progress	229
Check result	231
Editing	95
Editing in the browser version	219
Manage	229
Preparing	85
Preview	223
Printing	224
Printing on separate printers	227
Printing to TotalFlow Production	
Manager	224
Resume	229
Saving to TotalFlow Print Server	219
Saving to TotalFlow Production Manager.	219
Suspend	229
K	
Key points	26
L	
list view	17
Clear	231
Logged lobs	
Manage	231
long paper support	1.52
<u>M</u>	110
Manual alignment	
Marks	159
Mask	105
Adding	125
Centering	128
Color	126
Copying	128
Cutting	128
Deleting	128

Editing126

Manual positioning	127
Multiple pages	128
Pasting	128
Positioning	127
Resizing	127
Туре	126
X and Y coordinates	127
Menu bar	15
Move chapter	111
Move page	104
Moving a Selected Area	129
Multiple pages	131

Ν

Normal imposition	154
Number of copies	
Specifying	212
0	
Object order	143
Open job	91
Orientation	
Specifying	161
Original files	
Editing	115
Output tray	172
Overlays	
Applying	145
Create	145
Deleting	145
Editing	145
Overview	
Р	

Page

•	
Converting to Tab	175
Page content	
Aligning	117
Page Layout	97
Page list	
Page numbers	193
Page range	
Printing	
Page stamping	196

Deleting	200
Editing	
Large batch	
Repetitive print jobs	
Pages	
Copying	99
Cutting	99
Deleting	
Moving	
Pasting	99
Selecting	97
Paper	
Paper Catalog	76
Paper exception	213
Paper settings	150, 152
Paste page	99
Paste sheet	
PDF files	
Requirements	255
PDF manuals	
Displaying	2
Perfect bind cover	202
Cover builder	204
Spine	206
Spine builder	206
Perfect binding	170
Perforated documents	169
Preferences	83
Preparing jobs	85
Preset	
Adding	235
Applying to Job	241
Build Job	242
Creating	235
Deleting	238
Edit settings	237
Exporting	239
Importing	240
Presets	235
Print page ranges	226
Print selected pages	225
Printer	

Adding	63
Deleting	73
Edit settings	72
Registering	63
Selecting	95
Printer features	173
Printer information	
Refreshing	75
Viewing	74
Printing side	
Specifying	162
Printing side exception	216
Punching holes	169

R

Reader view	19
Reference	255
Rename chapter	110
Right-click menu	24
Ring binding	170
Rotate page	123
On sheet	124
Rulers	
Changing units	115
Rulers, grids, and guides	
Modifying	115
S	

Save job	227
Scanning	
Selected pages	
Printing	
Selecting pages	97
Selecting sheets	
Settings area	23
Sheet view	
Sheets	
Copying	101
Cutting	101
Deleting	103
Pasting	
Selecting	
Slip sheets	
Sorted printing	

Staple	168
Stapling exception	217
Supported image formats	257
Supported image sizes	257
Symbols	4
System Clipboard	
Copying	143
Pasting	143
т	
Tab size	178
Tab stock presets	
Tabs	
Adding	
Adding image	
Adding text	
Applying themes	
Copying	
Custom themes	
Cutting	
Deleting	
Editing	
Editing themes	
Ejecting unused tabs	
Inserting	
Inserting before chapters	
Inserting chapter names	
Moving	
Pasting	
Text	
Adding	
Bold	
Centering	
Changing font	
Changing font color	
Changing font size	
Copying	
Cutting	
Deleting	
Editing	
Italics	
Orientation	
Pasting	
-	

Rotating	136
Text box	
Adding	133
Copying	137
Copying to multiple pages	137
Cutting	137
Deleting	137
Pasting	137
Thumbnail view	17
Toolbar	16
Trademarks	4
Tray exception	215
Trimming	171
Troubleshooting	247
Error messages	247
lssues	253
Problems	253

U

User interface	
Areas	15
Description	15
Using the Installable Options	68
W	
Windows printer	
Adding	69
Workflow	
Adding	71
Workspace	19
Ζ	
Zoom	19

Copyright $\ensuremath{\mathbb{C}}$ 2011 - 2025 Ricoh Company, Ltd. All rights reserved.





